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Board of
Directors' report

2019 was a good year for Aker ASA* and the company’s shareholders. Aker’s™
net asset value was NOK 50.0 billion at the end of 2019, up from NOK 41.7
billion the previous year. In addition, a dividend of NOK 1.7 billion was paid in

2019. The shareholder return, measured in terms of share price development
and dividend paid, was 23 per cent. In comparison, the main index on the Oslo
Stock Exchange (OSEBX) increased by 17 per cent.

Aker ASA* has financial ftexibility to act,
as welt as a robust balance sheet. In the
fight of the dramatic development of the
spread of COVID-19 and the significant
drop 1in oil and stack prices in March
2020, economic strength 1s criticaliy
imgortant.

Dividends to Aker from portfalio
companites increased to NOK 3.5 bilhion
in 2019, up from NOK 2.2 billien in 2018,
Aker has investment and dividend
capacity, and the company 1s well-
aguipped to handle the extraordinary
sityation. The general economic cutlook
is currently uncertain, both in Norway
and the rest of the world. This
uncertainty 1IN the national and world
economy is expected to increase in the
time ahead. This 1s not least due to the
shutdown of societies and companies.
with the subsequent significant drop in
prices and in dermand for oit and gas,
which hits the oil and gas industry hard,
especially the supplier companies. The
oil companies will depend on

government measures to maintam the
level of activity, and thereby also secure
employrment, capacity and expertise and
the supplier ndustry.

On February 13, Aker ASA’s Board of
Directors agreed to propose a dividend
of NOK 23.50 per share to the
company’s Annual General Meeting.
Based or market developments and
increased uncertainty in the period af:er
this recommendation was made, the
board resolved on March 31tc amend
the propesal to ask the general meeting
not to decide on dividend payments, but
instead to autherize the board to
determine dividend based on the annual
accounts for 2019, The board aims to
make the dividend assessment semi-
annualiy. In the board's dividend
assessments, emphasis will be placed on
the market situation and prospects,
activity level, investment opportunities
and needs, as well as other relevant
factors.



Net Asser Value (NAVY Increasec by 16 7
per cent 1n 2019 to NOK 30.6 nillion. NAY
is & xey performance inaicater for Axer
and is caiculated using the market velue
of listed snares and book value “o- cther
assets. The NAV forms the pasis for the
compeany's dividend policy.

[n 2019, Axer BP contributec with an
increase of NOK 2.7 bilhon in Aker's NAY,
including NCK 2.65 tillion iy dividends 1o
Aker. For the other listed cormpanies 1n
the Inaustrial portfolic - Ocean Yield.
Aker Solutions, Akastor and Kvaerner -
tne value of tne snarehelding dechined
NCK 2.1 uthen, including civigends to
Aker from Ocean Yield anc Kvaerner at
NOK 658 milliors and NOK 67 muilion,
respectively.

The three unlisted companies in the
industrial portfolio - Aker BioMarine, Aker
Eneray and Cognite - are recordec at
book value in the NAV.

1. Key developments in 2019

[he oil price started the year at USD 54
per barrel, touched JSD 72 per narrel,
before ending the year at JsD 66 per
barrel In 2018, the “nancial marke:s were
also affected by the US-China trade war,
fear of recession, and geopolitical turmoil.
Nevertheless, the Oslo Stock Exchange
and the leading glcbal financial markets
showed a positive development in 2019.
With 75 per cent of Aker's eguity
Investments beaing in the ¢it and gas
sector, Aker s exposed to developments
in oil prices anda the activity level in the o
service industry. In the firs: quarrer,
Aker's NAV increased from NOK 417 to
NOK 56.2 billion, while the share orice
rose from NOK 462 to NOK 658. In the
second quarter, the NAY geclined 1o NCK
44.8 billion. The share price reached NOK
491 and a dividend of NOK 2250 per
share was paid for the fiscal year 2018, In
tne third quer er, the NAV s100C¢ ai NUK
431 bilion and the share price at NOK
484 In the ‘ourth quarter, the NAV
ncreased 1o NOK 5G.0 billion, while the
share price ended 2019 at NOK 543.50.

snarehelders thus gcneved an
annual return of 23 per zent 12079,

incluging share price develogments and

Aker's

dividends, This compares t
per cent for the Oslo

distrizuted
an increase of 17
S:ock Exchange Bencamarx Index
{OSEBX).

The Board oroposes a cividend o NOK
.00 per share for 2C19. down from NOK
22.50 per share i 2018

Axer's value-adjusted equity ratio was 81
per cent at year-end, wnile tne hook
equity ratio stood at 55 per cent. The casn
balance was NOK 3.7 billion, up from NOK
19 billion the previous year. Gross
interest-bearing debt amcuntec to NOK
11.€ billion, while the net interest-bearing
debrt stood at NOK 6 7 billion.

Thraugh 2018, the public and capi<al
marxets’ awareness of climate cnango
environmental challenges, and svestment
risk increased significantly. Environment
and climate, sociat concitions, and
corporate governance - o'ten collectively
referred te as ESG (Environmental, Social.
Governance), are 1mportant issues that
are part of Aker's assessrent of business-
reigted risks and opportunities. ESG 1s an
integral part of business opergtions and Is
g strategic factor in Aker's development.
As an active cwner, Aker alsc nas clear
expectations related to ESG
considerations for the industnal portfoiio
companies, This is descriped in more
detail in Aker’s ESG Report for active and
responsiole ownership

2. Business operations and location
Aker is an mdustrial investrent company
with a history dating back 101841 The
company Is registered in Norway, with its
neadauarters at Fornebu.

As an active owner and equity investor
Aker uses its “inancial strength and
industrial exper lise Lo furtner davelop the
operationat portfolio companies na
slistainable ranner. Through
narticipation on the boaras of the
porifolio companies, Aker is a driving
force for <trategic cevelopment,
operational improvements, restructuring

anc facilitating ransaciio s, Aker strives
to secure profitanie grown ana forwa G-
locking companies, and to buiz robust

crganisational cultures in allits portfol o
companes. Tre goal istoensure
sustaineble vaiue creation for all
snarenclders and contibute te a positive
social gevelopment,

Axer's investments are diviced 1nto Two
oortfolios: Inaustrial noidings and
Financial iInvestments. At yvear-ena 2079
Aker was directly and ind.rectly the
targest shareholder 11 nine companies
hsted onthe Oslo Stock Exchange.

a. Industrial hoidings

Axer's industnal heldings are the
company's long-term invest~ents and
consists of eight companies, of which five
are histec, These include the integrated
exploration ana production company,
Axer BP: the ol ccmpany, Axker Energy:
the oil service comoany, Aker Sclutions;
the oil service investment company,
Akastor: the engineering, procurement
and censtruchion company, Kveerner, the
ship-owning company, Ocean Yielg; the
krill anc bictechnology company, Aker
BioMarine; and the industriai software and
digitelisation company, Cognite,

Tne value o Aker's incustnial noldings
amotnted (o NOK 54.2 ailion as ¢
December 31, 2018, which represented 88
per cent ¢* Aker's value-agjusted gross
assets, up from NOK 4&1 billion a year
earlier. In 2019, Aker invested £42 millicn
i Ocean Yield through a nghts issue,
maintaining izs 61.7 percent stake inthe
company. In acdizion, Aker has invested
NOK 454 million in Aker Energy

Aker BP contrnibuted with a share value
increase of NOK 10.1 billion in 2018, The
deciine :n value in the other companies
gmoLnted to NOK 1.4 billien 10 Aker
Sclutions, 1.1 pillion in Ccean Yield, NOK
0.3 pithon in Akastor, and NOK 0.1 biflion
n Kvaerner, Dividends received from
Aker BP, Ocean Yield and Kvaerner
totalled NOK 3.4 oillion,

Aker BP
Axer BP s a fully-fledged oil and gas
Expleration and Production (E&P)
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company operating on the Nerweglan
Continental Shelt (NCS)

Ager BP reacned impertant mitestones
over the course of tng year. The Johan
Svercrup field, where Aker BP has a 1157
cer cent interest, 1s an industrial
achievement thangs to the collancration
petwean the operator, EGuinor, e
licensing pariners, and t1e supplior
industry. Tre field came Into progucaion
in Octeber 2019 - two months ahead of
schedule and approximately NOK 40
billion pelow oudget. The breaxk-even
price 1s below USD 20 per barrel, and the
COz emissions per barrel of cil produced

are nelow 1 kg. The latter s noticeably fow

due to the electrification of Jochan
Svergrup, using power from land to
operate the platform. Production has haa
& very promising stars, and it is estmated
that the fleld will produce up to 660,000
barrels per day &t plateau production.
Aker BF expects the company's share of
production o be 50,000 barrels per day
by 2020 1n the first phase, and .chan
Sverdrup represents a significant value
creator for the company for many years
to Ccome.

Aker BP-operated Vahall Flanke Vest in
the North Sea came inte production In
December 2019, Througn the
development of the fiela, te wellheac
platform alllance between Aker BP,
Kvaerner, Aker Solutions, and ABB seta
new standard for tne delivery of flank
developrments on the NCS. The project
was delivered earlier than planned, within
budget, and without any recorded
injuries. The platform receives power
from land via the Valhall field centre, This
is in fine with Aker BP's strategy of
minsmasing 1ts carbon footpring.

In 2019, credit rating agencies Fitch and
S&P Global Ratings upgraded Aker BP 1o
Investment Grade BBB- with staple
prospects. This increases opportunities
for capital access at attractive terms, as
documented in eariy January 2020 wnen
Aker BP borrcwed a 5-year USD 500
million bond loan at 3.07 percent fixed
rate, and a 10-year USD 1 biliion fixad-rate
bond loan &t 3.7/ percent.

Axer BP's fve flelc centres nave shown
sahisfactory operationa! stability andg
cood profitamiity. Collancrative modeis
znd allignces witn il se-vice suoshiar
companies continue e centricute to
reducec costs and higher eficiency
within exploration, drilling. oparations,
meaintenance, modificatons and feld
development, Digitalisation contributes (o
safer and more efficient operat:ons.

Tne company's contingent rescurces
were 921 million tarrels of cil aguivalents
sttheend of 2019, compared witn 346
rmillicn parrels of ol equivalents the
Drevious year.

Aker BP's production averaged 155,900
barrels of oif equivalents per day in 2019,
The company's operating revenues
totalled JSI3 3.2 pillicn, compared to USD
38 hilionin 2018, EBITDAX was USD 2.6
oillion, against USD 2.0 billion 1in 2018,

For 2020, Aker BP aims t¢ produce
between 205,000 and 220,000 varrels of
oil equivalents per day.

Aker BP has long-term growsh targets for
Its exisung perdchio, noth through value-
adding transactions and organic growth.
Aker BP will be a driver for working
smarter and more effectively through
alhances and coilaborative mocels.
Digitalisation 1s crucial to Aker BP's
irprovement program and plays an
irmportant role In change processes.

Aker BP has a long-term coliaboration
egreement with Cognite and is at the
fare‘rent in adopting digital solutions on
Its cperated platforms and praguction
vessels. The ceployment of this
technology conlinues across Aker BP's
instaliations.

Aker wants o contribute to making the
NCS an international genchmark for safe,
profitable anc sustamable offsnore
petroleum operations. Aker BI? is among
the lowest carboen infense aoil and gas
producers. The company's emissions per
preduced barrel are lower than the
average for the Norwegian snelf, ang
below half of the global average. Aker BP
works purposefully fo reduce emissions,

Improve safely and increase efficiency
TArOLGNCUT T1e valug chain.

Tne Aker B snare was oriced at NOK 288
on Decerrber 31 2019, compared (10 NCK
218 at the end of 2018, In addition, Axer
receved civiaenas from Aker BP totalling
NOK 2,652 ~illionin 2019 (NOK 18.42 per
SN@re).

Aker Energy

Aker Energy owns 50 per centin e
Deepwater Tano Cape Three Points
(DWT/CTE) all feid in Ghana.

Aker Energy, owned by A<er and Ime
Rescurce Group TRG AS (TRG) witn 49
per cent each, entered into &n agreament
in 2018 to acquire Fess Corgeration’'s 50
percent ownership interest inthe DWT /
CTP ol field in Ghana. Since tnen, Aker
Energy nas driled appraisal wells to
furtner explore the field's properties and
nas preparec a Plan for Development and
Operation (PDO) for the Pecan figla.

Drilling operations in 2019 confirmed
contingent resources of 450-550 million
barrals of ol equivalents in the DWT /
CTP plock. AT the same time, the
company acknowledced that gaining
approval of (e PLO was more
demancing and would require more time
than oniginally estimated Aker Energy.
with suppor: from Aker, concluded that
the process related to 2 PDO for tne
entire DWT / CTP oil field was oo
complex and rime-consuming, and would
tnerefore concentrate s efforts on
gaining approveal of a plan for tne Pecan
area only, where significant oil resources
have been proven,

Gwven the histonc oil price collagse in the
first gquarter of 2020 as a result of the
Corene virus and the price war between
Saudi Arapia and Russia, the company,
with support from Aker, deaded in laze-
March 2020 1o posipene the Pacan
project incefinizely. The corrpeany has had
an ambition to be in production 37
months after project sanctioming. Jnder
today's travel and transport restrictions,
and given the vory uncertain marke:
situation. the comoany ne longer



considers this scnecule es oossiple. The
focus moving forward will be onthe
potential for improvement, induding for
the techimical solunicn. Itis also naturat to
consider transacticn cpportunities in the
‘urther develcpment o Axer Energy

Aker Energy maintains a construcive
cialogue with the aLthorities in Ghana,
with 2 sharec understandmg cf the
challenges peing faced

In 2019, Aker contribLtec NOK 454 million
in financing of Aker Energy. TRG has
contribeted the same a~ount. In additicn.
Africa Finance Corporazion (AFC) entered
mnto a convertible bond loan agreement of
USE 100 million and bas the rights =0
supscribe for shares tarough a possible
listing of Aker Energy.

Svein sakob Liknes was appointed CEOQ of
Aker Energy, following _an Arve Haugan's
resignation In December 2019 As a result
0f the strategic decision to posipone the
dgeveloprrent of the Pecan project
indefinitely, Aker Energy's organisation
will pe scaled down to only consist o* a
small core team.

Aker's investment in Axer Energy stcod at
NOK 0.9 billion as of 31 December 2019,

Aker Solutions

Aker Solutions 15 a global oil services
company that provides services,
technologies, and product sclutions
within subsea and fleld desian. The
company operates in global niches with
high parriers to entry and is set Lp tc
generare an attractive refurn on capiial
over time throuch an asset-light business
model

I'he company is well 00 frack (o aghieve
its marget of cutting costs by 50 per cent
by 2021 compared to 2015 cost levels,
Focus is onwimning new contracts with
satisfactory margins, and to execute the
current groject portfolio according to
plans and budgoets.

The order intake in 2019 was NOK 12.6
billion and the order hacklog stood at
MNOK 25.4 biilion ot the end of the year.

Axer Solutocns’ goerating revenues
totalled NOK 29.3 pillicn in 2019, an
ncrease of 10 per cent from NOK 25.2
oillion the previous year. EBITDA stcoc at
NOK 2.2 bilhon, compared to NOK 18
oilion in 2018, Tne cormpany had a solic
finencial position ano g louicity reserve of
NOK 6.3 billicn at year-end 2019,

Aker supports Aker Sglutions’ strefecy.
anrounced i the fall of 2019, for targeted
Investments 11 renewable energy anc
low-carbon solutions. The strategy 2C-
25-20" aims to have at least 20 per cent of
the compeany's revenues be from
renewalbles by 2030, wnile at least 25
percent of revenues will come from
proeducts and sclutions that reduce COu
emissions. AKer Sclutions s already weil-
positioned in these areas. ~loating
offshore wing s an importanz market
geing forward that opens new
opportunities for the company. Tne tow-
carbon segment includes Carnon Canture
and Storage (CCS), subsea gas
cocmpression, unmanned platforms, ang
oll and gas field electrificaion

The comrpany's traditional markets, such
as sunsea, field cevelopmen?,
engineering, andg MMO are still presenting
tnteresting opportunities. 2012 was
marked oy several potential ol sevice
projects being postponed in time

In it ownersnip capacity, Aker is focused
on ensuring that Aker Solutions wins
contracts across all 1ts business areas, and
that it executes projects and contracts
with satisfactory margins. T¢ succeed in
this regard, the company has fo confinue
to develop its first-class customrer
relationships and remain focused ¢on
further operazicnal improvements and
strengthening of its capital base.

Ol service shares generally experienced a
major drop in prices in 2019, beth o tne
Oslo Stock Exchange, as well as on
international stock exchanges. This
reflacts how capital markets assess the
outiook for oit service companies. For
Aker, which cwns companies inmajor
parts of the oil and gas value chamn,
ownership in Aker Sclutions s of great
strategic importance and carries a value
that is not reflected in the share price.

29

Aver SoiLtions sha'e nrice stoca at NOK
2472 atyear-enc 2019, cown frorm NOK
38.66 a year sarlier. The board of Aker
Sciutiors nas oroposec that no divicend
o€ paid for the 2019 fiscal year.

Akastor

Axastor is an o services investment
company wh e porifeho of industrial
neldings and financial mvesimen:s.
MHWIrth end AKCFS Offshore are the
two most important companies in the
oertfolio. Akasior nas 2 flexiole mangate
for active ownership and s woking to
release the value potential in its gortfolio.

The drilling technology comoany,
MHWIrth, develcped posiively througn
2019, driven especially oy grownin The
aftersales marxet. in addition, the
company secured a new contract with
Keppel FELS during the year for the
delivery of an additional ¢nlling package.
In 2019, MHWIrth acquired the comoany
Bronco ManLfacturning, whicn
manrufactires eguipment and supphes
eagineanng and other services te the
global land-based drilling marke:. The
ambifion s te continua to grow for
MEWirth, betn organically ano through
oossibte acquisiticns of companies that
will strengthen MHWIirth's mariet
position The plan is 1o list MiHWirth,
aither on an Independent basis, or as part
of an industrial, structural solution, in
grcer {c reatise its value.

AKOFS Offshara is comgleting the
AKQOFS Seafarer vessel on coniract for
Equinor. and work Is currently underway
to evaluate new opportunities for Skandi
Santos. which will end 1ts current contract
with Petrobras in 2020.

Akastor works clesely with its portfolio
cormpanies 1o imolement cparational
imoprovements, cost reductions, ana
strategic initiatives in order o strengthen
tne compeany’'s competiliveness anc
position in challenging marxets

In 2019, Akastor's wholly owned
subsidiary, First Geo, which supplies
reservelr and well services to oil
companies ana ciner industry olayers,
mergec with AGR 1o broaden ihe
company and strengthen its maret
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position. Akastor controls 100 per cent of
tna snare capital ang 35 per cent of
“nancialinterestin Te merged CoTpany,
AGR.

Akastors cperating revenves tcieilen
NOK 5.4 billign in 2019, compares to NOK
38 pillionin 2018 EBITDA stood a1 NOK
292 millien, compared to NOK 290 miilion
the previous vear. Akastor had a liguidity
reserve 0° NOK 19 billion at year-enc
2018,

Aker's prionty @s owner is ‘or Akastor o
develop and realise the value of its
investments. Transactions completed in
2019 snow that Axastor's portfolio
companies have often added value, which
becomes visible tarougn industrial
constellations in larger anc more efficient
units. Tnese efforis continue.

Like other oil services companies, Akastor
experienced a general prica decline 1n
2019. The share price stocd at NOK §.94
ar year-end, down from NOK 12.06 at the
end of 2018. No dividend is proposec for
the fiscal year 2019,

Kvaerner

Kvaerner is a specialisec supplier of
complex offshore mstallations and
onshore “acilities for upstream oil and gas
projects, as well as other related
segments, sLch as rengwables One of the
company's competitive strengths 1s 115
ability to undertake projects that include
engineering, procurement and
construction {EPC) services under a single
conract. in 2019, the EPC market was
charactenised by few projects and tough
competiion.

Kvaarner seas growth opporiunies in
eauipment and supplies for floating
production and storage vessels (FPSO)
and offshore wind. The company
therefore highlighted two new business
areas In 20189 FPSO and reneweable
energy.

Kvaermer was awarded a contract by
Equinor in 2019 for the construction of 11
floating concrete chassis for offsnore
wind turbines, as well as marine operating
services, at Hywind Tampen. This

represenis a strategicaly important
contract

Kyaerner s constantly seexing to enhance
productivity end reduce cost levels at iis
specialised facilities gt Storc ana in
Verdal as weil as i izs project
managertent, cesign and arocurement
functions et Fornebu. Cacacity nas peen
adjusted tc a lowe- activity tevel, anc the
celivery mogel nas been furtner ~efined to
strenginen competifiveness.
Digitahsation, rebolizaticn ana
cevelopment of competencies are playing
increasingly prominent rofes in the
company’s coniinuoLs improvement
sirategy.

Kvaerner had operating revenues of NOK
9.0 bithon in 2019, compared to NOK 7.2
billion the previous year. EBITDA totalled
NOK 498 milhion in 2019, comparea to
NOK 437 million in 2018, At year-cnd
2019, Kvaerner held NOK 2.3 biion in
cash and had no interest-bearing debt,
Kvaerner's arder intaxe toialled NOK 6.9
billion in 2019, while the order backlog
emounted to NOK 8.2 billion at the end of
the year.

Kvaerner's most imporiant tasks in the
short term are 1o celiver ongoing projects
in tine with custorer expectations and to
win new contracts It is gratifying that
Kvaerner's 2019 HSE figures are a: thew
best fevel since the company's demerger
from Aker Solutions in 2011 However,
there is still room for $4Sl: imorovements.
Kvaerner's share price closed at NOK 1112
as of December 31, 2019, compared to
NOK 12.06 at the end of 2018, Kvaerner
paid NOK 1 per share in dividend in 2018,

Ocean Yield

Ocean Yield is a ship-owning company. Its
mandate s to build a diversified portfolic
of modern vessels on long-term charters
to creditwaorthy counterparties.

Ccean Yield increased its mvestment
capacity In 2019 following a hybnd cend
issue of USD 125 rrillion, 3 bonc loan of
NOK 750 mithon, and a nlacement which
provided the company with NOIK 717
milian 1in new eguity. Aker presubscribed

its relative numoer of shares in Tne share
issLe at onice of NOK 45 per snare,
corresoonding 1o a total share imvestment
of NOK £42 miliion, mainteitng its
ownership of 61.7 oer cantin Ocean Yielc.

in 20%9, the company Mace investents
totalling USD 438 mithan The numier of
vessals in tne pertfolio Increased from 57
te 69, of which 65 vessais are on long-
term pareboat contracts. Werk is being
nerformec to find long-zerm solutions for
Gniruphal-1. Connacior, anc two offshore
service vessels.

EBITDA amounted to USD 222 millionin
2019, against USD 283 million the
provicus year. The EBITDA order backiog
linked to fixed contracts totalled USD 3.6
villion a: the end of 2019, with an average
remaining contract tencr of 10.5 years.

Alear supports Ocean Yield's strategy 1o
pLild a larger company over time through
value-adding transacticns and further
diversification of the portiolio. Growth wail
orimarily te achieved through the
purchase of new vessels on lorg-term
charters. Diversification heips t¢ make the
company more robust o fluctuations in
certain segments.

Ocean Yiela's share price stood at NOK
48.00 a: December 31, 2019, down from
NOK 59.2G at the end of 20718 Aker
received NOK 658 (NOK £.70 ger share)
in dividends from Ocean Yield in 2019,

Aker BioMarine

Aker BioMaring is an integrared
piotechnologcy company that narvests krill
in the Antarctic Ocean and cevelops,
manufactures, markets, and selfs krill-
based Ingrecients to the consumer health,
anirral nutnition, and aguaculiure markets.

THe company I1s verically integrated anc
controls the entire value cnain, from
sustaimable «rill harvesting from three
vessels in Antarciica, 1o research, product
cevelopmen?, progucton. logIstics anu
markeiing. Aker BicMarine has built long-
term partnershins witn leading nranded
consumer gooos and distribution
companies, envircnmental protection
organisations, and researgners.



Aker BioMarine's core LroGucts are
QRILL ™ Agua, & nigh-aualizy mgrecien
for tie aguaculiure mdustry, Suse'oa '
Krifl Gil, 2 pnospheligic-based omeaga 3
dietary supplerent for the consurer
market, and QRILL™ Pet. an cmega-3
mgredient for pets

in Novermper 2079, e US Food and Urug
Administration {FDA) aporovea QRILL
Pet as a source of protein ana lipid for dry

og fooc. Aker BioMarine considers tnis
as a starting point for entering a large pet
market I the Jrited Stares,

Aker BioMarine is in a growth phase
reguiring adaiaional investmen®s, In
January 2019, the company was delivered
the newly tuilt Antarciic Enduarance. the
world's most modern vessel for
sustainable krll capture, regresenting an
investment of NOK 1.1 billion. The
company also has a new service vessel
under constri.ction in China to hangle
increased fishing volumes. Aker
BioMaring's krili ol plantin Howuston has
invested in expanded capacity. In
adattion, Aker BieMarine nas investec
significantly in product and marxet
development.

Tnese are important investments that
contribute to rapid growth in revenue and
EBITOA. Superpa™ Knfl Ol 1s showing the
most rapid growth, with tne sirongest
growth seen across Asla, and especially in
South Keres.

Aker BioMarine's cperating revenLes
increased by 59 per centin 2019 to USD
247 millicn, up from JSD 155 million the
previous year. EBITDA amounied to USD
46 milkon, up frem USD 33 million in 2018,

The corpany I1s well-positioned for
geographical expansicon anc to maintain
product sales in nigher price segments
through its complete supply chan,
innovative products, ana stable, long-
term parinersiips.

Aker will consider various opportunities
for long-term vaiue creaticn in Aker
BioMarine. The ampition is 10 builc a
larger, maore rebust company with
profitable growen, with a focus on strong
operations and efficient supply chains in

Its Industry segrrents. The growth
strategy may resurre furiher myestments
by Aker.

Axer BioMarime CEQ. Matts sohansen,
acguirec 2 per cent ¢f tne snares in the
company fram Axer 1 2019 Aker now
owns 98 percent, and e shares are
reparrec at NOK 2.4 gilicn as of 4
December 2014,

Cognite

Cognite 1s a fast-growing incdustrial
saftware corpany that enables the cil
angd gas industry and other asset-
intensive incustries fo improve aperations
thraugh efficient data collection and
sharing.

The comrpany's core product, Cognite
Data Fusion (CDF), centinuously collects,
processes and organises vast amounts of
data for industrial customars. A sianificant
portion of Cognite's revenue comes from
licensing ang subscriptions.

In 2019, the company secured the trust of
and won new coniracis with several naw
customers. Cognite has already claimeg
aninernational position in the
cig'talisation of the ol snc gas industry
and has gamed a sohd foothola with
renowned customers in shipping and
logistics, energy and power suppoly, as
well as asset-intensive manufacturing
industries.

Cognite continues to afract highly
quehiied emplovees. In 2019, the
company opened offices 1n Texas and
Tokyo, and signed & letter of intent (MoiJ)
to digitalise Saud Ararrco, the world's
largest cil company. The two companies
are also i commercial negotiations (o
estanlish a Jointly owned company 1o
cortribute to digitalisanon across Sauci
Arapia.

The company's operating revenues
fotslied NOK 340 million in 2019,
compared tao NOK 164 million in 2018,
EBITDA was negative by NOK 15 million,
compared to a pasitive NOK 9 million mn
2018
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pacity, Axer s g
driver for imyasiments in the growing
marker Cognite anc
CDF nelo to renew existing INaustries ana
cregte niew DLSMess SLporiunies,
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incustrial software

TMaxing 1Noustries more profitable ana

sustainabie throueh lewer energy

consurplion ana lower erussions. Tnese

gre Impoerant drivers for Aker as an active

ownerwor«ng closely witn Cognite’s
development.

International expansion, contnued
recruitmens of talent from around the
worle, further developrmen: of customer
relationships ang assessments of strateg.c
partnerships and cpportunities for
collangration, are sl impaortant points on
Axers ownership agenda. In the long
term, the planis to carry out a listing of
Cognize.

Axer's investment s repertec at NOK 42
milhion as per Decerber 31, 2019

b. Financial investments
Financial investments comprise all Aker
assets not defined as industrial holdings,
Inclucing cash, other isted mvestimeants,
real estate, and other investments. The
value of Aker's Sinancial Investments
amaounted to NOK /.7 nithion at Decemper
31, 2019, making us 12 per cent of Aker's
net asset value.

Axer's cash holdings increased to NOK 3.7
oflion in 2019, up rom NOK 1.9 billion the
orevious year. The increase is mainly
atirbutanle to NOK 2.5 billion in
dividends received from portfolio
comganies and net issue of interest-
bearing debt of NOK 2.5 billion This was
nartly offset by Aker's payment of NOK
1.7 bithon in cividend to 1ts shareholders in
2019, total epersting and financial
expenses of NOK O 6 billion, the NOK 0.4
pillion investment in Ocezn Yiele, a NOK
0.5 bilhen investment in Aker Energy, anc
the issue of NOK Q.2 bilion 1n financing to
Axer BloMarine. Aker has a censervative
approacn 1o management ot its cash
oortfolio, spreading deposits between
several banks with nigh crecit ratings.
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The vaiue of otmer listed Investments
siood at NOK 0.9 cillion a7 year-end 2019,
up from NOK 3.7 o liion in 2018, Aker's
wvestmients in Poilly Shipyard mcreased
by NOK 106 million. anc Amencan
Snipping was virtlally unchangac. Solstad
Offshere ceclimec in value oy NOK 44
milhon. Aker inveszag 85 milhon in REC
Sileenin Dece~ber 2018, secorming the
company's largest snarehaolder with 22.95
percent of the shares. Tne unrealized gain
in REC Silicon was NOK 87 rullicn at year-
end 2019,

Solstad Offshore isin a qifficult situation
i a challenging mar«et. The company is
in negouations with crecitors, and the
outcome 1s expected 1o be a restructuring
of the offshore snioping company's
balance sheet.

Aker's total exposure to real estare
mnvestments was NOK 603 million at
Decamber 31, 2019, up NOK 35 miilicn
‘rom 20718.

Cther financial investments consist of
eaulity investmen:s, internal anc external
receivables, and otner assets. The largest
items are the investment in data science
company Abelee, receivables from Axer
BioMaring AS and Estremar Invest AS, as
well as arrcraft owrership. The value of
otmer financial investreents was NOK 2.5
pilkon at 31 December 2019, compared 1o
NOK 1.9 billion at year-eqd 2018

3. Presentation of annual accounts
Aker ASA's annLal accounts consist of the
consclidated financial statements, the
separate financial statement of the
parent, and tne combined financial
siatements for Aker ASA and holding
companies. it is the latter financial
statements that are highlignted in Aker's
internal and external reporting. The
combined accounis show the aggregate
financial position of the noiding
companies, inclhucing total availanle
liguwdity and net debt relative to the
investments in the underlying operational
companies. NAV for Aker ASA and
holding companias forms the basis for
Aker's dividend policy.

PursLant te sectien 3-3a of te
MNorwegian AccoLating Acs, 1T 1s
corfirmeda that the aCCounts have gceen
prepareg nased on the assurcption tha:
Akeris a going concern and the ooard
corfirms that this assurmnption corinues
to anply.

2. Combined accounts for Aker ASA and
holding companies

Combined income statermnent

The combinec grofit and loss account for
Aker ASA and holding compan’es (Axer)
shows a pre-tax profit of NCK 2.2 nillion
for 2009, comparec to a profit of NOK 15
Riflion in 2018 Tne change 1s Manly due
1o NOK 3.5 gillicn in received dividends
from tne portfolic companies, compared
to NOK 2.2 biliion in 2018. Aker recaived
NOK 2.7 oilion i devidends from Aker BP
and NOK 658 million from Ocean Yield in
2019. Operatng expenses amounted to
NOK 267 milhon in 2079, compared o
NOK 254 million in 2018.

Net financial items (ncluding dividends
received but excluding value cnanges)
amounted to NOK 2.9 nitlion in 2019, up
from NOK 1.8 billion the previcus year.
Gividends receivec amounted to NOK 3.5
hiilion, while net interest expenses and
other financial items amounted to NOK
597 rrillion. Net change in value of shares
amounted to minus NOK 435 million in
2019, Thus 1s mainly attrioutable 1o a
negat:ve value change related to the
investment in Soistad Offshore and Align,
anG a decrease in the value of direct
investrments i1 Akastor and Aker
Selutions.

Combined balance sheet

The combined batance sheat for Aker
ASA anc holoing companies shows a totel
book value for assets of NOK 26.7 biilion
as of Decemger 31, 2019, inciucing fong-
term equity investments of NOK 20.7
billion, and cash holdings of NOK 2.7
pihion. The asset value arounted to NOK
£1.9 pillion as of December 31, 2019. Tne
corresponding figure for 2018 was NOK
51.2 hillion.

The value of Aker's indusinal holdings
was NOK 54.2 billion at 31 Decernper
2019, compared to NOK 46.1 biflion at
vear-end 2018 The change is mainly

arrbutable 1o 1ncreased value of the
investment in Aker BP anc increased
investrent 10 Aker Energy. This was
oarty o'fset oy the decline 1n value of
invesTments n Aker Solunons, Akastor,
Kvaerner anc Ocealt Yigkd.

The value of Axer's financial investments
was NOK /.7 biflion at year-end 2018,
against NCOK 51 piihcn as of Decemnper 3,
2018. Cash holdings increased “ram NOK
1.9 ndlion to NOK 3.7 billion in 2019, Tha
changes are accounted for in the section
atove on Financial Investments.

Gross interesi-pearing dent amounted to
NOK M6 oillion as of Decemoer 31, 2019,
Lo from NOK G.2 billion a yvear prior, Net
interest-bearing liapiities totaliec NOK
&7 billion at year-end 2019, up from NOK
6.2 pillion af year-end 2018,

in 2019, the AKERIZ bone was repaid on
matLrity, ang Ake- issuea the five-year
NOK 15 illion AKERIS bond. At the same
time as the issue of AKER 15, Axer
partially repurchased the AKERIO and
AKER13 bonds for a total of NOK 350
muflion. As of Decer~ber 31, 2019, the total
cutstanding bond debt amounted 1o NOK
5.9 bilion. Bank debt totalled NOK 5.8
oillion, consisting of "wo bank loans
denominated in USD and a Scruldschein
loan denominatea in EUR. Toral unarawn
credit facilities amounted to NOK 2.8
Ditlion as of December 31, 2019,

Aler's NAV at Decermiber 31 2019 was
NCK 50.0 bilion, compared to NOK 41.7
pillion as year-end 2018

b. Group accounts

Tne main companies includea in Aker's
consolicated accounts are Aker Solutions,
Azastor, Kvaerner, Qcean Yiolc, Aker
RioMarine, Aker Energy, FP Eiencem,
Cognite and Philly Shipyard. Aker BP 15
accounted for as an associate.

Income statement

The Aker Groun had aperating revenues
of NOK 48.8 pnillion in 2018, compared to
NOK £2.2 billion the previous year, T¢tal
operating expenses came inat NOK 44.8
pillion in 2018, comparea o NOK 37.8
Billion in 2018, The incraase in operating
revenues anc operating expenses is



exp ained by iNCreased activity in Aker
Scluticns, Axasior ang Kvaerner, as well
as increased revenues i Aker BichMarine.
Tnis was partly offset oy a decline in
revenue In Ocean Yield in 2019, following
the FPSO Dhirubnai-1 going off contract
in e auturrn of 2018

In 2019, deprecigtion and amortisation
amounted to NCK 2.8 bilhen, against NOK
21 nillion the orevicus vear

Impairment charges In 2019 totalled NOK
10 pillien, mainly as a result of Ocean
Yield's write-gown of Dnirubnal-1 rozziling
NOK 59G million, a write-down of NOK
266 rrithen for use rights related to Aker
Solutions’ rental of office space, and g
write-down of the fishing vesse! Juvel in
Aker BioMarine totaliing NOK 54 million
Net firgncial expenses were NOK 2.1
billion in 2019, against NOK 1.3 billion in
2018, Tne increase s primarily duc to
higner interest costs, which should be
seen In connection with the Group's
higner interest-bearing debt in 2019
compared O previous years.

Pre-tax profiz from continuec operations
showed a loss of NOK 1.7 billion in 2019,
compared with a profit of NCK 1.4 bilhen
in 2018, in 2078, tne tax expense was NOK
0.2 billicn, resulting in a net loss from
conzinued aperations of NOK 1.9 bilion in
2019, 1n 2018, the tax expense was NOK
Q0.5 pilhien, with a net positive rasult from
continJging operations of NOK Q.9 piilion.

Balance sheet

The Aker Group's total assets amounted
to NOK106.7 billion as of December 31,
2019, compared to NOK 82.8 Lillion 2t
year-end 2018, Total non-current assets
were NOK 74.3 billon at Decemnber 31,
2019, compared fo NOK 67 1 oilion at
year-end 2018. The Group's total
mtangible assets tofalled NOK 12.2 billion
as of December 31, 2019, up from NOK 110
billion the previous year. Of this, goodwiit
amcunted to NOK 8.0 billion at year-end
2019, against NOK 7.5 billion the previous
year Goodwill has geen tested for
impairment, without this naving resulted
inimoairment of goadwill in 2009, Current

zssets were NOK 22 5 nillicn as of
Decernber 31, 2019, uo from NCK 257
oilhen & year prior

Current laoibties amounted 1o NOK 25.0
illion while non-current haoilibies totalled
NOK 425 billion at year-end 20i9. Tne
cerrespenaing figures for 2078 were NOK
232 pilicn and NOK 27.5 tillion,
respectively. The increase from 2018 is
explained by the implementation effect of
IFRS 16, as well as netinterest-Deaning
agebr. The Group's Interest-bearing debt
amounred to NOK 40 2 billion at 31
Decerber 2018, compared with NOK 30 4
billion at the end of 2018,

The Group's eguily retio was 37 per cent
at the end of 2019, comoared witn 45 per
cent at the end of 2018,

Casth How statement

The Group's cash balance was NOK 12.0
billion as of December 31, 2019, up from
NOK 9.8 pillion at vear-end 2018,

The Group's net cash flow from
operations amounted to NOK 3.3 nilbon in
2019, compared to NOK 5.2 billior in 2018
The change is mainly due o discontinued
operations and changes in other net
operating assets and habilities. which
were negative by NOK 1.8 billion 1 2019,
compared 1o a positive value of NOK 0.8
billlon in 2018, Tne reduction was pa-ty
offset by an increase in ¢ividends
received from Aker BD. The cifference of
NOK 0.7 billion between ogerating profit
hefore depreciation and amortisation ang
net cash flow from operations in 2019 is
prirarily attributable te negative changes
In working capital and interest paid. partly
cffset by dividend receved from Aker BP.

Net cash flow from investment activites
totalled negative NOK 8.2 billion in 2019,
ggainst negative NOK 4.7 bitlion in 2018,
Tne cash flow for 2019 consists mainly of
vessels in Ocean Yield of NOK 5.0 billion,
a5 well as acquisition of real estate, plan:
and eguipment, and intangible assets
totaling NOK 4.4 hillion. Payments on
nurchases of subsidianes amounted o
net NOK 0.9 billion.
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Ner: casn flow frem financing acoivit es
amoLniac to positive NGK 7.9 billion in
2019, comnared o positive NCK 1.0 bilhion
11 2018, Casn flow for the year frem
financing activities 1s prirar ly
atmioutable o e net increzse 1t oebt of
NOK 8.9 giilion, and :nCreasec egaity in
subsidianies of NOK 1.4 pillion, partly
offset by cividend payments tctalling
NOK 2.2 billion, Divicenrds are split with
NOK 1.7 to sharenoiders in Aker ASA NOK
0.7 piihon o minonty sharencloers 1 the
subsidiaries

¢. Aker ASA accounts

The parent comrpany Aker ASA achieves
an annual orofit of NCK17g reillion in
2019, compared to NOK 1.8 bilhonin 2018,
The decline “rom 2018 is mainly explained
by lower cividends from Aker Capital and
write-cowns of the investments in Aker
Kvaerner Holding, Aker Selutions and
Alastor.

Assets totatled NOK 28.9 billion as of
December 31, 2018, compared 10 NOK
50.6 pillion at year-end 2018. Eguity
amounted to NOK 20.3 billion at the end
of 2018, compared 1o NOK 201 billion at
31 December 2018 This represents a 70
Qer cent cquity ratic at the end o 2019,

informarion on salary and other
remuneralion [o executive managemens,
as well as compensation guideliings, 1s
presented 1N Note 34 to the consolidated
financiai staterrents.

Research and developrnent

The parent company had no research and
development activities in 2019, The R&D
activiues of the group are presented in
the annual reports of the respective
operational porrfolic companies.

Allocation of profit and dividend in
Aker ASA

Given today's uncertain marke: sittation
as a result of the Corona virus cuthreak
and a record-high crop in ol demana, the
Beard of Directors has proposea, for
approval &t tne annuat general meeting, a
zero dividend for 2019 The proposal




t3KES I7to accoun: the need for financial
exiziity and current mardet Lacertainty.

Tne net profit of NOK 179 million 13
rransferred to cther ecuity.

4, Management model, corporate
governance, control and compliance
Aker is a public Emized hability company
orgznised Lnger Norwegian law and with
& governance structure based on
Norweqgian corporate law and other
reqgulatory ecuirements. The company's
corporate governance moael s designed
o provice e foundaton for long-term
value creaticn and to ensure good
conrol,

Aker's principat owner, Kjelt Inge Rekie, is
actively mvolved In Aker's development,
Rakke ts Chairman of the Beard of Axer
ASA.

Awer has seven poard members, none of
whom are members of the company's
management and three of wnom are

employee representatives. The mgjority of

bcard members are incependent of
company mranagement and significant
pusiness partners. The Chairman and
Deputy Chairman of the Board are
elected by the General Meeting.

The Board of Aker establisnos the overail
principtes for governance and contrelin
Aker ASA through the adoption of
Varous geverning doclments. For issuas
of importance and with group-wice
relevance, Aker ensures that relevant
governing documents are implementec in
the portfolio companies, within she
framework of Aker's own governing
documents. For exampie, Aker's Code of
Conduct alsc expresses Aker's
expectations of the portfolic corrpanies’
Code of Conduct. The same Is true for
areas sucn as ant-corruption and suppler
conduct,

Aker follows tne Norwegian Code of
Practice “or Corporate Governance. The
company's practice is largely In
accordance with these recommendations.
Reference is made to the Corporaie
Governance Report. This report is
appreved by the Board of Directors and 1

zvailanie ¢n tne company's websie
WWW.GKE3588.00T

5. Board of Directors’ activities

ine Boarg prepares an ennal plan for its
work, whicn Includes recurning «<ey topics,
sLch as strategy review. Investment
planming, risk anc comeflance cversignt.
fingncial reporting, and budget review,

The Boarg annually evaluztes its cwn
ne-formance and collective expeartise.

Aker's Board of Directors held six
meetings in 2018, The attendance of the
hoard members averaged 85 per cent In
audition, five telepnone conferences were
nelc. Aka~'s Aucit Committee held nine
meetings in 2019,

Furtner information on the Boara of
Directors” and the Audit Committee's
rmandate and work can be founc n Aker's
Corporaze Governance Repo-t. The board
members’ shareholcings and
renurmerations are presented in Note 34
to the consolidated acccunts.

6. Business and society

ESG (Fnvironmental, Social and
Governance) is a three-letrer
commitment en how Aker handles risks
related te climate change and
environmental challenges. how the
company handles pecple and social
conaitions, and now Aker practices
corporate governance. This wo = IS
explained i the company's ESG report
avallable on www.akerasa.com.

Aker aims 1o be an atiractive emgloyer
and a preferred partner for business
associates, as well as a valuacle member
of society. Aker's most importan:
centribution to scciety is to create value
and puild forward-looking companies that
operatein an envircnmentally, ethically
and socally responsible manner.
Prochtability is a prerequisite for acnieving
these objectives,

The aperations of the parent company
Axer ASA have negligible effect on the
external environment.

As a leading snarenocider in many
Companies, Aker works 1o promote
resnonsinlz anc susiainable businesses
This includes fnar-cial, societal, climate-
relazed consequences of Aker's and the
cortfolio companies’ activities.

e Aker's estatlisnment in 1841, ifs core
s corrpetoneies nave teen linkeo
1C the ccean. A<er's core DLSINESS MovIng
forwerd will also ce closely tiea 1o the
ocean, Inciuemng In marinre operations,
fisheres and marine bivtechndlegy.
offshore ol and gas extraction, offshora
wing, and tecinolog es that recuce COz
erissions. Tegether wirh the Waorld
Economic Forum (WEF3, Aker has taken
the mtiative o estabhsh a global
technology cenire far the ocean and
environment. Tae ambition s 10 employ
new techngclogy (o preserve the worlc
ocean and redice industries’
cnvironmental foctpring Througn public-
orivate cartnerships, the centre will aim to
develop solutons for @ sustainable ano
profitable ccean economy.

Tne Norweglan Tecnhnology Centre
secomes part of WEF's global network
for tne Fourth Industrial Revolution
("Cenzre for the Fourtn industrial
Reveiuton”, C4IR;. Axer's portiolio
companies Aker BP, Aker BioMaring, Axer
Energy, Axer Solunions, Cognite anc
Kvaerner are conwibuting, tegether with
Kjell inge Rekike's companies REV Qcean
anc the Ocean Data Foundation. Aker's
portfclio companies are at tne natm of the
centre’s initigl projects, including efforts
1o reqLce greeninouse gas emissicns,
contribute 1o more sustainable fisheries,
and efforis within greener shipping

Tne operaticnal portfolio companies
indivicually report on their effect on the
external environment. Pursuant ¢ section
3-3¢ of the Accounting Act, larger
companies are requirec o repart an therr
efforts 1o INC uce corporate scaal
responsibility 10 business sirategy and
daily operations. Aker has fulfilled thus
ooligation through a separate cocument
approved ny the Board. The document is



avallable cn
VWA BKErE5a.com.

e comoany webs te,

7. Our employees

Aker ASA nad 43 erployess as of 31
Decemper 2013, of whizn 24 men and 19
women, Svein 0skar Stoknes toox aver as
CFC en August 1, 2019, replaci'm Frank O.
Relte. Stoknes came f
CFC of Axer So\utlons.

oM the posttion as

I 1is hining processes, the corepany
focuses on candidates’ gualifications for
the position, regardless of etnnic origin,
rehigious beliefs, sexual orientazion,
nationality, or otner cnteria considerec
irrelevans to their work.

The company strives 2o provide flexible
working conditions te ensure tnat
enployment 17 Aker ASA provides
appoertunities for a geo work-life
batance. Varied and ¢nalienging work
assignments anc gooc opportunities for
career development, comoined with job
secunty and competiive pay, are also
imporiant factors in making Aker ASA an
attractive empioyer,

As of December 31, 2019, the number of
regular employees working for companies
where Aker is the main sharenolder,
directly or inairectly, totailec 27,228, of
which 13,390 worked in Norway.

About 17 per cent of Aker Group
employees are women. Several of the
companies in which Aker has large
shareholdings are cornerstones of their
local communities anc recruit lecally.
Aker has signed an international
framework agreement with te
Norweglan Jnited Federstion of Trade
Unions {(Fellesforbundet), industriall.
Global Union, NITO and Te<na. This
agreement esrablishes fundamental
lapour nghts and refers to standards
relating to neakh, safety and the
cnvironment (HSEY work, pay, working
hours, anc employment conditions. Tne
agreement comimits Aker to respect and
support fundamenial human rights and
urion rights in societies in which the
companics operate. These prindiples are

set out 1n e United Nation's Universal
Human Rign:s Declaration, the OECD
Guidelines for Multingtional Enterprises
ang the ILC Ceclaration en Funcamental
Principlas and Rights at Work.

Forgenera
with employee organisations. Employee
representalives particinate In xey
decision-maxing processes, incluaing
trough board representation. Aker has
entered inLo agreements witn IS
employecs 1IN reievant operaing
companies to estanlish an internationa:
works councit. In addition, the company's
Norwegian trade unions hold annual
unich representative conferences and

t1ons, Aker nas worked closely

have working committees in the industrial
portfolic companies Aker BP, Aker
Solutions, Akastor, Kvaerner and Axer
BioMarine.

Due to volatile activity jevels in the ail
industry, which impac
Aker's portfolio companies 10 the ol
services secto!r have had to make
necessary capacity adjustments, The
feedback received so far snows that
while downsiZing processes are
challenging, efforts are made to carry
them out within Aker's and the porifolic
companies good working roiationships
with the empioyee organisations.
Caonstructive cooperation with union
representatives ana thelr organisations 1s
a prereguisite for successful market
adjusiments and restruciunng Aer has
long traditicns for involving ang inclucgng
union representatives in processes ma:'
may entail major cnanges for businesses
and lecal communities. Under the
currently challenging market conditions,
emnpiayees have contributed with a
willingness and ability to adapt.

The rate of healthiness in Aker ASA was
99.% per cent (corresponding to a rate of
sick leave of 0.7 percent) in 2019,
compared with a rate of healthiness of
98.6 percent the previous year. The
corresponaing figure for the Aker Group
was 97.4 per centin 2019, comparec with
971 per cent Iin 2018.

fsupplier industries.

As i1 2018, no work-relatec fataiities were
registereg in tne A<er Grouo in 2019

Tnere were 24 recorted accidents tnat lec
te absence from wor<, compared to 4010
2018. The acaicents are Gescribes in rmare
dezati in ne eperalng comMpanies’ annLai
rer\r'r‘s

8. Events after the balance-sheet

date

Marcn 6, 2020 OPEC and Russia cig net
reach an agreement on aill procuction
cuts expecied atter the outbreak of
CCVID-19. This virus led 1o lower
economIc activity, especially in China, in
the first weeks of 2020, and lcwer
demanc for oil. Instead of a cut In
groduction, the breax in the negatiations
enced with increased cil preduction and a
orice war between OPEC ang Russia. This
led to a dramatc fall in cil prices, followed
oy significant price declines i the world's
stock markets. Qil-exnosed companies
are nit espec.ally hard, mcluding Aker and
our nortfolo companies Aker BP, Aker
Sctutions, Akasior, Kvaerner and Ucean
Yield.

At the same time. the world has
experienced a serious anc rapia spread of
COVID-18. The World Fealth Organization
(WHQ) nas declared the sitat:on and the
virus a pandem:c. This tragic virus
ouibreax affects a significant number of
oeople, and it also affects businesses and
cconomias woridwidae, A recossion
sceneno is plausible, but e leng-term
glebal and national impacts on industries,
economic activity, ol prices and financial
markets are hard o predict given the
current sttuation The chalenging fimes
and uncertain market conditions will
rmpact the coming quarters, and this is
part of Aker's cngoing risk assessment in
tne future,

9. Risks and risk management

Aker has a leng-stanaing traditien of
indusrriat and fnancial risk-taking. The
company has evolved witn the economic
cycles and its stralegy nas adapted to
changes ir the underlying markets and
company-specific 1ssues 1 1ts nortfobo.
As presented in their respective notes to




the finrancial staiements, Axker ASA 1ne
Aker Group, ana Axer ASA ang nolging
COmpanIes are exposed Lo firanciai risk.
the oll price, currency ana interest rate
ris«, houidity risk, market risk, credit risk,
counterparty risk, and operational rsk in
the undertying companies

Rather than diversifying risk by spreading
mvestments aCrass many cifferent
indust-ies, Aker focuses on sectars where
e cemnpany has special expertise. The
company nas estaslisned a mocgel for risk
management based an the identification,
assessment and monitonng of Mmajor
‘inancial, strategic. climare-related, and
cperational risk factoers for each business
segment. Contingency glans nave been
prepared for these risk faciors ang their
implermentation is ensuired and
monitored. ldentified risk factors anc how
they are managed are reported to tne
board of Aker on a regular basis.

Aker's risk managerent 1s based on the
principle that risk assessment 1s a nasural
part of all susiness operations.
Conseguen:ly, management af
operational risk ligs primarly witn the

uncerlying operating companies, but Aker

ASA acuvely moniters risk management
thraugh its participation on the poards of
the various companies.

Aker's main strategy for mitigating risk
associated with shorz-terr value
fluctuations is to maintan a solid financial
position and strong creditworthiness.
Alker nas established financial guicelines
that regilate monmitoning and follow-up
for financial risk issues Key governance
parameters have geen identfied and are
closely monitored. A finance committee
has been appomted (o focus specifically
onissues ana decisions related to
financial investments, debt financing and
foreign exchange.

Financial market exposures, including
currency, interest, and liquidity risks, are
discussed in greater detall nNote 6 to
the consolidated financial statement.

The main risk factors o which Aker eng
its holding companies are exposed relate

to changes in the value of listed assets as
g result of fluctuations in market prices.
Develooments in the glchai economy,
particularly 1N energy prices. as well as
currency fluctuations, are imoortant
variaeias when assessing snert-term
market fluctuations. These variacles may
alsc influence the Lnderiving value of
Aker's unlisted assots, Axer ASA and ifs
n0lding companies are also exgosed 1o
the risk of insufficient access to external
financing wnich may a“fect the liquidity
situation in the cormpanes. This has oeen
further emphasised cy the increasec
attention on ESG issues, especially
climate-related investrrent risk Aker and
nortfolic companies seek to recuce the
risk by maintaining ¢ solid liquidity
reserve, and by proactively planning
refinancing activities. as well as strict
compiiance with environmental
regulations. Climate-refated ris«
conditions also present business
cpportunities for Aker ang por:felio
Cemaanies.

Like Aker, the companies in Aker's
industrizl perticlio are exposed to
commercial, financial ana market risks. In
aaditicn, these cempanies, througn therr
business activities within thelr respective
sectors, are 2lso exposed 1o risk factors
related to climate change, laws and
regulations, as well as political risk, suca
as policy decisions on petroleur taxes,
environmental regulations, and
operational framework conditions,
Including mejor accigents that may nave a
significant financial impact.

Oii prices continue 1c be volatile ang
constitute a source of uncertainty. Aker
BP's revenue anc cash flow are directly
atfected by fluctuations in oil prices, and
variations In oll prices can also impact the
activity level of Aker's oll service
comgpanies, including Aker Seiuticns,
Akastor and Kvaerner. The activity level
affects the supplie companies’ and
Ocean Yield's counterpartes, and the
companies are therefore monitoring
counterparty risk closely,

Faor furtner mformatign on Akaor's 71sk
AgeneNnt 590 tne fepgrion
Corporate Governance ava:dlable on the

COMzINY webstte,

10. Outiook

Investments 1n stea snares comprised 84
per cent ¢f the company's assets as per 3l
Decemriper 2013, AboLt 75 per cent of
Axer's vestments were asscoaten with
the ol and gas sector. T he remaimning
vajua is mainly founc in tne marifime
industry. Aker's net assect value will hence
oe mfluenced by 2 nurrper of factors,
nciuding fluctuations 1in market prices.
commodity prices, exchange rates and
ooberanonal performance.

Over the last seve al years. the oil service
incustry has been urger pressure ¢ue to
cutbacks in E&P spending. Tne oif
companies’ discinline foliow:na the oil
price collapse 1in 2014-2015 has led T0
fewer projects oeing sancioned globally
and lower activity levels for the oif service
industry The situation is likely to ne
further exacerbated 0y the ongoing
Corona-crisis as the oil companies are
apprehensive anout investing. AL the
same time, cost-cutting meesures and
increased cperational efficiency across
the industry nave brought down break-
even costs for otfshore projects Before
tne Corona-crisis nit markets, there was a
certain expectiation tha: the number ¢f
invesiment decisions in the ol indLustry
would increase. The Crisis is now
expected to trigger a decime in activity
level, which will lead to low utilisation of
availeple capacity intne service industry.
The overcapacity can penefit the
upstream all and gas companies and thus
improve cash flow even ar lower ol prices
tnan pefore.

Ol price volatility has, however. recently
peenillustrated once again by the
outbreax of the Corona virus and the
suibsequent il “price war” triggered by
strategic cisagrecments berween Squdi
Arabia and Russia. Aker is preparing for
many conceivable cutcomes and low ol
prices,

Despite the record-breaking drop in
glebal ol demand caused py the Torona



virus, Axer still pelieves 1 the meaqium
ionger terrr atiractiveness of ol and gas
investmen:s and w il there®cre continue
e evaluate strategic alterratives eng
cpperilnities in the sector Future i
demand growth s s:ill expected 0 be
supported oy the ongoing mega trends of
population growth, g growing migale
class and urbzrisation, particulerly in Asia
Cil supply grow:n 15 likely to De keplin
cnack oy OPEC s strategy, L&P
investnent appetite ane hgnzened
financial conditions, especially for the US
shale incustry. Another mega trend that is
likely to support o1l prices for the coming
years is the rising cost of caprtal for the
mndustry at iarge. The increased cost of
capital is nfluenced by rising focus on
ESC principles by both lenders end
mvestors, while today's iow oif prices
increase financial institutions’ scepticism
rowards financing the ol industry This
growing focus on ESG principles may
result in fower supply than demand
growth going farward, hence supgporting
rmarket prices Price volatility 1s expected
1o remain high also in coming years, out
Aker is wall-positioned o benefit from
such a gevelopment.

Aker BP, the largest asset In Aker's
portiolio, was in 2019 rated Investment
Grade by both rating cempany Fitch and
by S&P Global Ratings. This provicas the
Company access o lower cost of capital
in a world where many E&P companies
are exposed te higher cost of capitel
Aker's portfolic comganies 1In the oil and
gas sector will continue to increase

Kjell Inge Rekke (sign)
Chairman

Atle Transy (sign)
Director

Finn Berg Jacobsen (sign)
Depliy Chairrran

Tommy Angeltveit {sign)

compertivenass through increasec
oroductivity, efficiency, stangaraisation,
improved recnnclogy offerings, anc oy
explonng strazegic partheshigs and
alhiancas,

The marome leasing segment reguires
focus oncapital structure aversification.
Ccean Yiele hasdenufies interesing
Ivastrent CpRoriLnItes go.ng forward,
put main fogus snCrr termiis on re-
contracting Dhirubhat-1.

Aker BioMarine s pursuing a long-term
sirategy to diversify its market exposure
in terms of poth Industries 3nd
geographical coverage. its main marke:s
are the aquaculture ingustry - particularly
tne market for salmon farming
supplements - and the dietary
supolerent marxet in Eurcpe, North
America and Australia. The salmon
market has been devezloping positively for
several years The market for kriil-based
supplements in the consumer market
centinued to grow m 2019 ang 1s
undergoing a positive development.

Upstream dividends to Aker was
expecteq 1o increase furtherin 2020,
rainly gue fo the expected dividend
growth in Aker BP, as well as divigenas
from: Ocean Yield. In light of the glokal
Corona crisis and ensuing price war, 1115
too early to predict hew a lower ¢l price
will imoact decisions about dividendas.
Kvaarnar has dividend capacity, but
Aker’s focus remains on ensuring that the
olf service company maintains a strong

Fornebu, 31 March 2020
Aker ASA

Director

Kristin Krohn Devold (sign)

Director

Arnfinn Stense (sign)
Director

palance sheet and casn holdings. Tris
proviaes peneflts ana cortmertia
apcortunites for Kvaernar, Aker supports
tne boarcs' views tnat the portfolio
companies ~aintain robust casn holaings
N e current mar<et envarsamens

[1c Corona-virus and rar<et el
nave led to naw sItUations with waich
Axer and 1ne portfolic companies nave 1o
grepole, and measures are being aken to
oresarve e employees and profect the
companies’ values. For the garen:
cormpany Aker, with few employees and
relatively low operating costs iy relation
to the values managed under aciive
ownersug, salaries are the largest
expense item. As a resulr of tne increased
uncertainty, It has been decided that ne
salary adjusiment will pe carriec out for
Axer ASA employees in 2020, nor nas a
2020 honus program been launcnec.
Axer's President and CEO, @yvind
fri<sen, has asked that his salary be
reduced te half for the remainder of the
yvear, The Boarc is pregared to xeep the
board renumeration far 2020 in ine with
the 2019 level.

Shor: term fluctLations in the marxets can
orovide opporiunities for value-creating
Invesiments. As an industrial nvestment
company, Aker will contrioute to
developing the portfelio cormpanes and
to consider new investiments.

Karen Simon (sign)
Director

@yvind Eriksen (sign)
Presigent and CF0
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Income statement and total comprehensive income

INCOME STATEMENT

Note 2019 2018
Continued operations
Operat ng revenue gio 48 756 47163
Cost of goods and changes .n inventory (22 251 (17 867)
Wages and other perscnne. expenses 7 (15 884) (13 963)
{ther operatirg expenses 7 (6 693) (5 936)
Operating profit before depreciation and amortisation g 3928 4387
Depreciation and amortisation 151619 (2 780) (2097
Impairment charges 12,15,16,19 {992) (213)
Operating profit g 156 2087
Financial Income 13 605 704
Financial expenses i3 (2 681) (1987)
Share of profit of equity accounted companies 17 229 [SYA)
Profit before tax ] (1692) 1420
Income tax expense 14 (248) (490)
Profit for the year continued operations g {1940) 930
Discontinued operations
Profit for the period from discontinued operations net of tax 8 {64) 438
Result for the year (2 004) 1268
Attributable to:
Fouity holders of the parent g (1533) 906
Minority interests ] {471) 452
Resuit for the year {2 004) 1368
We ghted average number of cuistanding shares 23 74271928 74 282137
Earnings per share!” 23
Earnings per share continuea operations 20.33) 7.08
Earnings per snare discontinued operations (0.31) SN

Earnings per share {20.64) 1212
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TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Note 2019 2018
Rasult for the year (2 004) 1368
Other comarehensive income, net of income tax
Iters that will not be reclassif ed to income statemert
Defined benefit plar actuana! gains {losses) 27 (149) (82)
Cquity nvestments at FVYOC - net change It fair vaiLe 3 66
Itemns that wilt not be reclass:fied to ncome statement msy (16)
Items that subseguent y may be reclassified to income statement.
[Ceb: investments a: KO - net change in "air vaiue - 6
Cranges in fair vaiue of cash flow hadges n3 (95)
Reclass:fied to pofit or loss: debt investments at FVOC, trarslatior and cash flow hedges (145) (478)
Currency transiation differences 156 5%
Changes in other comprehensve income associates and jomt ventures 17 il 1133
ltems that subseguently may be reciass:fied to income statement 235 108]
Change in other comprehensive income, net of tax 137425 "7 1065
Total comprehensive income for the year (1887 2433
Attributable to:
Eguity holders of the parent (1351 229
Minority interests (536) 214

Total comprehensive income for the year (1887 2433




EE

Aker ALA 2 wort 2019

Balance sheet at 31 December
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Note 2019 208
ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 5 18 287 18 262
Intangible assets 6 12154 10876
Right-of-use assats 9 4 827
Deferred tax assets 14 1261 1059
Investmeanss in equity accounTes companias 17 20833 23348
Interest-bearing nor-current receivables 518 1140 18921
Non-current finance lease receivabies 19 13513 91383
COther shares anc non-current assets 20 2236 212
Total non-current assets 74 252 67 070
irventories 21 1838 1752
Trade recelvables anc other interest-free receivables 22 15 552 1346
Calcuiated tax recewvable 4 133 146
Cerwvatives 31 229 406
interest-hearing current receivables 518 642 451
Current finance lease recewvables 2 2040 -
Cash and cash eguivalerts 69 12 018 9786
Total current assets 32454 25 688
Total assets g 106 706 92 758




Ay n Apeag et B P e e o
Arnud atcounts [ Au il

MAxor AShanmual renon TG <L

Note 2419 2078
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Paid- n capital 23 2332 2331
Translation and other reserves 25 3855 2618
Retained earnings 12 653 16 061
Total equity attnbataosle to equity notders of the parent 18 840 22009
Minerity interests 24 20414 19 908
Total equity 39253 41 918
Interest-bearing non-current liabiities 6.26 33425 24745
Non-current lease liabiities 9 5751 -
Ceferred tax liabilities 14 661 515
Pension liabilities 27 1309 1181
Other interest-free non-current liab.iities 28 1222 837
Non-current provisions 28 101 22
Tatal non-current liabilities 42 470 27 499
Interest-heanng current hiabilities 626 6 762 5682
Current lease liabilities 9 a31 -
Trade and other payables 30 15 160 14 529
Income tax payable 14 nz 168
Dervatives 37 414 585
Current provisions 29 1673 2343
Total current liabilities 24 957 23 306
Total liabllities 67 427 50 806
Liabilities classified as held for sale 8 26 24
Total equity and liabilities 9 106 706 92758
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

e DUt S

Total
equity of
Totai equity
Tota Trans- Far translation holders
paic-ir - lauen value bedoing  and other Retaned of the Minority Total
Note  caplta. reserve reserves reserves  reserves eamnings parent interests equity
Balance at 31 December 2017 23-25 233 2370 N3 52 2545 16279 21155 18505 40059
Impact of changes N accounting pohcies z - 4 (313 42 (267 230 23 22 45
Balance at 1 January 2018 233 2374 (200 105 2278 16569 21178 18527 40105
Proft for the year 2218 - - 306 906 462 1368
Otner comprehens.ve income 25 - 1348 86 (94) 1340 27 1313 (248) 1065
Total comprehensive income - 1348 86 (94> 1340 879 2219 214 2433
Dividends - (1338 (1338) (499) (1836)
QOwn shares and share-based payrment transactions - (26) (26) - {26)
Total contributions and distributions - - - - (1364) (1364) 499y (1862)
Acquisition and sale of minority 7,24 - - a7y an 37 20
IssJance of shares in subsidiaries 24 - - (83 9) 1729 1220
Total changes in ownership without change of control - - - (26) (26) 1266 1240
Transaction with mingrity interasts in joint ventures - Z 2 - 2
Balance at 31 Decemnber 2018 23-25 2331 3722 (1i4) 10 3618 60681 22009 19908 4% N8
Correction previous year - - - - (21 2n (53) (80}
Impact of changes in accounting policies 3 - - - - - (1333 (133 (236} {369)
Balance at 1 January 2019 233 3722 M4y 10 3618 15 807 271 855 19613 41469
Profit for the penod 2019 - - (1533 (1533 471) (2 004)
Other cormprehensive income 25 - 287 9 (59) 2%7 (55) 182 6} n7
Total comprehensive income - 287 9 (59} 237 (1588) (t 35D (536) (1887)
Dividends - - as/m (16A) (676) {2 347)
Own shares and share-based payment transactions 1 - 13 14 - 14
Total contributions and distributions ] (1658 {1657) (676) (2 333)
Acguisition and sale of minority 7.24 - - 9 9 4] 50
lssuance of shares in subsidiaries 24 - (1G] {16) 1971 1955
Total changes in ownership without change of control - - - - D (7 2012 2 005
Balance at 31 December 2019 23-25 2332 4009 (105) (48) 2855 12653 18840 20414 39253
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Cash flow statement

Aker ASA annual resort 7008

hote 2019 2018
Profit before tax (1692) 1420
Net interest expenses 13 1912 1274
Sales losses/gains (-} and write-downs 1052 240
Unrealised fereigr: exchange gain/loss and ozher non-cash items Kin)] 135
Deprecialion and aMorlsanon 576 2780 2097
Share of earnings in associates and [oint venturas 7 (563) (1019
Dividend received from associates and [oint ventures i7 3263 1787
Charges due to discontinued operations and other net operaiing assets and habilities (1815 809
Cash flow from operating activities before interest and tax 5242 6743
Interest paid {2 266) (1566)
Interest received 502 270
Taxes paid (200) {185)
Net cash flow from operating activities 3278 5262
Proceads from sales of property. plant, equipment and mtangible assets 56 38 204
Proceeds from sales of shares and other equity investments 303 520
Disposals of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed 8 3 1786
Acauisitions of subsidianes, net of cash acguirea 7 (905) (205)
Acguisitions of property, piant, equ.pment and intangible assets 1516 (3 409) (2215
Acguisitions of shares and equity Investments in other comparnies (262) a8
Acquisition of vessels accounted for as finance lease 19 (5 004) (3343)
Net ¢asr flow from other investments 18 346 (396)
Net cash flow from investing activities (8 890) (4 667)
Proceeds from issue of interest-bearing debt 26 16 772 9129
Repayment of interest-bearing deb: 26 (71N4) (7 3155
Rapayment of lease liabilities 18 {762) -
Net repayment and issue of interest-bearing debt 8896 1814
New equity 24 1383 917
QOwn shares {55) (37
Dividends paid 23,24 (2 347) (1737
Net cash flow from transactions with owners 1019) (857)
Net cash flow from financing activities 7 877 957
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 2 265 1552
Effects of changes in exchange rates on cash (33) 86
Cash and cash eguivalents at 1 January 9786 8148
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December g 12018 3786

A
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Notes to the financial statements

Note 1| Corporate information

Akar ASAis a company domicien i Norway, with headquarters a: Fornebu outside Oslo, and listec on the Gslo Steck [xchange with the ticker
"AKER". Akar's 2018 consolidatec financial statements include the financial statements of the parent company. Aker ASA, its subsicianes, and i~terests

in associated comparies and jointly controlled entities.

Note 2 | Basis for preparation and estimates and assumptions

2.1 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

Aker has prepared ts consolidated financial stetements n accordance
with IFRS and associated interpretations as determined by the EU as at
3i December 2019 and Norwegian disc.osure requirements pursuant to
the Norwegian accounting act as ai 31 December 2018, The consolidated
financial statements have been preparec on a historical cost basis, with a
few exceptions descr bed in sect.on 2.5.

The 2018 consclidated financial statements were approved by the Board
of directors on 31 March 2020. The annual accounts wili be submitted to
Aker's annual generai meeting on 27 April 2020 for final approval.

2.2 FUNCTIONAL CURRENCY AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

The consclidated financial statements are presentad in million Norwegaian
kroner. The Norwegian krone (NOK) is the functional currency of the
parent company. As a result of rounding differences, amounts and
percentages may not add up to the total.

2.3 USE OF ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparatior of annual financial staternents in conformity with IFRS
reguires managament (o make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, .ncome and
expenses. Actual results may differ from amounts arrived at based on
these assumptions. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
and assessed on an on-going basis, and are based on historical
experience, consultations with experts. trends and other methods which
management considers regsonable under the circumstances. Changes to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estirmnates
are revised and in future periods if affected.

Areas In which, in applying the group’s accounting principles, there tends
to be uncertainties as to matenat estimations and criticat assumptions
and assessmants, are described in the following paragraphs and n
ralevant notes to the accounts. The group’s operational companies
operate in different markets and are thus affectec differently by the
uncertainties that characterise the different markets.

(a) Consolidation

IFRS 10 contains a definition of controd, which must be applied when an
Irvestor is to assess whether an investment must be consolidated in the
consolidaiec financia. statements. The assessmant of control involves
Pigh degree of judgements. See Note 9.

(b) Revenue recognition

Revenue from construction contracts anc other contracts with
customers where the performance obligations are satisfied over ttme. are
recogrised according to progress This method requires estimates of the
final revenue and cos:s of the contract, as well as costs incurred 1o date,

For contract revenue, there are uncestainties reiated to recoverable
amounts from varial.on arders and incentive payments. Taese are
recognised when iz is deemed o be ighly probable that a sanificant
revenue reversal will nct occu-. Contract revenue s ad-ustec by
management's evatdation of hguidated damages to be imposed by
customers typically relating {o conractual delivery terms.

The preject costs depend on preductivity factors and the cost of inputs.
Weather conditions, the performance of subcontractors and others with
an impact on schedules, commaodity prices and currency ratas can all
affect cost estimates, Although experence, use of the established project
execurion mode: and high corpetence reduce the risk, there will always
be uncertamty refated to such assessments.

The estimation uncertainty during *he early stages of a contract is often
large. No profit s recognised uniess the oufcome of a performance
obligation can be measured reliably, Usuially at approximately 20 per cent
progress. However, management can on a project-by-project basis give
approva. of earlier recognition if tne uncertainties of cost estimates are
low. This is typ:ca ly in situations of repeat projects. proven technology or
proven executior maodel. See Note & and 10,

(c) Warranty provisions

At the comrpletior of a project, a provision s made for expected
warranty expenditures. Based on experience, the provision 1s often set at
one per cent of the contract value, but can also be a hugher or lower
amaunt following a specific evaluation of the actuat circumstances for
each contract. Both the general one per cent grovisier: and the
evaluation of preject specific crcumstancas a-e based on exaenence
from earlier projects. Facters that could affect the estimated warranty
cost inciude the group’s quality initiatives. Provisions are presented in
Note 25.

(d) Impairment testing of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite
usefuf lives

In accordance with applicable accounting principles. the group performs
annua. impairmert tests to dezermine whether goodwill and intangible
assets recorded in the balance sheet have suffereq any impairment. The
estimarted recoverable amount for cash-generating units are determinec
pased on the present value of budgeted cash flows or estimarad sales
value less cost to sel if higher. See Note 12,

(e) Tax

The group is subject to income taxes in numerous furisdictions.
Significant judgment is “equired to determine provisions for income
taxes worldwide. Aker incurs an income-tax payable and/or earns a
considerable tax receivab 2. The group also recegnises changes in
deferred tax or deferred tax benefits. These figures are based on
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manacement's interpretation of aoplicabie laws and regulaticrs. and
relevan: court decisiors. The quality of these estimates s argely
dependen: on management's abhity -¢ apply complex set of rules, ts
aolity to identify cnanges to existing rules and. in the case of deferrec
tax berefits, 115 ablity zo project furdre earnings from which a loss carry-
forward may oe deductec for tax purposes. See Note 14,

(f) Financial instruments

The grouc is 2xposed to vanous risks resulting from its use of financia
irstrurnents This ircludes cradit nsk, agaidity nisk and marxet risk
{including currency- anc interest rate nisk). Note 6 and Note 31 present
information about the group's exposure to each of these risks, the
group’s chrectives, the principies and precesses for measuring and
maragirg risk, and the grous's capital management.

(g) Contingent assets and fabilities

As aresult of their extensive worldwide operations. group comparies
somatimes become nvolved 11 legal disputes. Provisions have been
made to caver the exoected outcomes of the disputes where negative
outcomes are likely and reliable estimates can be prepared. However, the
final outcormne of these cases will always be subject to uncertainties and
resulting Labilizies may deviate from bocked provisions. See Note 32,

h) Acquisition costs - exploration

The accounting policy of Aker's subsidiary Aker Energy is to temporarily
recognise expenses relating to the drilling of exploration wells in the
balance sheet as capitalised exploration expenditures. pendng an
evaluation of potential ol and gas discoveries. If resources are not
discovered, or (f recovery of the rescurces is consideres technicalty or
commercially unviable, the costs of expioration wells are expensed
Decisions as toc whether this expenditure should remain capitalised or be
expensed during the pernod, may materially affect the operating resJlt
for tnhe period.

2.4 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
The Group uses valuation techriques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which suff.cient data are avallable to measure fair
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value, maxiris rg the use of relevant observabie inputs ang minimising
the use of unobservable Nnputs

All assets ard labilizies for which far values are measuras or disclosed in
the finarcial statements a-e caiegenssd within the fair vaiLe hierarchy,
describeq below, nasec on the lowest level of ingut that s signmificant to
the fair value measurement as a who &:

s |evel T Quoted (Gnadjusted) marxet prices in active markets for
ident cal assets or | abilities,

= Level 2 Valuation technigues for which the lowest level nput that is
significant to the fair value meaasurement is directly or inQirectly
observable.

s | evel 3 Valugton techmigues for which the lowest level inpus that is
significant to the fair valLe measurement Is unooservabie

The Group determines whether transfers have occurred between fevels
In the mierarchy by re-assessirg categorisation a; the end of each
reporting peried.

For the purpose of fair vaiue disclosJdres, the groug has determined asset
and liakbility classes based on their nature, characteristics and associated
risks, and the applicable lavel within the ‘air vaiLe herarchy. See Note 31,

2.5 BASIS OF MEASUREMENT
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on & historical
cost basis, with except for the following tems:

»  Dervative financial instruments a-e measured at fair value

»  MNon-denvative financial instruments at fair va.ue through profit and
loss are measured at fair value

= Debtinstruments at fair value through orefit and (088 are measured
at fair value

»  Contngent consideration assumed in business combinations are
measured at farr value

ax Net defined benefit asset or ability s -ecognised at fair value of plan
assats less the present value of the defined beneafit obligation

Note 3 | Changes in accounting policies

The Graup has inizially adopted iFRS 16 Leases from 1 January 2018,
Other new standards and amendments are effective from t January 2018,
bt except for the change describec under section 3.5 below, they do
not have a material effect on the Group's financial statements.

IFRS 16 Leases replaces I1AS 17 Leases and related interpretations The
new standard introduces a single, on-balance sheet accounting model for
lessees, with optional exemptions for shart-term leases and leases of low
value iterrs. A lessee -ecognises a right-of-use asset representing its
right to use the underiving assets and a lease ligbitty representing its
obligation to make lease payments. Lessor accountirg remains similar to
pravious accounting polic.es. The details of the changes inaccountng
polictes are gisclosed below.

The Group assesses whether a contract 5 or contains a lease based on
the new definition of a lease. Under [FRS 16, 2 contract is, or contains, &
lease If the contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

3.1 LEASES IN WHICH THE GROUP IS A LESSOR

The accounting policies applicable to the Group as a8 lessor are not
different from those under INS 17 {owever, wnen the Group is an
intermediate lessor, the subleases are classified with reference to the
right-of-use assets arising from the heac lease. not with reference to the
uncerly ng asset.

3.2 LEASES IN WHICH THE GROLIP IS A LESSEE

The Groug has recognised new assels and liabilities for its operating
leases of warehouses, rental of offices and factory facilities and mactines
and vehicles. The nature of expenseas related to those leases has charged
because the Group has recognisea a depreciation cnarge for nght-of-use
assels and interest expenses on lease liabilities.

However, the Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease labiities for short termr 1gases and for leases of low-valLe assets
(e.g. 1T equipment). The Group recognises the lease payments assoc ated
with these leases as an @xpense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.
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3.3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.3.1 Right-of-use asset

The Group recogrises anght-of-use asse: gt the lease comrmencement
date The night-of-use asset s niniaky measured at cost, ard
subseguentiy a: cost Iess any accumulated depeciation and tmpairment
iosses anc ad ustec for certain remeas.rements of the lzase | abllity. The
cost of nght-of-use asser includes the amount of 12ase | ability

recogn sed, initigl direct costs incurred, and the lease payments made at
or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received,
Tre right-cf-use asse: 15 generally depreciated on a straignt-l ne-basis
over tne snorter of its estimated usefu! bfe and the lease term, and 15
skbject to impairment assessment of non-financia, assets.

3.3.2 Lease Hability

The lease liability 1s nitially measured a: the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discountea
using the interest rate implhcitin the lease ar, If that rate cannot e
readily determined, the Group's imcremental borrowing rate. Gene<ally,
the Group uses its ncrermental borrowing rate as the discount rate. The
lease payments include fixed payments and vanabie lease payments that
dapend on an index ¢r rate. The variable lease payment that does not
depend on an index or rate 15 recogrised as expense in the penod in
which it 1s Incurred.

The lease hablity s subsequently ncreased by the interest cost on the
lease Hiability and decreased by lease payments made. it is remeasurec
when there is a change in future lease pavments arising from a ¢hange in
an index or rate, a change in the estimate of the amounts expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantes, or as appropriate, changesin
the assessment of whether a purchase or extersion option is easonably
certain to be exercised or a termination option is rezsonakly certain not
to be exercised

3.3.3 Lease term

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable terre of the
lease, together with any periods cavered by an option to extend the
lease if it is reasonatly certain to be exercised, or any peried covered by
an option to terminate the lease if it is ~easonably certain not tc be
exercised,

3.4 TRANSITION

The Group has appled IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective
apnroach, undear which the cumalative effec: of in tial application is
recogrised as an ad.ustment to the open.ng balance of retained earmings
and minority at 1 January 2019, Accordingly, the comparative information
prasented for 2018 has not been restated - e it is presented. as
previously reported, under 1AS 17 and related interpretations.

At transition, for leases classified as operating leases under 1AS 17, -ease
llabiliies were measured at the present value of the remaining lease
payments. discounted at the Group’s incremental boTowing rate as at
January 2019, Right-of-use assets are measured at either:

w  Tharr carrying anrounts as if IFRS 16 had been appled since the
commencement date, discounted using the lessee's incremental
borrowing rate at the date of initial application; or

= Anamount egual to the lease liabliity, ad;usted by the amrount of any
prepaid or accrued lease payments.

e Group used the following pract.ca: expedients when applying IFRS
16 to leases previously classified as operating leases under I1AS 17

" Appied the exemptior not Lo recognise right-o0°-Lse asse: and
habil:nes for leases with less than 12 months of lease termr.

= Excluded iritial d.rect costs from measuring the right-of-use asse: at
the date of mtizl application.

s Non-tease components for housing cortracts. machines and venicles
15 NOt separatad.

»  Reiied on assessment of whether leases are onerous appiying 1AS 37
on 31 December 2018 as an alternative to performing an imoairment
review of right-of-use assets for aif leases on 1 January 20°9.

The impact on transilion L~ Jaruary 2079 15 summanised below:

Property, plant and eguipment (1335
Rignt-of-use assets 5243
Finance lease recelvables 789
Interest bearing receivables )
Deferrec tax assers 90
Current gperating assets (32
Adjustments to assets 5935
Lease liabilities 677
Current cperating liabllities, nclecing provisions (279)
Trade and other payables {234)
Adjustments to liabilities 6 258
Retained earnings/minarity (323)
Adjustments to equity (323)

When measuring lease labilities “or leases that were ciassified as
operating leases, the Group discounted lease payments using its
incrementa! borrowing rate at © January 2079, The weighted average rate
appledis ntherange of 3.4 - 5.3 per cent.

Reconciliation of aperating lease commitment as of 31 December 2018
and recogrised lease llabiizies as of 1 January 201915 summarised below:

Qperating lease commitment a: 31 December 2016 8228
Less exemption for leases of low-valLe assets (203)
Less exemption for leases with less than 12 menths of lease

term at transizion 148)
I substance fixed lease payments not included in lease

comrmitments 237
Option periods not previously reported as lease

commitments and other adjustments 15
Undiscounted lease liability 8129
Effect of discounting to net present vaiue (1358)
Lease liabilities recognised at 1 January 2019 67N

3.5 OTHER CHANGES TQO ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Aker BP has previously recogrised revenae on the basis of the oropertionate
share of productior during the period, regardless of actual sales {entitlernent
meathod) Due to development 1n FRIC discussions, Aker BF decided to change
to the sales method from 1 January 2019. This means that changes in
over/underlift balances are valLed at production cost inciuding depreciation and
presented as an adiustnent to cost. The effect in the Aker Group is a reduction
ofequity of NOK 47 million, with 2 corresponging reduction of the investment.
In the Aker Group, the change has been impiementea as a change in eguity as
at 1 January 2018, without any restatement of comoaratives.
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Note 4 | New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

Certain new accounting standards and terpreiations have been publshea that are not mancatery for the vear erd.rg 31 December 2019, The groug
has chosen not to early adopt any new or amended standards i~ preparing the consolidated financial statements for 2619 None of these standards are
expected to have a matenal impact on the ¢consolidames accoants an implementation

Note 5 | Accounting principles

The accounting princ ples preserted below have beer apphad
consistently ‘or all pericds and companies that are presentea in the
consohdated finangia statements, Cormparat ve figures have been
restated in accordance with this year's presentation, see however
nformation provided in Note 3 regarding IFRS 16 Leases.

5.1 GROUP ACCOUNTING AND CONSQOLIDATION PRINCIPLES

5.1.1 Subsidiaries

Subsidianes are compeanies controtled by Aker. Contral requires three

elements:

2. ownership interests that give the investor power to direct the
relevant activities of the investee,

b. that the nvestor 1s expesed to variable returns from the investee,
and that

c. decision-making power allows the investor to affect 1ts variable
returns from the invastee.

Subsicianies are included in the consolidated accounts from the day
control is achieved and until control ceases.

Acquisitions of companies that meet the definition of a business
corrbxination are recognised using the acquisition method, See further
description in section 5.8 Intangible assets. Acquisitions of companies,
which are not detinec as business combinations, are recorded as asset
acguisitons. The cost of such purchases is allocated between the
individual identifiable assets and labilities acgui-ed based on their fair
values on the acquisition date. Goodwil: is not recogrised in connection
with such acquisit.ons, nor s deferrec tax recogrised in connectior with
differences ansing in the recognition of such assets.

Minonty interests have been disclosed separately from the parent
comaany owners’ equity and habilit.es nthe balance sheet, and are
recorded as a separate item in the consolidated profit and loss account.

5.1.2 Investments in associates

An associate is defined as a company over which the group has
significant In‘lugnce, but which 1s not a subsidiary nor a joint
arrangement. Significant influence is the power to partcipate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, without having
control or joint control of those policies. The group’s Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method and are initially
recogrised ar cost. Receives dividends are recognised as a reduction of
the book value of the investment, and are presented as part of net cash
flow from operatirg activities in the cash flow statement.

Investrnents incluce goodwill upon acguisition less any accumuiated
impairment losses. The consolidated financial statements reflect the
growp’s share of the assoc ate’s profits or losses and equity changes,
after restatement to comply with the group's accounting pringiples, from
the time s:ignificant influence 1s established until suck influence ceases. If

the group’s share of accumulated losses exceeds its nterest in the ertity,
the group does not recogrise further losses unless it has incarred or
guaranteed obhigations with respect 1o the assodiate. if control is
achieved in stages. goodwil 1s measured on the date control s ontained.
ang any changes in the vaue of previous.y neld equity interasts are
recogrisea as profits or losses,

5.1.3 Interests in joint arrangements

A joint arrangement is a contractual arrangement whereby two or more
parties undertake an economic activity that is subject to joint control. A
oIt arrangemant is eitner a joint veniure or a ot operazon. ihe
classification of a joint arrangement as a joint venture or a joint operation:
depends upor the rights and obhgations of the parties to the
arrangemert. A joint venture s a Joint arrangement wrhereby the partias
tha: have joint control of the arrangement have nghts (o0 the net assets
of the arrangemenrt. A joint operation 1s 3 jaint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joinl control of the arrangement have rights to the
assets, and obligations for the liabiities, refating 1o the arrangement.

Joinz ventures are accounted for using the equity method and are inizally
recognised at cost. Recaived dividends are recognised as a reductior. of
the book vaiLe of the investment, and are presentec as part of net cash
flow from operating activities in the cask fiow statemert.

The subsidiary Aker Encrgy has a 50 per cent ownership interestin a

| cense offsnore Ghana, whick is classified as joint operations under IFRS
. The group recognisas the investment oy reporting 1ts share of relateq
revenues, expenses, assets, Habiiities and cash flows under the respachive
items in the financial statemnents.

5.1.4 Elimination of transactions upen consolidation

Intragroug balances and transactions, and any unrealised gans and
losses or revenues and expenses arising from intragroup transachiors,
are elimirated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unreahsed gains ansing froem transactions with equity accounted
investees are eliminated against the nvestment to the extent of the
group’s interast in the investee,

5.1.5 Foreign currency transiations and transactions

ltemns are initially recorded in the financial statements of each subsidiary
in the subsidiary’s functional currency. 1. the currancy that best reflects
the economic substance of the underlyirg events and c.rcumstances
relevant to that subsidiary Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency of the respective subsidiary using the
exchange rates prevailing on the date of each transact on. Recgivables
and labilities in foreign currencies are translatec into the functional
currency using the exchange rates on the balance sheet date. Foreign
currency exchange qains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the trarslation of monetary assets and

N BT AN S £y
PIQDOAL LG =



3l

ARor ASA &N

liabilizes deno™inated in foreugn currencies ane recognised in the profit
and i0ss accounrt,

The consolidated financia: statements are presented in Norwegian

kroner. Finarcial statements of subsigiaries whose functiona. currencies

gre different from the presentation currency (NCK are translated irte

NOK In the fo.lowing way:

s Balance shect iterns are trarslated Lsing the exchange rates on the
balance sheer date

s Prohtor loss items are translated using the average exchange rates
for the period (17 the average exchange rates for the period do not
provide a fair estimate of the transaczon rate, the actual transaction
rate 1s Jsed>.

Translation differences arising from the translatior: of net investmenisin
foreign operations and from related hedgirg objects are specifiec as
trarslation differences in other comprehensive Income, and a-e specif.ed
under sharehoiders' eqguity. Wen & foraign entity 15 sold, translation
d.fferences are recognised in the profit and loss account as part of the
gamn or loss on the sale. Foreign exchange gains or losses on receivables
from and labilities payable t¢ a foreign entity are -ecognised in the profit
and loss, excepr when settlement is neither planned nor Lkely (o occur in
the foreseeable future. Such foreign exchange gains and losses are
considered to form part of the net invesiment in the foreign activity and
are recogrised in other comprehensive iIncome as trans ation differences.

5.2 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

A discontinuea operation s 2 component of the group’s business
operations that represents a separate, major line of business or a
geographical area of operations that has peen disposed of or is held for
sale, Classification as a discontinued operation gecurs at the earlier of
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria o be ¢ assified as held
for sale.

Profits or losses from discontinued operations {after tax), are reclassified
and presentec as a separate ine item in the financial statements. The
comparatives are restated accordingly

5.3 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS AND OTHER INCOME
5.3.1 Revenue from contracts with customers

IFRS 1% Revenue from Contracts with customers establishes a five-step
method that applies to all customer contracts. Under the standard, only
approved customer contracts with a firm commitment are basis for
reveque recegnition. Variation orders are inciudec when they have been
approved, either verbally, in writing, or implied by custcmary business
practice. The deliveries in the contracts are reviewed tc ident fy distinct
perfarnance chiligations, and revenue is recognised in ling with how the
entity satisfies these perfarmance chligatiors - eitherovertimeor at a
poINT in time. This assessmant may involve signif cant judgement. For
contracts with customers for which the performance obligations a-¢
satisfred over tme, revenue is recogrised over time using a cost progress
method. For contracts with customers for which the performance
obhgations are satisfied at & point in time, revenue is racognised at the
point In tme when the customer obtains control of the product or the
service. Detalls of the accounting policies and the nature of performance
obligations for each of the majer types of custemer contracts are set out
helow.

Construction contracts

Under construchicn contracts, speclabses products ara buiit according to
a customer's specifications and the assets have no aiternatve use to the
group. if a construction contract 's terminated by the customer, the
group has a1 enforceabie right to payment for the work compietea to
date. The contrac:s usually establish a miiestone payment schedule

The g-cup has assessec that performance obligazions are satisfied over
time and revenue from construction performance obligations 1s
recognisec according to progress The progress 1S measured using an
input meshod that best dep.cts the group's performance. The 1nput
method used to measure progress is determined by reference to the
costs meurrec to date relative to the total estimatec contract costs.
Project costs include casts directly relared to the specific contract and
indirect costs attrbutable to the contract.

Variahle considerations, such as iIncentive payments, are includeg in
construction revenue when 1t s hghly probable that a significant
revenue reversal will nct occur. Disputed arrounts are only recogriseg
when negotiations have reached an advanced stage, cuastcmer
acceptance is nighly likely, and the amounts can be measJred rebabily.
Contract modifications, usually in the form of vanation orders, are enly
accounted for when they are aoproved by the customers. Contract costs
are mainly expensed as incurred. Expected Iguidated damages (LD) are
recognised as a reduction of the transaction price unless it is highly
probable that LDs will not be incurred. The transaction price of
performance onligations is ad usted for significant financing companents
to reflect the time value of money. Financing components may exist
when the expected Ume period between the transfer of the promised
goods and services and the payment 15 more than twelve manths.

when the final outcorne of a performance cbligation cannot be rehably
astimated, contract revenue is -ecogrised only to the extent of costs
incurred that a-e expected to be recoverable. The full Ioss is “ecognised
immeadiately when identified on loss-making contracts.

Services revenue

Service revenue is recognised over time as the services are provided. The
revenue is recognised according to progress ar using the irvoiced
amounts for the pernod when these directly correspond with the value of
the services that are transferred to the customers in the period. Progress
is normally measured using an input metnod, by reference of costs
incurred to da‘e relative to the total estimared costs

Sale of standard products

This revenue type involves sale of products or equ.pment that are of a
standard nature, not made according to the customer's specifications.
Customers usually obtain control of these products when the goods are
delivered to the customers in accordance with the contract terms. The
group has assessed that the performance obligauons for such products
are satisfied at a point in time, and revenue from these performance
obligations is recognrised &t that poms m time.

5.3.2 Revenue from charter agreements

Revenues related to vessel barenoat charter agreements are recognisec
over the charter period. Time-charter agreements may Include a
revenug-sharing agreement with the charterer. Revenue related to profit
sharing agreements is recagrised when the amount can be reliably
estimated.
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5.3.3 Other income

Cains and iosses resd 119 from acguisit.on and dispasal of businesses
which do not represent discontinuac operat.ons are inciuded in Other
income within operat ng profit. N case of acguisitions N s:ages such
gains may come from the rameasurement oF previous'y held interests in
the acgurrad entity.

5.4 PENSION BENEFITS AND SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

5.4.1 Pension benefits

For defined benefit plans. the liability ~ecognised is the defined benefit
obligat on as a: the balance sheet date, minus the fair vaiue of plar
assets. The defined henefit ohhiganon s calculated by Independent
actuaries and 15 measured as the present value of estimatec future cash
cutflows The pensicn cost s allocated to profit and loss over the
employees’ estimatec time of service. Actuarial gains and losses arising
from experience adjustrnents, changes in actuarnal assumptiors, and
amendments to pens on pigns are recognised N other comprenansve
income ("OCI"). The net Intarest expense for the period is calculated by
applying the discodnt rate {o the nat defined benefit liability, thus
comprises both interest on the liability and the return on the pension
plan assets. The difference betweer the actual return on the persion plan
assets and the recogrised return is recognised against the OClon an
ongoing basis,

For defined contribution plans, contributions are paid into pension
irsurance plans, Contributions to defined contribution plans are charged
to the profit and loss account in the peariod to which the contributions
relate

5.4.2 Share-based payments
Share-based payment expense 1s measured at far value over the service
period. All changes in fair value are recogrised in the income $:tatement,

5.5 EXPENSES

5.5.7 Lease agreements (as lessee)

The grour has nitially applied IFRS 16 Leases from 1 January 2019,
Informmation about the effect of initially @oplying IFRS 16 and the group’s
acceunting policies relating to leases are provided in Note 3.

5.5.2 Finance expenses

Finance expenses comprise interest expense on borrowings, unwinding
of the discount on provisions, changes in the farr value of financial assets
at fair value through profit or foss, impairment losses recogrised on
financiai assets, and lasses on hedging instruments that are recognised in
profit or loss. Borrowing costs not directly attributable to the acquisition
or production of a qualifying asset are recognised in profit or loss using
the effective-interest method. Foreign currency gains and losses are
reported on a net basis.

5.5.3 Income tax

Income tax compnises current and deferred tax. Aninceme tax expense
is recogrised in the profit and loss account unless it relates to items
recogn sed directly in ecuity, In which ¢case it s ~ecognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable incomne for the
year. Using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted as at the balance
sheet date. and any agdjustments to tax payab e in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax is calculated based on the temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and the amounts usec for

taxatior pdrposes. Deferrec tax is meas.red a7 the tax rates that are

expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse.

Deferrec tax 1s 1ot recogrised for the foliowirg temporary differences:

= nitial recognition of assets or habilizes n a transaction that is "ot 2
busingss corrbination and that af‘ects neither accounting ror
taxable profit.

= differences relating to Investmen:s n ;oint ventures, if 1L :s orobable
that they will not reve-se in the foreseeable future.

= tax-increasing temporary differences dpon ininuai “ecognition of
goodwi .

Deforrec tax asses ano | abilities are offset if:

= thereis 3 legaly enforceab e night 1o offset current tax kabilities and
assets

s fhey reiate to ncome taxes levied Dy the same tax authonty on the
same taxable entity, or on dfferent taxabie entit.es that intend to
settle current tax habilizies and assets on a net basis, or to realise
thelr tax assets and l.abilities s multanecusly.

A deferrec tax asset will be recognsed if it 1s pronable that future
taxabie profits will be avaiable against which the temporary difference
can be utilsed.

5.6 INVENTORY

Inventory is stated a: the lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost is
determined by the first-in first-out (FIFQ) methed, or the weighted
average cost formula depending on the nature of the inventory, The cost
of fnished goods and work in progress comprisas raw matenals. direct
labour and other direct costs. and relaled production overhead (based
on normal operating capacity). Net reahsable valug 1s the estimated
selling price m the ordinary course of business, less the costs of
completion and selling expenses

5.7 PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT

5.7.1 Recognition and measurement

An item of property, plant and eguipment is recognised as an asset if it s
probable that the future ecenomic benefits associated with the assets
will low to the group, and its cost can be refiably measured. Property,
plant and egquipment 1s measured at cost less arcumulated depreciation
and impairrmert losses.

Cost includes expenditures directly attnibutable to the asset’s acquisition
and if material the costs of dismantlng and removing the tems and
restoring the site on which they are located. The cost of self-constructed
assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any orher costs
directly attributable to bringing the asse: to a working condition for its
intended use. Barrowing costs assoc.ated with loans to finance the
construction of property, plant and equiprment are capitalised over the
perod necessary to compilete an asser and make it ready for its intended
use. Other barrowing costs are expensed. When significant parts of an
itern of property. plant, and equipment have different useful Ives. major
componenss are accounted for as separate items of property, plant, and
equipment.

A gainor loss on the disposal of an item of property, plan: and
equ-pment Is determinea by comparing the disposal proceeds witn the
carrying ameunt of that item; any 1oss is .ncluded m impairmean: Charges.

5.7.2 Subsequent costs
The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is
recogrised in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that future
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econcmic benefits associated with the asset wiil ‘low to the group and 1ts
cost can be measured reliab.y. The carrying amount of the repiaced part
15 derecognised The costs of day-to-uay maintenarce of property. pant
and eg.upment are recogrises In profil and 085 as mcurred.

5.7.3 Depreciation

Depreciation 1s -ecogrised 1 profit and 10ss ¢n a straight-| ne Dasis over
the estimatec useful Iife of eack major component of an item o
property, olant and equipment Leased assets are depreciated over the
shorter of the iease term or the asset's useful ife. uniess itis highly
probable that the groug will acquice ownership at the end of the lease
term. Land is not depreciated. Depreciation methods, useful fives, and
residual values are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

5.8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

5.8.1 Goodwill

All business combirations in the grourg are recogrised using the
acquisicion method. Goodwill reprasens values ansing from the
acquIisiions of sudsidiaries, associates, and joint ventures. Goodwill 13
alocated to cash-generating units and is tested annually for impairment.
For associates and joint ventures, the carrving amount of goodwili s
inctiudeq ir the carrying amount of the iInvestment in the associates.
Negative goodwil arising on an acguisition is recognised directly inthe
proft and loss account. Minority interests are measured at the net value
of identifiable assets and l:abilities in the acquired company or at fair-
value including a goodwill element. The method of measurement is
deciced individually for each acquisition.

Goodwiliis measured as a residual at the acquisition date and constitutes
the sum of total consideration transferrec in connection with the
business combinatior, the carry:ng amount of the minarity interests and
the fair vaiue of the previous awnership interest in the acguired company
at the time of acquisition, less the net recogrised amount (normaily fair
value) of the Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

Acguisitions of mimonty terests ave accounted for as transactions with
equity holders in therr capacity as equity holders, and therefore no
goodw il is recogrises as a result of such transacticrs. In subseguent
measLurements, goodwill is valued at acquisition cost. tess accumulated
impairment losses.

5.8.2 Research and development

Expenditures on research activities undertaken to gain new scientific or
technicai knawledge and understanding are recogrised i profit and loss
in the pericd incurred.

Develgpment expenditure that applies research findings to a plar or
design for the productior of a new or substantially improved product or
process 1S capitansed if the product or process is technically and
commercially feasizle and the group has sufficient resources to complete
development. The capitalised amount includes the cost of materials.
direct labour expenses and an appropriate proportion of overhead
expenses. Other development expenditure is recognised 1n the profit and
loss account as an expense 1 the period in whick 1t occurs. Capiransed
development expendifures ace recognised at cost kess accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.

5.8.3 Other intangible assets

Expenditures on internally generated goodwil and brand names are
recogrused in profit and loss in the perod in which they are incurred.
Otner acauired imtangible assets (patents, trademarks and other rights),
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are recogrised in the balance sheet at ¢ost less accurtulazed
amortisation and mparmant losses. Amortisation s charge@ to the
Income statement on a straight-line basis over tne esumated useful lives
of intang e assess unless suck lves are Indefinite. .ntangible assets are
amortised from the date they a-e available for use.

5.9 IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

The carrying amounts of the group’s non-financiai assets are reviewed &t
each reporurg date o determine whether there s any ind:cation of
impairment, If any sueh indication exists, the asset’s recoveranle amount
is est.mated For goodw!l and intangiole assets that have indef nite
useful fives or tha: are not vet avallab.e for use. the recoverabie amount
is also estimated anrually at the belance sheat date rrespective of any
imparment incicators. The recoverabre amount of an asser or cash-
generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair vaiLe less
costs to sell.

Far the purpase of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into
the smalles: group of a5sers that generares cash inflows from continung
use that are largely independent of the cast inflows of other assets or
groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit”, ar "CGU™. Goodwl,
acquirad in a business combination is allocatad to the groups of CGUs
tha: are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

Animpairment 1gss is mecogrised if the carrying amount of an asset ar its
CGU exceeds its estimated recoverabie amount. Impairment fosses are
recognised m profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised inrespect of
CGUs are alocated first to reduce the carryirg arount of any goodwil
allocated to the units, and then to reduce the carry:ng amaunts of the
orher assets In the unit for group of units), on a pro rata basis.

Animparment 1oss in respect of goodwil and intangible assels that have
indefinite useful lives 1s not reversed. In respect of other assets,
impairment tossas recognised In prior penods are assessed as at each
reporiing date as to any indications that the kiss has decreased or no
longer exists. Animpairment 1055 1s reversed If there has been z change
11 the estimates usec to determine the recoverabie amount. An
Impalrment 1ass is raversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying
amount does not exceea the carrying amount that would have been
determinad, net of depreciation and amertisation. if no 1impairment loss
had been recognised.

5.10 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE OR DISTRIBUTION

Non-current assets, or disposal grocups comprising assets and abitities,
that are expecied to be recovered primarily through sawe or distribution
rather than through continuing use, ave c.assif ed as held for sale or
distribution. This cordition 1s regarded as met only when the sale is
highly probabie, and the asset or disposal group 1s avallable for
immediate sale or distribution in its present condition.

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale or
distribution ave measdred at the lower of their carrying amount and fair
value less costs to seli. Property, plant and eguipment and intangible
asseis once ciassibed as hefd for sale or aistribution are not depreciated
or amortised, but are considered inthe overall impairment testing of the
dispesal group.

Non-current asset ¢lassified as held for sale and the assets of a dispasal
group classified as held for sale are presentec separately ‘rom other
assets in the statemeant of financial position. Liabinties of a disposal group
classified as held for sale shall be presented separately from other
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liabiizies .n the stazement of financial positicn. The talance sheet for
prior penods s ot rec.assified to reflect the cassification n the baance
shee: for the latest pericd presented.

5.1 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

5.11.1 Classification of financial assets

The groug classifies its financial assets in the foliow rg measurement

categories

= Those to be measured subsequeantly at farr valLe (either thraugh OCI
or thrcugh profit o7 loss), and

= Those to be measdred a: amariisec cost

The ciassification depends on the entity’s business mode. for managing
the financial assets and the contractua: terms of the cash flows,

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded
in profit or loss or OCI. For mvestments in equity nstruments that are not
heid for trading. this will depend on whatner the group has made an
irrevocable eiection at the time of mibial recogrition to account for the
equity mvestmens at fair value through other comprenensive income
(FVOCH. Financial assets are not reclassified subsequert to their imitiat
recogn;tion unless the group changes its ousiness mode for maraging
financial assets.

5.11.2 Recognition and derecognition of financial assets

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recogrised on
trade-date, the date on which the group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and
the group has transterred substan:iaily all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

5.11.3 Measurement of financial assets

At intiai recognition. the group measures a financial asset (unless itis a
trade receivable without a significant financing component) at its far
valLe plus, In the case of a financial asset not at FVPL, transaction costs
that are directly astribu’sble to the acguisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in
proft or loss. Trade receivables without a signif.cant financing
component are Inizially measdred at the transaction price.

F.nancial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in ther
entirety when deterrrining whether ther cash flows are solely payment
of principai and interast.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurament of debt instruments depends on the group’s

business maodel for managing the asser and the cash flow characteristics

of the asset. There are three measurement categories irto which the

g-oup classifies its debt insoruments:

= Amortised cost: Assets that are held for coilection of contractuat
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely paymenis of
principal and interest are maasured at amortised ¢ost Jsing the
effective interest rate method. The amortised cost is reduced by
impairment losses. Interest mcome. foreign exchange gains and
losses, Impairments. and any gain or loss arising on derecognition are
recognised n profit and loss.

= FVOCI Assats that are held both for collection of contractua!l cash
flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principat and interest, are measured a:
FVOCI Interest Income calcLlated usging the effective interest
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methad, foreign exchange gains ana 10sses and Impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Otaer net gains and losses are
recogrised N OCl Cn derecognit on tre camulative gain or lcss
previously recogrised in OCi 5 reciassified from equity to profit or
toss.

= FWVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria “o- amorises cost or
FVOLl are measured at FVPL. Net gains and losses, including any
interest, are recogrised in profit or loss. However, see section below
regarding derivatives designated as hedg'ng instruments.

Equity instruments

The group subsecuenty measures all equity mvestmen:s ar “ar value.
Where the group has irrevocably elected {an eection that is mace on an
investment -by-investment basis) to present falr vaive gains and losses
on equity investmenis in CCI there is no subseguent reclassification of
fair vaiLe gains ard iosses to profit or loss following the derecognitior of
the investrrent. Dividends from such investmen:s continue to be
recaegrised in profit or 1ass when the group’s rght to receive payments is
established.

5.11.4 Impairment of financial assets

The grous assesses on a forward-icoking basis the expected creait loss
associated with its debt instruments carned ar amortiseg cost and
FYQC The imparmeant methodoiegy applied depends on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk.

There are mainly financial recetvables (including trace recevables),
contract assets and financial iease recervables that are subject to the
exoected cregit ioss model (ECLY in IFRS 9. For trade receivables, the
group applies the simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9, which
reguires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from inttial recognition
of the recanvabies.

5.11.5 Financial liabilities - initial recognition, classification, subsequent
measurement, gains and losses and derecognition

A francial lability s initially measured at fair value and. for a financial
tability not at FVPL, net of transaction costs that are directly attnbutable
1o its ssue. Financial habilities are ciassified as measured at amortised
cost or FVYPL. A financial liabality is classified at FVYPL if .t1s ¢ assified as
held-for-trading. it 1s a dervative, or 1t is designatec as such on initial
recognition. Financial labilities at FVPL are measured at, fair value and
net gains and fosses, Inclucing any interest expense, are recognised in
profit or loss. Other financiai liabllities are subsequertly rmeasured at
amortised cost using the effective nterest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gans and 0sses are recogrised in profit or loss. Any
gain or 10ss on derecognition 1s also recoanisad in prof t or 10ss, See
section below regarding derivatives designated as hedg.ng instruments.

The group derecognises a financial tiability when ics contractual
obhgations are discharged. cancelied or exoire. The group alse
derecogrises a financiat habifity when its terms are modified, and the
cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which
rase a new financial hability based on the modifiea terms is recognised at
fair value. On derecognition of a financiat hablity, the difference between
the carrying amount extinguishec and the consideratior paid (including
any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) s recogrised in
profit or loss.

5.11.6 Offsetting of financial assets and ifabifities
Financial assets and financial liabilities a-e offset, and the net amount
presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the groug currently

L3
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has a legally enforceanie right to se: off the a~ounis and it Intends e ther
to settle them on a nat basis ¢ 10 reghise the asset and setle the hatity
smuJ.tanegusly

5.11.7 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The groug hoids derivative financial instruments to hedge its “creign
currency and interest rate risk exposures Dervatives are initiaily
recogr:sed at far value, and atiributable transachor: costs ae
recogr sec in profit or less as incurred.

Embedded dervatives are separates fro the host contract and
accounted for separately if the host contract 1s 1ot a financial asset and
the following criteria are met: 1) the economic cha-acteristics and risks of
the emnedded derivative are not closely relazed to the ecenomic
characteristics and risks of the host, n) 2 separate instrument with the
same terms as the embedded dervative would meet the definition o a
cerivat ve, and i) the hybrid contract 1s "ot measdred at fair vaiue with
changes in “ai” valee recogrised In protit or loss.

Derivatives not being part of hedge accounting are measared at fair
vaiLe and all changes in vaiue are recognised in profit and loss. The
group may designate certain denvatives as hedging nstruments to
hedge the fair vaiue of recognised assets or liabilities {fair val.e hedges).
the varability in cast flows associated with highly probable forecast
transactions ansing from changes in foreign exchange rates and interest
rates (cash flow hedges) and certain derivatives and non-derivative
financial liabiiities as hecges of foreign exchange risk on a net investment
n a foreign cperation (net Investment hedges) At inception of
designated hedging relationships, the group documenss the risk
management ochyective and strategy for undertaking the hedge, The
group alsoc documents the economic relationship between the hedged
itermn and the hedging instrument, including whether the ¢hanges 1in cash
flows of the hedged item and hedg ng instrument are expected to offset
each other,

Cash flow hedges

When a derivative is designated as the hedging instrumen: in a hedge of
the var ability in cash flows attributable to & particular risk associated
with a recognised asser or liability, or 3 highly probable foracast
transaction that could affect profit or loss, the effective portion of
cnanges in the fair vaiLe of the derivative is recognised in other
cornprehensive income and presented in the hedging reserve within
equity. The amount recognised in other comprehensive Income s
removed and included in profit or Igss In the same period as the hedged
cash flows affect profit or loss under the same line item in the income
statement as the hedged item. Any ineffective sortion of cnanges in the
fair value of the derivative is ~ecognised immediately in profit or loss.

if the hedg ng instrument no longer meets the critena “or hedge
accounting, expires of 5 sold, terminated exercised, or the designation 1s
revoked, then hedge accountirg is discontinuec prospectively. The
cumilative gain or loss previously recognised in other carrprehensive
mcome and presented 1n ;e hedgng reserve in equity remains there
until the forecas: transaction affects profit or loss. if the forecast
transaction 15 no longer expected o occur, then the balance in ozher
comprehensive income 15 recogrised immediately in profit or 10ss. In
other cases. the amount recognised in other comprehensive income s
transferred to profit or 1oss in the same period that the hedged itern
affects profit or loss,

Fair value hedges

Crarges in the farr value cf derivatives desigratec as farr va.ue hedges
are recogrised in profic or ioss. "he hedged ob ect s valued at farr valLe
with respect to the risk that s nedgec. Gains or losses attributable to the
hecged r.sk are recogrised In profit o7 loss and the hedged obecr’s
carned amount s adjusted.

Net investrent haages

Foraign currency differences arising frorn the translation of a finarcial
l.ability designated as a hedge of a nat invesiment in a foreign operatior
a e recogrused in other comprehensive income to the extent thal the
nedge 1s effactive and are presentea within equity In the trarslation
rese-ve. To the extent that the hedge 1s neffective, such aifferences are
recognrised in profit or loss. When the hedged part of a net investment is
disposed of the retevant amaount 17 the translation reserve 1s transferrec
to profit or 1oss as part of tha prafit ¢or loss on disposal.

5.12 SHARE CAPITAL, TREASURY SHARES AND EQU{TY RESERVES
QOroanary shares ae ¢ .assified as equity. Incrementas costs directiy
attributable to the issue of orgirary snares and share aptions are
recognised as a deductior from equity, net of any tax effects. Wnen
share capital 15 repurchased, the amount of the consideration paid
inclucing directly attribatable costs and net of any tax effects, is
recognised as a deduction from equity. Repurchased shares are classified
as treasury shares ang are presented as a deductior from total equity.
When treasury shares are solc or reissued, the amount receved is
recogrised as an increase in equity, and the surplus or deficit resulting
from the transaction is tfransferred to/from retained earnings.

The transiat.on reserve comprses all foreign currancy differences ansing
from the translat.on of the financiai staternents of foreign operations. as
welt as from tha translat.on of liabilines that hedge the group’s net
Investment in a foreign operation.

The fair valLe reserve comprises the cumulative net cnange in the fair
value of financial assets at FVOCI

The hedging reserve applies to cash flow hedges entered into in o-der to
hadge against cnanges in income and expenses that may arise from
exchange rate fluctuat:ons. The profit or loss effect of such transactions
15 rcludea in the profit and less account upon recognition of the hedged
cash flow. The hedgmng reserve represents the value of such hedging
nstruments that is not yet recognised in the income statemeant.

5.13 PROVISIONS

A provisior s “ecegrised when the group has a present legal or
canstructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that
payments o ozher oJtflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligatian, and a reliakble estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are deterrined as the present vaiLe of expected
future cash flows, discounted by a market based pre-tax discount rate.

Warranty provisicns are made for expected future expenses related to
delivered products and services, The provisions are pased on histaric
data and a weighting of all cossible cutcomes against their associated
probabitities.

A provis.on for restructuring is recognrised when an approved, detailed
and formal restructunng plan exists, and the restructuneg either has
begun or has been annaunced fo the affected parties.
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Erovisions for ceniract losses are recognised when the expected
revenues from 2 contract a‘e lower thar the cost of meet ng the
contractuai chligations. Before provisions are made, atll . mpairmant
iosses on assets associated with the contract are recognised.

5.14 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The caicuiation of ordinary earnings per share 1s Dased or the proft:
attributable to ordinary shares using the weightec average numper of
shares outstanding dunng the repert ng perod, after deduction of the
average namper oF treasury shares held over the perioc. The calzulation
of gitutec earnings per share s consistent with the calculation of ordirary
earnings per share, and g ves effect to all ordinary shares with gilutive
potential that were outstanding during the percd.

Note 6 | Financial risk and exposure

FINANCIAL RISK

The Aker Group consists of various operations and companies that a-e
exposed to different types of financial risks, ‘naluding credit-, igudity-
and market risk (e g ol price-. currency- and interest risk). The purpose
of risk management is to measure and manzage financia risk inarelable
manner, thereby increasing predictan ity and reducing negative effects
on Aker’s financial results. The Group uses d.fferent financial instruments
to manage its financial exposure actively.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The overal: chjectives of Aker's capital management policy are to
maintain a strong capital base to retain irvastor, creditor and market
confidence, to ensure financial flexibility “or the seizure of opportunities
as they arise, and to maintain & capital structure that minim:ses the
company's cost of capital, For its surplus liquidity, Aker pu-sues a
conservative placement sirategy with minimal risk. The placements need
to be flexible in terms of liguicity.

The target rate of return fo- the Industrial holdings is 12 pe- cent. The
target return for the Financ.al investments porifelio depends on the
compositrar of the portfolio, inclucing the size of cast deposits and the
risk profie of the receivables. In addition, Aker nas defined financial
target ind.cators (FTis) that regulate the relationship between cash and
interest-bearing debt, as well as the capital structure. The ratios work as
gJidelines for investmenrt activities and capital allocation.

The governing principle of Aker's dividend policy is that the company at
ail times should have a solid batance shee: and I'quicity reserves
sufficient to deal with future iiabilities. The policy of the company is to
pay annual dvidends corresponding to 2-4 per cent of net asset vaiue
(value-ad;usted). The market prices of isted companies are used In
calculating net asset value, while bock values are ysec for other assets,

CREDIT RISK
The Group's financial assets are bank deposits, trade and cther
receivables, derivatives, and investmen:s in shares. The Group's exposure
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5.15 SEGMENT REPORTING

Axer cefings operating segments based on the group's Inzernal
management and reportirg structure. The group's chief operatng
decisior. maker, responsible for the ailecation of rescurces and
assessment of the perfermance in the different coeratirg seamen:s, is
def ned as the bearc of directors, the growp presigent and CEO end the
CFC. Aker'sinvesment portfoio comprises two segments: Industrias
hoidings and Financial investrments. The recognition and measurement
applied in segment report ng is consistent with the accounting principles
applied when preparing the financial statements. Transactions between
segmen’s are conductec on market terms and conditions Comparative
segment information Is usually re-presented for changes in reporting
segments. See Note 9 Cperating segments and sigruf ¢an: subsidiaries.

to credit rskos mainty related to extornal recevables For large projects
and long-term lease contracts, assessment of credit risk refated to
customers ang subcontractors are performed in the tender phase and
througnout the contract penod. L.arge and long-term projects are closely
monitored in accordance with agreed milestones.

Trade recevablas prasented in the balance sheer are nat of pravisions for
hac debts, which are estimated based on prior experience as well as
specific assessments for some of the recevables.

Transactions invoving derivative financial instrurments are with
counterparties with sound credit ratings and with whorn tne Group has
signec a nexting agreement

The company within the group with the largest exposure to credit nisk, s
Ocear Vield. Ocean Vied faces credit risk through counterparties that
may not be able to meet its obligations under a iong-term charer
contract. In order to mitigate this, the company charters out the vessels
to internationally well-recognised companies within the shipping and
offshore industry. However, as shipping and o | service markets are
volatile, there is 1o complete protection against potertial counterparty
default.

The ongoing COVID-13 crisis and the fack of agreement between CPLC
and Russia to reduce oil oroduction, has had significant negative effects
an the worid economy and rrost industries and businesses have baen
adversely affected. There is an imminent danger of recession., and this
wall increase the credit risk “or the Grouwo 1n the future. It | currently not
possible to predict how large this increase in risk will be,

The exposure to credit sk s represented by the carrying amount of
each finantial asset, including derivative financial instruments, in the
balance sheet. Information about the exposure to cred:t risk at the
batance sheet date is found in the tables on the next page.
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2019 Carrying amount - exposure to credit risk
LCervatives
Far value Fair value through quairfied for hedge
through profit other comprenensive Receivables at accounting at
Note and loss reome (FVOCH) amortised cost FYOCI Total
Financial interest-nearing non-current assets 8 - - 14 653 - 14 653
Otner non-carrent assets including long-term
derivatives 20 62 613 38 - 713
Trade receivables, other incerest-free short-term
recevables 22 7 - 5382 - 5 389
Current dervatives 3 15 - - 214 229
Interest-beanng short-term receivables 18 9 - 2673 - 2683
Cash and cash equivalents 9 - - 12 018 - 12 018
Total a3 613 34 7€4 214 35685

Interest-bearing recevables were impaiced with NOK 25 million in 2019, In addition, a sharcholder loar of NOK 60 milhion from Akastor to the jaint
venture DOF Deepwater AS is recognised against the share of losses from tne jaint venture (See Note 333

2018 Carrying amount - exposure to credit ris«

Fair vaiue

Fair value through

through profit  other comprehensive Receivables at

Derivatives
gualified for hedge
ccounting at
FVOC!

Total

Nofe and loss income (FVOCI) amortised cost

Financial Interest-pearing nor-current assets & - - 11304 - 1304
Otner non-current assets including long-term

dervatives 20 &l 512 7 - 644
Trade receivables, other interest-free short-term

receivables 22 12 - 5875 - 5888
Current derivatives 37 64 - - 342 406
Interest-hearing short-term recelvables i8 25 - 426 - 451
Cash and cash equivalents 9 - - 3786 - 9786
Total 103 512 27 462 242 28479

Aging trade receivables and contract assets

Gross trade receivables and
contracs assets 2019

Gross trade receivables and
contract assets 2018

Mot past due 10697 8459
Past due 0-30 days 488 6873
Fast due 31-120 days 176 232
Past due 121-365 days 200 261
Past due more than one yaar 835 648
Total 12 396 10372
Movements in alfocation to lass on trade receivable and contract assets
Balance at 1 January 2019 (268)
Impairmeant loss {write-offy included in operating profit (88
Reversa. of impairments included in operating profit 33
Provisions utilised during the year 45
Cther changes an
Effects of changes in foreign exchange rates [O)]
(291)

Altocation to loss on trade receivable and contract assets at 31 December 2019
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LIQUIDITY RISK
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Ligquidity nisk s the r:sk at the Group wil be unable to fuifl 18 Anancia obilgations as they fall due. The Group's apgroach to maraging hgusdity risic is
to ensure that it always has sufficient liguidity o pay its iabiizes as they fall due

Overview of contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments specified by category of liabilities:

ContractJal cask flows including estimated interest payments

Carrying Contractual 6 months 6-12 -2 25 Overs
amount  cash flow or less months years yoars years
Secured loans 24 459 (28280 (2048) (2455) (5436) (12565) (5776)
Unsecured bank joans 3431 (3 798) (153) 167y (1817)  (1745) (ME)
Unsecurea bond issues 11066 (i2 113y (2074 (238 (213 (2188) -
Convertibe loan 863 912 912 - - - -
Other liablities 154 {165} (74 (2) (3) (74} Q2
Credit facilities 274 {274) (274) - - - -
Total contractual cash flows for interest-bearing labilities 40187 (44 318) (3711 (2862) (B269) (23572) (5903
Fnance lease liabllities 6 583 (7 634) (488) (483) (920) (2395 (347
Short-term derivative financial liabilities 414 (390) 280 (76) 34) -
Long term gerivative financial labilities 217 (149) - - {120) (29) -
Total contractual cash flows for interest-bearing liabilities and derivatives 47 407 (52490 (4479 (3421) (9343} (25996) (9320
Trade and other payables 16 950
Long-term interest-free labilities 3076
Total iiabilities 67 427

Overview of contractual maturities per segment:

Contractual cash flows mcluding estimated interest payments

Carrying Contractual & months 6-12 1-2 2-5 Overt

amount  cash flow or lass  months years years years

Industnal holdings 34 954 (38619 (2058) (2563) (8877) (153902) (9287
Financial Investments 716 (765) (544} (6) (36) 0147) (22
Aker ASA and holding companies 18730 13107y  (1877)  (842) {430y (9947) am
Total contractual cash flows for interest-bearing liabilities end derivatives 47 400 (52 491y (4479 (3421 (9343) (25996) (9320)

Long-term interest-free labilities include NOK 66 rrillion in deferred tax liabil.ties and NOK 352 million in deferred revenue and prepaid charter hire.

The Group's iquidity requiremen:s are expected to be met through the balances of liguid assets and cast fiow fron operating activies. Asar 3’
December 2019, the groug had cash and cash eguivaents of NOK 12 018 million. .n zddition. the group has interest-pearing assets of NOK 17 336
milhon {see Note 18 and Note 190, and ozher investmienss o NOK 2135 million {see Note 20).

Oli. PRICE RISK

The equity accounted invesiment in Aker BF represents a substantial
part of the group's assets. Since Aker BP's revenues are derived from the
sale of petroleurr products. the value of the investment and the group's
share of profit or loss are therefore exposed to ol and gas price
fluctuations. With the current unstabie macro env ronment, Aker BP 15
continLously evaluating and assessing opportunities for hedaing as part
o a prudent Snancial risk management process. At vear-end 2018, the
company had entered into commodity hedges for the first half of 2020
consistng of put options with average strike price of 54 USD/obi for a
volume corresponding to approximate.y 60 par cent of the after-tax
value of estimated oil oroductior i the period.

Although Aker's subsidiary Aker Energy does not currently have ary
production of hydrocarbons, the campany is expesed to the o markets
ir: several aspects. Market conditions will influence banks and investors’
appetite to lenc to, or invest in, Aker Energy. Furthermaore, Aker Energy
is exposed to the cost levels in the suppiler industry that is a function of
the capacity and activity levels in the sector.

In 2020, the ongoing COVID-1% ¢risis and the lack of agreement between
OPEC and Russia to reduce ol production, has led to significant falt in oil
prices. This increases the ol price risk in the Group goirg forward, but
the impact s currently not possible to predict.

CURRENCY RISK

Aker’'s operation in the international market resuits in various types of
currency exposu-e for the group. Currency risks arise through ordinary,
future business transactiors, capitalised assets and | abilities. and when
such transactions invalve payment 11 a currency other {han the
funct.onal currency of the respective company. In addition, currency risk
arises from investmenss in foreign subs:diaries. The group’s mair
exposures are aganst USD, GBP, EUR and BRL. In addit:on, Aker
Salutions 1s exposed to AQA (Angclan Kwanza) a currency that in 2019
was under hyperinflaticn, The group 15 also exposed to several other
currencies.
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I Aker's consgidated accounts, (e follew.rg exchance rates have beer agphed i rarslatng the accounts of foreign subsidiares and asscc.ated

COMEanes.

Average rate Rate at Average rate Rate at
Country Currency 2019 31 Dec. 2019 208 3" Dec. 2018
USA Uso 88O 878 813 8.69
Great Britain GBP nz3 .59 10.85 N2
The European Union EUR 1 985 9.86 260 8995
Brazil BRL 1 273 278 2.25 2.24

The average rate and rate as a: 31 Decemoer have been apphied when translztirg tne income staternent and bealance sheet iterrs, respectively if the
average exchange rate for the period does not provide a farr estimate of the transaction rate, the actual transaction raze 15 used.

In 2020, the ongoing CCVID-19 cnsis and the lack of agreement between OPEC and Russia to reduce . product on, has caused significant fluctuations
in exchange rates, including a sharp wegkening of the Norwegian krone against the US doltar and the euro. The table beiow illustrates the Group's
sensitivity to foreign currency rate fuctuat:icns, If the horwegian krone had been 40% weaker against USD in 2019, the efects on the consoligated
financial statements would have been as shown below The sensitivity analysis does not take into account other effects of a stronger currency, such as
competitiveness, change in the vaue of dervatives etc.

Operating revenue Profit before tax Equity
ush 1025 (2061 22938
Other currencies 12 815 747 9800
NOK 24 917 (377) 6 516
Total - ) 48 756 (1692) 39253
Change if NOK 40% weaker against USD 3128 (839) 6150
When NOK 40% weaker against USD 51885 {2 591) 45 443

Aker ASA end the operational companies in the group have prepared gucelines on he management of currency risks. ncluding hedging of expected
future cash flows and value o' assets and liabiliZies .» foreign currencies. The group uses currency forward contracts and currency option contracts to
reduce currency exposure. The net value of the group’s currency contracts was NOK -356 million as a: 31 December 2079

INTEREST RATE RISK
The group's interest rate risk arises fror long-term berrowings and receivables. Bor-owings and recewvables issued at vanaole ratas expose the group

to cash flow interest rate risk. Securities 1ssued at fixed rates expose the group to fair value interest rate risk The figures for 2019 includes lease

habitities of NOK 6 583 million.

As at 31 December 2019, the interest rate profile of the group's interest bearing financial instruments was as follows:

2019 2018
Fixed rate instruments:
Financial assets 2 460 1708
Financial kabilities {4 270) (5 100)
Net fixed rate instruments (1810) {3332
Variable rate instruments:
Financial assets 26 895 19833
Financial iabilities (42 500) {25377y
Net variable rate instruments (15 605) (5494)
Net interest-bearing debt (-) / assets (+) including finance lease receivables and lease liabilities (17 415) (8 886)

Falr value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments

The Group does not recogrise any fixed rate financial assets and
liabilities at fair valde through profit or loss. At 31 December 2019, the fair
value of Interest rate swaps designated as hedges for parts of debt was
NOK 5 milhign. A change in interest rates as at the reporting date woulc
not affect profit or loss, but would appear as a change in the fair value of

the cash flow hedge In the Group's comprehensive income. Other
interest rate derivatives are not designated as hedges, and hence a
change in the interest rate would affect profit or loss with respect to
these instruments. Ir 2019, the Aker Group has a ioss of NOK -31 million
related to interest rate derivatives.
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Note 7 | Acquisition of subsidiaries and transactions with minority interests

TRANSACTIONS WITH MINORITY INTERESTS

I 2019, acquisition and sate of mincrity irterasts and subsidiar.es’
purchase and saie of own shares lead to an increase in mincrity Interests
0 NOK 41 million ang an Increase In majority nterests of NOK @ million.
recogr. sed directly in ecuity and attritutec 1o the ecuity holders in the
parent company. The corresponding figures for 2018 were a NOK 37
mlion increase in munonty iIrterests and a NCK 17 mifiicn decrease in
majarty interests. See also Note 24,

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES IN 2019
Aker RioMarine
Cn 1 March 2019, Aker BioMarine through a US holding company,

acquired 100% of the issued shares in Lang Pharma Nutntion, Inc, (Lang).

a full service, mass market dietary supplement manufacturer, for a
consideratior of USD 89.3 million. The contribution consisted of a cash
consideration paid on ciosing in addition to a contingent consideration
with an esumate fair vaiue as further dascr.bed below.

Detalls of the purchase consideratior and the net assets acqu.red:

Detaus of sne purchase corsige-atior and the net asses acou red

intangible assets m
Otrer non-current assets 28
Inventories 59
Trade and other recarvables ang otfher assets A4
Cash and cash eguiva ents 2
Total assets 244
Borrowings 5
Lease liabitities

Trade and other payables 23
Total liabilities 37
Total ident fiable net assets at fair vaice 207
Gogdwil ansing on acquisition 63
Total consideration paid on acquisition 270
Less cash and cash equivaents acguired (2
Acquisition, net of cash acquired 268

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES IN 2018

Aker BioMarine

Cn 17 January 20018, Aker BioMarine Antarctic AS (AKBMA) entered Into an
Asset Purchase Agreement pursuant to which AKBMA acaured from
Enzymotec Lid assets and certain liabilities related to the global krill
cperations of Enzymotec Total payasle was equivalent to NOK 214 million.
The purchase price reflects, among other things, payment of transferred
inventory ang consideration for customer relationships and trademark.

Detalls of the purchase consideration and the net assets acqu red:

Intangibie assets - customer list 393
Accounts receivables and other assets 100
Inventaries 27
Cash and cash equivalerts 32
Total assets 795
Berrowings 170
Accounts payables and other payables B3
Total liabilities 252
Total identifiable net assets at fair value 543
Goodwili arising on acquisition 218
Contingent consideration &9
Total consideration paid on acquisition 451
Less cash and cash eguiva ents acquired 32
Acquisition, net of cash acquirec 419

The goodwil is attributabie to Lang’s position and profitakility n the

d etary supplement market and the assemblec and skilled workforce in
the organisation. Lang wili continue to operaie as a separate company.
The results from Lang have beer included in Aker BioMarine's
consolidated income statement and baiance sheet as of 1 March 2019.

The contingent consideration arrangement requires Aker BioMarine to
pay the seller an earn-out calculated each fiscal year using a
measurement of company EBITDA as its basis. The earn-out period is
from 2019 through 2022 The fair vaiLe of the contingent consideration
arrangement was estimated calculating the presant value of the future
expected cash flows, based on a discount rate of 11 oar cent.

Akastor

Cn 7 June 2019, Akastor through s cortfolio company Mt IWirth,
acquired 100 per cent cwnership interest in 3ronce Manufacturing LLC
(Bronco) for a cash consideration of USD 315 millicn at a cash-free and
debt-free basis. Bronco is consol dated as part of MHWIrth.

Intangible assets 168
|nventory 27
Goodwil arising on acquisition 10
Total consideration paid on acquisition 214

In addition, on 3 Juty 2018 Aker BioMarine Antarclic AS (AKBMA) entered
into a Settlement and Termination Agreement with Qrochem Technologies,
Inc {Crocherm), whereupon the existing Eguipment and Licerse Agreement
were terrninated and Orochem assigned to AKBMA its entire night, title, and
interast in the patents, Inventions for removal of arsenic fram kil o4 and
ownership to purification technology. Totai settlement was equivaient to
NQK 23 million, hereof NOK 2 milion related to roya ty payatle unt | the
settlernent date and NOK 20 million refated to the intangible asset accuired.

Aker Energy

Aker Energy AS ("Aker Energy”) was founded 1n February 2018 and is owned
49 per cent by Aker ASA and 49 per cent by The Resource Graup TRG AS
Based on an assessment under IFRS 10, Aker Energy 1s fully consolidatad in
the Aker Group. Cn 1June 2018, Aker Energy Ghana AS, a subsidiary of Aker
Energy, completed the acquisition of Hess Ghana, the operator of the
Deepwater Tano Cape Three Points block ('DWT/CTP" with a 50 per cent
particpating interest in the license. The acquistbion is regarded as an
acguisition of an asset. The transaction has a totai cash consideration of USD
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102 miffior. whesg USD 27 million was paic Lpon C.osing of the transaction
and a furibes JSO 75 mithion will be payatie upon approval of the PoD for the
CWT/CTP block.

Detalls of the purchase consideraticr and the net assets acqu red

irtangible assets - value of licenses

880
Other current ope-atirg assets 2
Cast and cash equivalents 1
Total assets B94

Annusl sroounis oS
Trade creartors 1
Otrer non-cJrren: habilities 64
Total liabilities 65
Total entifiable net assets at fair vaiue arg
Contirgent consideration 0
Total consideration paid on acquisition 218
Less cash and cash eguivaents acquireg '
Acquisition, net of cash acquired 205

Note 8 | Sale of subsidiaries and discontinued operations

SALE OF SUBSIDIARIES
There were ne matenal divestments of subsidiaries or other types of
materal discontinuec operations in ZMSG.

In April 2008, Aker sold real estate lanc areas at Fornebu. The sae
resulted in a gam in Aker Group accounts of NOK 232 milhan. The
disposal did not represent a separate major ine of business and is not
presented as discontinued operations. There were no major sales of
subsidiaries in 2018 except for the sales described below for discontinued
operations.

DISCONTINUED CPERATIONS IN 2018

On September 26, 2008, Akastor compeeted the transaction to divest 50
per cert of its shares in AKQFS Cftshore to MITSUL & CQ. Ltd, ("Mitsui)
and Mitsui O.S.K. Lines, Lt ("MCL") for a total consideration of USD
142.5 milfion with interest of 4 per cent from the locked box date on
Decemper 3, 2017, In additior, there are certain preferertial nghts i
respect of the operations of AKQFS Seafarer, including guaranteed
return 1o Mitsui and MOL and carn-out payments to Akastor in the first

six years of operations, The transaction does not inciude the ex sting
joint venture, Aviurm Subsea AS, between Akastor, Mitsul and MOL,
Following the transaction, AKOFS Offshore was rest-uctures to
consolidate 100 per cent ownership interest in Aviumr Subsea AS.
Akastor, Mitsul and MOL holds 50 per cent, 25 per cent and 25 per cent
of the shares n AKOFS Qffshore, respectively. AKOFS Cffshore s
classified as a joint venture to the group and consoldatec using the
equity method. The AKOFS Offshore operations, exclusive Avium Subsea
AS, are ciassified as discontinued operations.

RESULTS AND CASH FLOW FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND
LIABILITIES HELD FOR SALE

Result from discontinued operations NCK 64 millior in 2019 and NOK
438 million in 2018 apply to discontinued operations in Akastor and
Kyvaerner {See note 9). Cash flow from discontinued operations is NOK 6
millior in 2019 and NOK 1048 mullion in 2018, L.abilities of NOK 26 million
¢.assified as held for sale ar 31 December 2019 are remaining legacies
relgzed to Kvaerner's sele of its the onshore construction business in
North America In 2073,
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Note 9 | Operating segments and significant subsidiaries

Operat ng segmens are identfied based on the Group's internal Fimancial Inves:iments are managed as a portfolio witn focus on financial

rmanagement- and reportirg structare. The Group's chief operatng and strategic cpportunitias.

dec.sion makers, who are responsible for the aliocation of rescurces and

assessment of perfarmance in the d fferent ape-ating segments, are Recogniton and measdrement applied to segmentreportrg is

defined as the noard of directors, the CEQ and the CFO consisient with the accountirg princ.ples appl ed when preparing the
financial statements Transactions between segments are conducted on

Aker's invesiment portfolo comprises two segments: Industriai holaings market terms and conditicns. Operational revenues and segment assats

and Financial investrrents. The prirmary focus for businesses within are based on the geographical locat.or of companies.

Industral nolcings 15 ong-termr valle creation. 2usinessas within
AN OVERVIEW OF OPERATING SEGMENTS
Industrial holdings

Aker Solutions L eading global supoier of procucts, systems and services ‘or the ail and gas industry. The Aker Group’s owne-ship interest 15
46.93% Axer ASA ncirectly owns 34.76%. Aker Kvaerner Holcing AS owns 40.56% of Aker Solutions ASA. Aker ASA owns
70% of Aker Kveerner Holding AS. In addition. Aker ASA owns directly 6.37% ¢f A<er Solutions ASA.

Axastor Awxastor is an o.d-services invesimeant company with a portfolio of industrial holcings and other investments. The Aker
Group's ownership interest s 48.78%. Aker ASA indirectly owns 36.71%. Aker Kvaerner Holomg AS owns 40.27% of Akastor
ASA Aker ASA owns 70% of Aker Kvaerner Holding AS. In addition, Aker ASA owns directly 8.52% of Akastor ASA

Aker BP Txploration and production (E&P) company on the Norwegian continental shelf. Ownership interes: 40.00%. "he company 1s
defined as an associated compary in the Aker Group. and is accounted for using the equity method
Kveerer Leading global provider of engineering and construction serv.ces to the energy and process industry. The Aker Group's

ownershig interest 15 41.02%. Aker ASA indirectly owns 28.71%. Aker Kvagrner Holding AS owns 41.02% of Kveerner ASA.
Axer ASA owns 70% of Aker Kvaerner Holcing AS.

Ocean Yield Cwns. operates and charters vessels. Gwnershio interest 61.65% as at 31 December 2019,
Aker BioMarine Biotechnology company. Rarvesting of knll and production and sale o krill products. Swnership interest 98%.
Axer Energy E&P company. Owns a 50% ownership interest in the Deepwater Tano Cape Three Points block that is under developrent in

Ghana. The group’s ownershig in the company is 49.21%.

Cognite Software and digitalisation company. Qwnership interest 63.99%.

Financial investments

Philly Shipyard Cesign and construction of vessels. Qwnership interest 57.56%.

Solstad Offshore Cwns and operates platform suppiy-vessels, anchor handting vessels and construction service-vessels. Ownership interest
23.10%. e company is defined as an associated company In the Aker Group. and 15 accounted far using the eguity method.

FP Eiendom Real estate development company. Ownership intarest "00%.

Norron Nordic investment manager. Ownership interest 54.29%.

Other and eliminations

Aker ASA znd Cash, other financial mvesiments and other assets. Compan-es included ae iisted in Note 1 in the annual accounts of Aker
ho.ding companies  ASA and holding companies.

Otner Otner companies and eliminatians. See next section for overv.ew of group entities.

SUBSIDIARIES factors mentiored in IFRS 10 that may help to it uminate the question of
Aker Solutions, Akastor and Kvaerner control further. Factors indicatirg that Aker has control include Aker's
Aker considers on an ongoing basis whether the company's indirect and representat:on on the nomination committees, the fact that leading
direct ownership interests in Aker Solutions and Akastor, as well as the employees have previoasly worked for Aker, the fact that the companies
indiract ownership in Kvaer~er, are sufficient to give it control under IFRS themselves consider Aker an active owner, etc, Cn the other hand, in

10. The primary consideration is whether Aker is able to control the isolation, the shareholder's agreement with the Narwegian State relating
outcome of voting at the comrpanies general meetings. After careful to the holding company Aker Kvaerner Holding AS 1s a factor in “avour of
consideration of this question based on both the absolute and relative Aker not having control. Based on an overal assessment, the conclusion
ownership interests and attendance at pravious general meetings of the is that Aker does have control over Akar Solutions, Akastor and
companies and comparable comoanies, Aker has congluded that such Kvaerner,

control exists. Consideration has also been given to all other refevant

anruat renor P08 68
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SIGNIFICANT SUBSIDIARIES IN THE AKER GROUP ACCOUNTS ARE PRESENTED IN THE TABLE BELOW.
Corrpanies owned arectly by Aker ASA are highlightea. Group's cwnershig in per cent and Group's share of votes in per cent a-g equal If nothing else
isindicated.

For further iInformaticn regarding sigrificant subsiciaries in the isted companias Akar Souuzions ASA, Akastor ASA, Kvaerer ASA, Pallly Shipyard ASA
and Ocearn Yield ASA, please refer to the companies own annLal reports.

Bus ness address

Group's ownership in % ™) C.ty locstion Cauntry

Aker BioMarine AS 98.00 Forrebu Norway
Aker BioMarine Antarctic AS 16C.00 Fornebu Norway
Aker Capital AS 16C.00 Fornebu Norway
Ccean Yield ASA (OCY) 6165 Fornebu Norway
Aker Energy AS 48.21 Fornahu Norway
Philly Shipyard ASA (PHLY 57.56 Qslo Norway
Cagnite AS 63.99 Fornebu Norway
FP Elendom AST 100.0C Fornebu Norway
Aker Kvaerner Holding AS 70.00 Fornabu Norway
Aker Solutions ASA (AKSO) 4056 Fornebu Norway
Akastor ASA (AKA) 40.27 % Fornabu Norway
Kvaerer ASA (KVAER) 41.02 Fornebu Norway
Notron Holding AB 54.26 Stockhoim Swedean

GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS BASED ON COMPANY LOCATION

Operating revenue Selected assets”

2019 2018 2019 2018
Norway 29979 27973 38 362 36015
EU 6658 4994 10722 9828
North America 3162 2921 2010 2054
South America 2205 1863 1508 1446
Asia 4232 2615 920 776
Other areas 2521 1794 2 580 2467
Total 48 756 42163 56 102 52 585
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Elimin- Financial
ations Total investments
Axer QOcean Akear Bio Axer and industrial and
Salutions Akastor Akar BFKvaerner Yield Marne Enargy Cognite  other holdings eliminations Total
External ope-ating revenues 27 968 5513 - 8 730 2124 2175 €D} Z68 197 47768 988 48756
irier-segment reven.es 1286 48 - 303 138 - 63 72 (1853 66 (66) -
Operating revenues 29263 536 - 9032 2267 2175 62 340 (6627 47834 922 48756
EBITDA 2244 497 - 498 1858 402 (0H (13} (69) 4409 (481) 3928
Cepreciation and amertisation 1234y (26D - (89) (854 (324 20) O] 1 (2663) mzy (2780
impasrments (304) 9 - 23y (71 (54) - - - (110¢) 108 (992)
Operating profit 705 222 - 306 595 24 (1121 (6 (68) 646 (490Q) 156
Share of prof t of equity - . B ) ) )
accounted companies &y 60 429 264 35 229
Irterast income 57 14 - 4 20 sl 9 - (13 250 120 370
Interest expense {485) (49 - (3%) (304) (201 (43 - 7 {1808 (474) (2282)
Other financial items (on 164 - (6) GN (39)” B 778 L @1) 16) (22_)_ _ _(14_3) _(164)
Profit before tax 3 iy 121 429 3 (321) B (205) (1147; ) U_T)_ - (?é_3) N __(_670) (1 022)7 (1522)
Tax expense (87) (44 - ( (33 4 - - (43 (233) (15)  (248)
Profit for the year from ’ T e s p s
continuing operations g 4 am o ma GED @9 qun o ap o Bn 605 A0S (949
Result from discontinued
operations (net of tax) ] (34) ) 7o) ) ) ) } (64) (64)
Profit for the year 83 83 429 234 {350 (209 (14N an 82y 967 1037) (2004)
rofit for the year to equity
holders of the parent 19 37 429 67 (247)  (2086)  (565) an 89 (565) (968) (1533)
Property, plant, and equipment ) 5
and rignt-of use assets 6 654 1297 1285 9252 2800 219 3 (473 21502 1612 2314
Intang.bles assets 5710 1583 - 740 - 1653 1468 34 - 111989 956 12 154
Investment in equity accounted q = B R .
companies 146 Y05 17773 73 1565 (51 20557 277 20833
Interest-bearing fixeq assets 834 226 - 20 15759 - - - (75 16224 M2 17336
Cash and cash equivaent ¥ L B98 S - 2324 1628 120 692 - 261 7 479 4540 12018
Interest-bearing lian:ities (§957) (2125) - {123) {19°95) (3688 (040) (18) 143 (35 003) {11766) {46 769)
Net tax liabilities(-)/assets(+) 641 376 - (312) 34) {12) - - 25 684 (68) 616
Other assets and liabilities 205 1397 - (622 (678) 484 (822) 19 (300 {316) 267 49)
Equity 7231 437 V773 3385 7697 1357 s17 39 (45) 42325 (3072) 39253
Minority interest 9N (18) - - (116) - - - 48 (182) (20 232) (20414)
Total equity attributable to vz c -
equity holders of the parent 7124 4354 7773 3385 758 1357 517 39 3 42143 (23303) 18840
Investments 2 1028 617 - 484 4 1304 560 36 - 4635 488 5122
Aker ASA and holding companies key figures:
Dividends receved - - 67 658 - - - - 3378 104 3482
Gross asset value (GAV}® 2338 100G 259 5187 2363 925 42 - 54200 7734 61934
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Efmin-

Financial

ations Total investments

Aker Ccean Aker Bio Aker and industrial and

Solubions Akastor Aker BP Kvaerne® Yeld Marine Energy Cognite  other holdings eliminations Total
Extarna: ocpesatng revenues 24 422 3709 - 7144 2614 1263 14 127 173 39 467 2696 42163
Inter-segment rovenLes 8IC g0 - 76 179 - - 37 (118: 3 (3 -
Operating revenues 25232 3800 - 7220 2793 1263 14 B4 (1017) 39 469 2694 42163
EBITDA 1810 280 - 437 2299 269 (263) 9 (238) 4614 217y 4397
Depreciation and amortisation (739) (i8N0 - i0y (803 (79 (&) - - {2014) (83 (2097)
Imgparments 22y - - (262) (7} - (5 - (294) Bl (213)
Operating profit 1049 109 - 327 1235 83 (266) 6 (238 2306 (219) 2087
share of profi of equity - gshy 1547 - - - - - 1390 (763 626
accounted companies
Interest income 39 67 - 27 26 1 2 - - 161 91 252
Interest expense (236) (90 - (20) (676}  (00) (6) - - (1128) (398) (1526)
Other financial items e e - 4 B 5 8 LT O S as)
Prqﬁt hefore tax 792_ (91)’ 1547 338_ ) 501__ (19)_ _(28_5)_ _ 3} ) 211 2585 Q 77657)77 142q
Taxexpense _ e/ aos - B0 @& 2 " QG e @I (9 40
Profit for the year from
continuing operations 5547 (19f) J547 - 2?8 477757 i ® (286 6 o 7(271?)7 27]547 a 224? 930
Rasult from discontinued . ~ _ - _
operations (net of tax) (i28) ’ ) 364 236 202 438
Profit for the year 554 {322y 1547 278 475 8) (286 3] 147 2390 (1022) 1368
Profit for the yvear to equity -
holders of tha parent 176 (280) 1547 a0 286 [€:))] 1423 4 147 1808 {903) 906
Property, plant, and eqguipment 3044 825 - 967 10388 2019 9 1 - 17 253 1008 18262
Intangibles assets 5686 1260 - 710 - 992 1388 - (33 10033 942 10976
nvesiment in equity accountec 11088 19878 69 1668 - - - 22704 644 23348
companies
5:;:[?6 interest-bearing fxed 93 257 - - 10324 - - - 10674 1081 1755
Cash and cash equivalent 2473 198 - 3765 356 22 192 47 96 7148 2638 9786
Internat interast-hearing R R R -
Labilities B - - - (324) (324) 324
E;‘g‘ﬁ{gg's'”te?"*t'bea””g (2913) (602 - - (5317) (1460) . - - (20292)  (10135) (30 427)
Net tax liabilities(-)/assets(+) 439 38) B (265) 7 - - 4 29 560 [€15) 523
Cther assets and tiabilities (12143 930 - (1206) (663} 305 (872 1 182y (2 902) 897 (2304)
Equity 7608 4317 19878 3438 7348 1554 "7 53 (60) 44854 (2937 41918
Minorty interest {106} - - - - - - - 55 (52} {19 856) (19 908)
Total equity attributable to
equlty holders of the parent 7 502 4317 19878 3439 7348 1554 Ly 53 (5 44802 (22793 22009
Investments 2 505 13 Ei4 21 545 436 1 - 1132 1132 3106
Aker ASA and holding companies key figures:
Dividends recaived - - 1485 - 613 - - - - 2078 96 2174
Gross asset value (GAV)® 3750 133 31403 a8 5816 247 47 A2 - 46 139 5074 51213
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Note 10 | Operating revenue

ANALYSIS OF OPERATING REVENUES BY CATEGORY

Akor AGA anry

2019 2018
Revenue from contracts with cuastome s recognised over tme 41507 35M0
Revenue from contracts with custome-s recognisad ar a pain: in tme 4777 3470
Leasing ncome 2 010 2402
Other income 462 1182
Total 48 756 42163

Revenye fraom contracts with custoirers consist of construction contracts,
service revenue and sale of stancard products recognised over time or at a
point in time N accordance with iIFRS 15, Different types of customer
contracts are described below. Warranty provisions related to on-going
projects and orerous customer contracts provision are describec in Nate 29.

REVENUE FROM CUSTOMER CONTRACTS RECOGNISED OVER TIME
Revenue from contracts with custorrers in Aker So utions totalled NOK 27.8
billion in 2013 and include contracts with customers to deliver services,
technologies, prodJcts and solutions within Subsea and Field Design. Cach
contract within Suosea s usually assessed as one performance ohligation as
the deliveries are combined in one output. Cach engineering, hook-up,
modification and maintenance job within Field Design is usuaily assessed as a
separate pe-formance cbligation and revenue is -ecognised over time using a
cost progress methoc or according to delivered time and materials. Lach
service job under a frame agreement is usually assessed as a separate
performance oblgation and revenue 15 recognised according to delivered
time and materials within Services. Paymeant terms are normally 30-9C days
accarding to predefinea milestones within Suosea and 20 days after time and
materiais are defvered within Field Design and Services.

Revenue from contracts with customrers in Kvaerrer ‘otalled NOK 85 hillion
in 2009 and inciude contracts with customers 1o provide engmneering,
procurement and construction services (EPC-contracts) for offshore
nstallations ar onshore plants and decommissioning that have no aiternative
use far the group. These contracts wil: ususlly be one performance abligation
and revenue s ecognised over time using a cost progress method. Service
revenue is recognised over time using a cost progress method or is
recognised according ta delivered time and materials. Payment terms are
rormally 30 cays for construction contracts and on average around 45 days
after time and materials are delivered for service revenue.

Revenue from contracts with custormers in Akastor totalled NOK 3.7 bilion in
2019 and in¢lude construction contracts with customers to provide driling
systemns. proaucss and services. Each of the construction contracts normally
ncludes a smgle combined cutput for the customer, such as an integrated
drilling equipment package. One single performance obiigation is ussally

identified in each conwact and revenue 1S recognised over time using a cost
progress method. Service revenue is recognised over time using a cos:
progress method.

Revenue from contracts with custorrers in ASK 1V totalled NCK 1.4 billion n
2019, The company has one contract (Johan Sverdrup Riser Platform)
regarded as one perfarmrance goligahion and revenue is recogrised over fime
usirg a cost progress method.

Revenue from contracts with custorrers in Philly Shipyard totalied NOK 167
millkon in 2013 and include contracts with castomers regarding construcoon
of merchant vessels for the Jones Act market. Revenue from shiobuilding is
recognised over time using a cost prograss method.

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS AT POINT IN TIME
Revenue from contracts with customers in Aker BicMarine totalled NOK 2.2
billion n 2019 and includle sale of knll products recognised at a pomt in time,
when the customers obtains control over the goods. which 1s based on the
contractual terms of the agreements Upon sale of product, each sale woulc
normatly constitute two performance obligations.

Revenue from contracts with customrers in Akastor totalled NOK 15 bilion n
2019 and include revenue from sale of standard cilfield products recognised
at a point in time, usually when the goods are delivered to the customers.

Revenue from contracts with custorrers in FP Liendom totailed NOK Q.6
bilhorn in 207¢ and include revenue from sales of apartments recognised at a
point in time at dei very to the customers.

IMPORTANT CUSTOMERS
Aker has one customer that has been invoiced for rrore than 10 oer cent of
the group’s revenues .n 2008,

TRANSACTION PRICE ALLOCATED TQ REMAINING PERFORMANCE
OBLIGATIONS

The following table includas revenue expected to be recognised in he future
related to performance obligat.ons that are unsatistied, or partally satistied,
at 31 December 2019:

Transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligations

2023 and
2020 2021 2027 later Total
Aker Soiutions 13047 3100 1372 266 17 784
Kvaerner 5718 1950 997 - 8200
Akastor 2419 1068 - - 3487
Total 20 684 6 158 2 364 266 2947
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CONTRACT BALANCES
The following table provides informat.on about ¢ontrac: assets and
contract hahilities frorr contracts with customers:

31 December 2013 31 December 2018

Trade receivables 4369 5408
Contract assets 7136 46596
Contract latlines 1447 1764

Cantract assets relate 1o consideratior. for work completed, but not yet
rvoiced at the repcrt:ng Gate. The contract assets are transferred to
receivables when the nghts ‘o payment become Lnconditicnal, whick
usually occurs when invoices are issued to the customers. Movemeants In
allocation to loss on trace recetvables and contract assets ara described
In Note 6. Contract iebilties relate 1o advances from customer for work
not yet performed at the report ng date Revenue recogrised in 2079

tha: was incluaec in contract hagiities rhe beginn.ng of the year s
NQ4 1233 meitkon. Contract i1abiities nas increasec by NOK15 milionin
2019 due to acquisition of subs.diaries. Tne change In contract assets and
| abilines relates to the natural progression of the pro,ect portfolio. as
weli as the current p-oiect mix.

LEASING INCOME

Leasing ncome ¢° NOK Z 10 mi:hon in 2079 consists of NOK 933 million
in financial lease income and NOK 909 miilion in operationa! iease
ncame from bareboat hire in Gesan Yield, in addition t¢ income from
sub easing right-of-use assets of NOK 168 million

OTHER INCOME

Otner income of NOK 462 million in 201 cons:st ameng others of gain
from sale of assets and in additior NOK 334 million in share of earnings in
joint ventures ana assoc ates.
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Note 11 | Wages, personnel expenses and other operating expenses

2018 2018
Wages 12 641 N 263
Social secunty contributions 1778 161
Pension costs 800 749
QOther expanses 803 698
Personnel expenses inciuded in other items" (138) (258)
Total wages and other personnel expenses 15 884 13 363

S CENTL I Iensirins ak S SRy

Geographical split of number of employees: 2019 2018
Narway 10 495 9757
EU 1777 2426
Noerth America 961 884
South America 5473 4 001
ASI3 2751 2549
Other regions 408 362
Totai number of employees at year-end 21865 19479
Average number of employees 20922 18712
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES CONSIST OF THE FOLLOWING:

2019 2008
Leasing expenses 692 1163
Exploration expenses ¢l and gas 217 -
Office equipment, sales- and admin stratior expenses 1387 1060
Externa consultants and hired-ins, exclusive audit expenses (see below) 1627 1005
Travel expenses 654 517
Insurance 146 169
Loss on customer recelvables, Inclucing reversal of impairments (18) 155
Miscellanegus operating expenses 1) 1987 1 R66
Total 6 693 59316

7

FEES TO AUDITORS OF THE AKER GROUP ARE INCLUDED IN MISCELLANIOUS OPERATING EXPENSES, AND DISTRIBUTED AS FOLLOWS:

Consulting
Ordinary auditing services Total 2019 2018
Aker ASA 2 1 3 2
Subsigiaries 47 6 53 40
Total 49 7 56 42

Ordinary aucit fees totalled NOK 49 miition in 2019 {(NOK 26 million in 2018)

Consulting services of NOK 7 miliion consist of NOK 2 million in orher assurance services, NOK T million in tax adwisory services and NOK 4 million in
other non-audit services.
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Note 12 | Impairments

AL GUOOU

2019 2018
Impairment losses on intangible assets {\Note 163 (25) (€2)]
Impairment 10sses on property, plant and equ pment (Note 15) (702) M7
Imoairment 1osses on right-of-use assets (Note 19) (266) -
Total (992) (213)

Impairment losses on intangible assets i 2019 of NOK 25 million are
mainly attnibutable to IT systems and a strategic gigitaiisation project in
Kvaerner.

Impairment 19sses on property. plant and equipment of NOK 702 miilion
It 2019 are mairly attributable 1© Ocean Vield with NOK 580 millton, Aker
BioMarne with NOK 54 million, Aker Solutions with NOK 46 mitlion, and
FP Eiendom with NOK 12 mrillion. The impairment in Ocean Yield 1s
related to the FPSO Dhirubhai-l, and the impairment in Akar BioMarine is
related to the fishing vessel Juvel. The impairments in Aker Solutions
relate to capitalised develcpment costs,

The iImpairments of right-of-use assets N 2019 of NOK 266 million,
mainly relate to o¥fice leases in Aker Solutions of NOK 257 milion and
Akastor of NOK 9 million.

Impairmant losses on intangible assets in 2018 of NOK 97 million were
rmairly attributabte to Ocean Yield with NOK 80 million, and Aker
Solutions with NOK 15 million. Ocean Yield made an impairment of
goodw i related to the FPSO Rhirubha -1. The reason for the impairmeant
charges in Aker Solutions was related to capitalised deveopment costs.

Impairment losses on property. plant and eguipment of NOK 117 million in
2018 were mainiy attributable to Ocean Yield with NOK 109 milhon and
Aker Solutions with NOK 7 million. Ocean Yield made an impairment
charge related to the AlLFTS vessels Far Senator and Far Statesman

Below is more detaiied information about impairment assessments
performed for the materal assets witnin the Group. See also Note 15
Property, plant and equipment and Note 16 Intangible assets.

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENTS

Determination of the recoverable amount

When performing :mpairmant assessments, cash generating units are
determined at the lowest level possible to identify independent cash

For capitalised deve.opment expenses and other mtangible assets, all
deveiopment projects are tested quarterty for impairment in whick iL1s
taker rto account market and technology developmert, changes in
order backlog, costs incurrea compared to the budget, and other factors
that potentially may deter-orgte the value in use. Far uncompleted
projects, full impairment tests are performed annually by reviewing and
updating the ongina' business case for each project so future cash flows
are revised and new present value calculated. Animpairment 12ss is
recognised for projects where the net present va'ue of future cash flows
15 cwer than expected recognised capitalised amount at project
complation.

For the years 2018 and 2077, the recoverab e armounts of the cash
gererating units are founc by calculating the value m use The
calculations are based on future cash flows as assLmed In current
budgets and strategic plars. Cash flow after tax s used inthe
calculations and correspondingly discount rate after tax

Discount rates.

Discount rates are derved from a weighted average cost of capital
(WACQC) model. The rate 15 estimated as a weighted average of the
regJred return on equity and expected borrowirg costs. The capitai
asset pricing made! for a peer group of companies within the same
sector has been applied when calculating the WACC. The nisk-free
nterest rate is based on the interast rate for 10-year government bonds
at tne time of the impairment assessment. Borrowing costs &-¢ based on
a nsk-free rate, with an ad ustment reflecting long-term mterest margin,
The discount rate is set for each CGU and may therefore vary between
and within the subsidiares.

flows.

Discount rate, post tax Discount rate, pre tax Forecast period Growth rate terminal value
Company 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Aker Solutions 8.6-8.8 93-85 n.0-15 12.2-14.3 4 years 4 years 1.5 15
Akastor 10.4-12.5 100 12.4-15.0 12.2 Svyears 5 years <2.0 220
Kvaerner 8.9 86 10.3-11.0 10.8-10.4 4 years 4 years 1.0 1.0
Ocean Yield 7.3-8.6 ©:-82 7.5-86 7.2-8.2 NA NA NA NA
Aker BioMarine 1.0 no 124 12.7 5years 5years 2.0 20
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Cash flow assumptions
Cash flow assumptions var.es bezween the ¢ fierent CGUs, and the
SELMpLIONs used in the most mater.al assessments ace described below.

For Aker Solutions, four years cast flows in the peariod 2020 10 2023
projectec from the forecast and sirategy process, approved by
management and the Board of Directors n 2013, nave been usec as basis
for tne estimates of future cash flows. The forecasts ave based on firm
orders ' thg backlog and identifiec prospects in additior 1o expected
serv ce revenue. Aker Solutions has defined the growth rate, discount
rate and estimated fuiue cash flows as the most sensitive assessment in
the valLe in use caiculation. Tne forecasted casr flows used In the
impairment tests reflect arganic growth only. Other parameters in the
assessment are the predictec lorg-term oil price per barrel, mix of
products and services, ievel of ope-ating expenses and capital
expenciture for maintenance of the asset partfelio.

Far impairment testing of goodwill, & post-tax val.e in use method is
used, with pre-tax rates calculated using an iterative method for
illustration purposes only. The assumptions are summarised above. The
forecasted cashflows are based on firm orders and an expected share of
rew contracts.

For Akastor. the value-in-use calculations represent the cperating
earnings before depreciation and amortisation and are estimated based
on the expected future performance of the existing businesses in their
main markets, Assumptions are made regarding revenue growth, gross
margins and other cost components based on histoncal experience as
well as assessment of future market develcpment and conditions. These
assumptions requre a high degree of judgerment, given the significant
degree of uncertainty regarding odfietd service activities in the forecast
period. Akastor uses a constant growth rate not exceeding two per cent
(including inflation) for periods beyond the management's forecast
period of five years,

For Kvaerner, assumed preject awards (s an essertial elerentin the
impairmant testing. The group's business development organisation
reviews and considers market prospects and selects target projects.
Target projects are ncluded based on a probability that Kvaerner will be
selected as sJappier and estimated revenues and margins based on the
scope of work and Kvaarner's experience and judgment from other
projects. Cash flow projections for on-going projects are based on
budget and forecast. Explicit perod for estimated cash flows are fourth
quarter 2019-2023. Terminal values reflacting long-term, steady state
revenue and margin lavels are estimated based on a combination of
historic levels and judgment. An annugl growth rate of one per cent s
used in calculating the terminal vaiue.

For Ocean Yield the value 1 use has been estimatec for the FPSO
Dhirubha -1, Following the completion of the 10-year contract in
September 2018, Ocean Yield is working to secure new empigyment for
the FPSO. Several opportLnities have beer evaluated for the vessel, but
it is taking more time than earlier envisaged to find a satisfactory
salution.

The value in use has alsc been estimared for the vessels Connector, Far
Senator and Far Statesmer based on the present vaide of estimated
future cash flows. The projectec cash flows represent management’s
best estimate for future charter hre for these vessels.

In Aker BioMarine, an impairment charge of NOK 54 raullion has been
booked in 2019 regarding the fishing vesseal Juvel. Due to the uncertainty

ancut the future use of the vesssal. a separate va:.uanor was performed to
estimate the fair va.ue of the vessel as per 1AS 36 Tne valuation was
nased on an assessment of potartal sates price for the vesse., valuing
the vesse: at USD 18 7 million after subtracting cost to sell. This resutted
inan impairment of USC 5.9 millior, eguivale=t to NOK 54 milior.

For impasment testing of goodwil: in Aker 3ioMarine. projecied cash
flows are based 01 managemeant's best estimates and the business plan
for the knill business for the subsequent five-year period The estimates
are based on detailed forecasts prepared by the various departments in
the kril business. For subsequent periods. tne medel 1S Dased on
estimated terminal growth of 2.0 per cent, wh chis n lire with long-term
forecasts for growth in GDP. In the forecast for the period 2020-2024,
revenue projections ae based on agreements entered into, actual
historical prices along with managerment’s evaluation of the potential fo
new ag-eements. The estimatec ope-ating margir s n accordance with
management ' s forecast which is oased on the scalability in the business
model. A farge proportion of the company’s operating expenses are
independent of productior volumes, which means that increasec sales
levels will contribute to higher operating marginsg. Capital expendizure is
hased on long-term techn ca: and operations program and firm
commitments.

Sensitivity analysis and recoverable amount

In relation to the impamrment testng, the companies have performed
Various sensiivity aralysis. Below 1s a summary cf the sensit vity analysis
performed in the largest companies

Aker Solutions

The mparrment testing of goodwil is affected by changes in the long-
term ol price, as it will impact the expected order intake. The testing is
also affected by changes in the discount rate, growth rates, and the

ab ity to secure projects as estimatec in the cast flow, product mix and
cast levels. Multiple sensitivity tests have been run on the key
assLmptions In the vaiLe in use catculation to address the current
uncertainty In the ol services market, In the sensiivity testing, Aker
Solutions have assessen the Impact on the vaie in use calcuiat on when
applying the fellowing changes to the key assumptions: decrease in long
term growth rate to zero, increase in post-tax discount rate by two
percentage po.nts and a 25 per cent decrease in forecasted free
cashflows during the four year pericd from 2020 to 2023, including the
termina: value.

Cask-generating units (CCUs) identified for testing fixed and intangible
assets are usually a plant or a group of plants whi.ch are deemed to
produce independent cask infiows. No impairment losses were
recogrised as a resut of the impairment testing of assets in CGUs based
on the vaiue In use meatnod. Various sensitivity analysis for cnange in
future cash flows. arowth rate and WACC have been parformed for the
CGUs with limited headroom in the imipairment testing. The resuits from
the analysis suppart the conclusion from the test that no impairment
shoula be recogrised. Aker Solutions 1s continuously monitaring the
market development and will perfarm impainment test.ng if further
imparrment triggers are identified.

One CGU with net assets of NOK 480 mithon is sens-tive for impairment,
The WACC used in the impairment testing was 11 per cent and the
growth rate was 5 per cent, The WACC can be ncreased 1o 13.4 per cent,
the growth rate can e reduced to 1.5 per cent and the free cashflows
can be raduced by over 5C par cent without triggering animpairment.
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wWhen 2 leased property has been vacatec or will be vacated by Aker
Sotutions r the near future, the right-of-use asset is assessac for
impairment. If the vacateg property s @ separable part of the lzased
building, it I1s tested for impairment as a separate cash-generating unit,
Expected future subiease income 15 discounted to present value and
compared to tha value of the separable right-of-use asset. If the vacated
area s not separable, the nght-of-use asset it tested together with the
o:her assets nihe cash generating unit. An impairment charge of NOK
257 milien has been bocked i1 2019 for nght-of-use assets in Aker
Solutions,

Akastor

For the portfolic comparies conta:ning gocdwill, the recovearable
amaounts are higner than the carrying am.ounts based on the value in use
anaiysis and conseguently no impairment loss of goodwi:! was
recogr'sed n 2018 or 2018, The group has perfarmed sensitivity
calculations to identify any reasonably possible change in key
assumptions that could cause the carryirg amount to exceed the
recoverable amount. In MHW Irth, if the average revenue growth in *he
forecas: period were reducad by more than 12 per cent, or the average
EBITDA margin in the forecast pariod were reduced by mare than 6 per
cent, the estimarec recoverabie amount would be lower than the
carrying amount and i would resuit in impairment in MHWIrth.

Kvaerner

For the vard CGUs Stord and Verdal, recoverable amount for recognisec
goodw!| exceeds the relazed carrying values, and conseguently indicates
that no impairment is required, The followng adverse changes cou d
occur simultaneously before any impairment 1s required in relation to the
Stord yard CGU: revenue reduction of 30 per cent, EBITDA margm
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reductan of 1.5 percentage po ris ang increase N pre-tax discount rate
of 2.4 percentage points The Vercal yare CGU 1s more sensitive to
'mpairment; @ s:muitanecus revenue reduction of 3 per cent and ncrease
1 pre-tax discount rate of 1.4 per cont poirts would result in an
mpairment.

Ocean Yield

As ¢f year-end the Group nas assessea tne vaiue of the FPSO Chirubhar-
1. The valie In use has been estimatec for the vessel and has heen
calcu:ated basec on the present vaiue of estimarec future cash flows.
The Group has considered saveral possible scenanios and calcuiated the
present vaiLe of estimatec future casn flows for these scerarios. The
scenanos are based onrecent interest for the FRSQ, The vaive in use has
thenr been calculated as the weighted average of these scenarios, The
estimatea vaiue in use 1s ower than ook valle tor the FPSC and as a
conseguence an imparment of USD 8.4 millicn has been recegnised
The remaining net book value of the FPSQO as of 3% December 2019 &5
USD 146 midlion.

The estimatec value in use has been calculated for the vessels
Connector, Far Senator and Far Statesman and no impairment has been
considered necessary.

Aker BioMarine

Sensitivity analysis of goodwill have been performed by using
simulations of vanous combinations of discount rates and changes in
vessel product:or volumes, k-ili productior and krilt sales, in additior to
fuel costs, No reasonably combination of these factors resu ts in a value
1% use being fower than the value recognised in the balance sheet as of 3
December 2018,

Note 13 | Financial income and financial expenses

2019 2008
Interest income on cash and cash equivalents and investments at anortised cost 293 176
interest income on debt Instruments at FYQC) 77 76
Dividends on financial assets 165 170
Net change in fair value of financial equity investments at fair value through profiz and loss 14 64
Net foreign exchange gain - 59
Net gain from interest rate swaps - 57
Other financial income 56 i8]l
Total financial income 605 704
Interest expense on financial iabilities measured at amortisec ¢ost (2270) (1497)
Interest expense on financial liabilities Measured at fair value 12) [€10)]
Net foreign exchange loss (82) -
Foreign exchange loss from hedge instruments 43) (297
Net loss from interest rate swaps an -
Net other financial expenses (144) (1/74)
Total financial expenses (2 681) (1997
Net financial items 2077 {1293}
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Note 14 | Tax

TAX EXPENSE(-)/TAX INCOME(+)

2019 2018
Recognised in income statement:
This year's net tax recelvabie (+) ana payab e () 232) (z61
Adjustment prar years 20} -
Total current tax expense (252) (26D
Deferred tax expense:
Jrigination and reversal of temporary differences [&1)] (253)
Utihsation of previously Jarecognised tax losses 55 24
Total deferred tax expense 4 {228}
income tax - continued operations {248) (490)
RECONCILIATION OF EFFECTIVE TAX RATE
- ' - : 2019 2018
Profit before tax (1692) 1420
Nominal tax rate in Norway 22% (2018; 23%) 372 (327)
Tax rate differences in Norway and abroad 147 44
Permanent differences (114) 8l
Utisation of previously Jnrecognised tax losses 55 24
Tax i0sses for which no deferred Income tax asset was recognisen (573) (422)
Tax effect of associated companies 124 234
Other gifferences {260) (124)
Total income tax expenses in income statement {248) (490}
TAX RECOGNISED IN OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:
' : ) 2019 2018
Remeasurement of defined benefit liabilities 39 15
Cranges in fawr vaiue of financial assets - (2)
Changes in fair vaiue of cash flow hedges 210 20
Currency trenslation differences {2) 7
Total tax expenses other comprehensive income 16 40
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS ARE ALLOCATED AS FOLLOWS:

2019 2018
Aker Solutions 87 663
Akastor iBs 374
Other companies 2 22
Total 1261 1059

Deferred tax assets refer to NOK 138 million in losses carniec forward and NOK -10% million in temporary differences. The deferred tax asset related to
the tax losses carried forward was reduced by NOK 221 milion in 2018,

The total unrecognised tax loss carry-forward at year-end 2019 are NOK 13,7 billion, This mainly relates to Aker ASA with NOK 4.0 bilon, Aker Capitat
AS with NOK 1.1billion, Aker BioMar ne witn NOK Z.1 billion, Akastor with NOK 2.7 billion. Ccean Yield with NOK 14 billion and Aker Soiutions with NOK
0.7 billior,
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CHANGES IN NET DEFERRED TAX ARE AS FOLLOWS:

Propery, Projects  Tax iosses
piantand  intangible unger carry
equipment 35SL1S  Construction forward Ctner Total

At 31 December 2018 (198} (237 (2 401) 1602 1779 545
Impact of changes in accounting policies - - - - 390 90
At 1 January 2019 (198} (2573 {2400 1602 1 869 635
Acguisitions and sales of supsidiaries - {2y - 2 0 20
Ceferred tax income statement - contnuea operations 14 124 931 C7n (8883 4
Deferrec tax total comprenensve income - OC - - - - 16 16
Prepard withho.dirg tax - - - - &0 60
Deferred tax Income recogrised directly in egquity - - (27 - (233 (50}
Exchange rate differences and other changes (3 - (i6) (562 (0 (85)
At 31 December 2018 {196} (115) (1513) 1381 1043 600
Allocated between deferred tax assets and liabilities as follows:
Deferred tax assets a3 (105 (412) 1381 50 1261
Deferred tax fiabiities (82; (107 (non - 532 (661)
CHANGES IN NET DEFERRED TAX ARE AS FOLLOWS:

Property, Projects  Tax losses

plant and Intangible under carry

equipment assets construction forward Other Total

At 31 December 2017 (2215 (260} (2 245) 1910 1798 982
Impact of changes in accounting policies - - 94 - 40) 54
At 1 January 2018 zz21m (260} (215D 1910 1759 1036
Acguisitions and sales of subsidiaries 101 5 4 (Z13) [¢i%)) (222)
Deferred tax income statement - continued operations - 8 (259 47 (36} (229)
Deferred tax income staternent - discontinued operations {773 - - {38) - (109)
Deferred tax total comprehensive income - OCI - - - - 40 40
Prepaid withholding tax - - - 46 46
Exchange rate differences and other changes 14 - 5 (10) (12} Qan
At 31 December 2018 a98) (237) (2401 1602 1779 545
Allocated between deferred tax assets and liabilities as follows:
Deferred tax assets (153) (228) (1483) 1634 129889 1059
Deferred tax habyiities 44) am (908) {32) 479 (515)

TAX PAYABLE AND INCOME TAX RECEIVABLE

Tax payabie arrounts ta NOK 117 miltion and tax receivable amounts to NOK "33 million. Tax receivable mainly relates Aker Solutions with NOK120
million, Akastor with NOK 10 milkon ang Philly Shipyard with NOK 2 million. The 2019 figures are based on presiminary estimates of non-taxable
income, non tax-deductible items and temporary differences between the financig!l accounts and the tax accounts. The final result wiil be calculated
based on the tax return and may differ from the estimates above.



N I Ty e N N TP
ANTIUG O0T0RER [ 470 0 L

Note 15 | Property, plant and equipment
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Macninery _anc end  Assets under
Vessels and vehicles buildings  construction Total
Cost at 31 December 2018 19375 9945 4547 484 v 35351
Impierentatior IFRS 16 - 97 (206) - (303)
Cost at 1 January 2019 19 375 9 849 A4 484 \.‘. 35048
Acquisitions through business combnations - 7 3 - 10
Cther acouisitions ¥ 546 23 109 1786 2672
Qther disposals and screpping (16) (76) (3N . {129
Transferred from assets under construction and other reclass fications 13y 6949 19 977 (298)
Effects of changes in “oreign exchange rates 188 32 D) i 224
Cost at 31 December 2018 21054 10 742 4427 1303 37 526
Accumulated depreciation and impairment at 31 December 2018 {8312 (690 (1828) {5 7 091)
Implementation IFRS16 - 92 58 - 150
Accumulated depreciation and impairment at 1 January 2019 8312 (6 80D 7703 (€1 (16 241)
Depreciation charge for the year (786) (730) (127) - {1644)
Impairments (see Note 12) 590) (39 (13 60 (702)
Transferred from assets under construction and other reclassifications (28) 38 58 - 68
Other disposals and scrapping 16 &8 7 - g2
Fffects of changes in foreign exchange rates (80) (23) (1) - M3
Accumulated depreciation and impairment at 31 December 2019 (9 780) (7 495) (1355) am {19 240)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2019 1274 3248 2573 1192 18 287
O gty it DU dmmunbed £ NG S e
Machinery Lanc and  Assets under
i Vessels and vehicles buildings  constraction Total
Cost at 1 January 2018 25628 10 034 5393 951 42 005
Otner acquisitions™ 243 168 4 868 1320
Sales of operations {7063 (1G6) (5073 (7% (7749
Otner disposals and scrapping (39 {587) (260} 5 (892)
Transferred from assets under construction and other reclassifications (2494) 277 (32) (3i2) (360)
Effects of changes n foreign exchange rates 201 160 (88 55 1028
Cost at 31 December 2018 19 375 9945 4547 1484 35 351
Accumulated depreciation and impairment at 1 January 2018 M187) (o728 (1859 (54) (19 828)
Depreciation charge for the year oo {699) asn - {1858)
Impairments (see Note 12) (164) &3] &) - (172)
Sales/ disposals of operations 4164 81 4 - 4249
Reciassifications 244 4 05) 5 238
Otner disposals and scrapping 35 567 204 - BO&
Effects of changes in foreign exchange rates (Z97) {122} (6} 2) (527)
Accurnulated depreciation and impairment at 31 December 2018 (8312) {69003 (1828) (5h (17 091
Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 11063 3045 219 1433 18 262
Bock vaive of leasing agreements recorded in the balance sheet R 4 122 _ 127

Carrying amount at the end of 2019 amounts to NOK18 287 mill on, an

increase of NOK Z6 million during the vear. The increase mamly relates to

acquisitions, offset by depreciation charge for the year and impairments,
see comments below

This year's depreciation of NOK 1844 miliion (NOK 1858 millionin 2018)
relates te continuing operations. In 2018 total depreciation was dividad

between NOK 1 715 midlion in continuing cperations and NOK 144 miilion
N discontinued operations. The inpairment of the year is NOK 702
milion (INOK 172 million in 2018} reiates to continuing cperatiors, in 2018
total impairment was divided between NOK 117 million in continuing
operations and NOK 55 million in discontinuing coeratiors.
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See Note 2 imparrments for more information regarding impairmant
assessments and Note 26 regarding collazeral,

Vessels and airpianes

vassals and airplanes totaled NOK T 274 midlion 28 the eng of 2019, with
an increase of NOK 217 million guring the year. The increase 1S mamniy
attributed to the acguwisition of a new arrplare and transfer from assets
under construction of NOK 1.3 oillan. The iIncrease 1s offset by

deprec ation and imoairmen:s of NOK 1.4 killion.

The depreciation penoads for the huls are between 10 and 30 years. while
the machinery and ecumpment on boarc gre deprecated over a period
beiween 3 and 15 years,

Machinery and vehicles

Machinery and vericles tota led NOK 2 248 million, an increase from
previous year of NOK 203 millior. The increase is due to acquisitions and
transfer from assets under construction of NOK 1.0 brllion, offset by
deprec ation and impairments of NOK 0.8 billion.

Machinery and vehicies are depreciated over a period between 310 15
Vears,

Buildings and land

Bullgings and land totailed NOK 2 573 mullion, with a decrease of NOK
146 million in 2019, The decrease is mairly related to implementation
effects of IFRS 16 of NOK 148 million in addition to depreciation and
impairments of NOK 140 milion. The reduction is offset by acguisitions
and transfer from assets under construction of NOK 186 m:llian.

Note 16 | Intangible assets

Lanc 15 not depreciates The depreciatior perods for bu ldings are
betweer § to 30 years

Assets under construction

Assats under constraction are decreasec by NOK Z£imillion during 2019
ta NOK 1192 miliion. The ¢nange is mainly due to the delivery in mid-
Jaruary 2019 of the new knll harvestuing vessel Antarct ¢ Endurance in
Axer BioMar:ne. Total cost for the vesse! was USD 147 millior incluging
capita ised interests. In adation, NOK 228 million is reclassified Lo
mtgngible assets and prepaid expenses. The reduction is offset by
Inyvestments In Aker Solutiors, Akastor Kyvaerner and FP Ciendom
totalling NOK 744 miltion,

Contractual commitments

Aker BioMarine has at the end of 2018 entered into contracts en
investments In property, plant and equwpment for NOK 0.5 billion.
Cortractual commitmenss in Aker Solutions is NOK 324 million and in
Kvaerner NOK &5 mitlion.

Qcean Yield has entered contractual obligations for the purchase of
vessels. currently under construczion. of NOK 215 million in total daring
2020.

Effect of exchange rate changes on property, plant and equipment
Effects from exchange rate fluctuations represent NOK 1 milhon ang are
mainly attributable to cnanges in the LSD/NOK in Ccean Yielg, Akastor.
Aker Soluticns, Aker BioMarime and Philty Shipyard. Based on book
values as at 31 December 2019, 3 increase of the USD rate of 40 per cent
will increase assets by about NOK 4.8 bilhion,

Capitalised
O.-andgas  expicration
licenses SXPENSEs Goodwil Other Total
Cost at 1 January 2019 937 416 9199 4635 15188
Acquisitions through business combinations - - 84 563 947
Otner acquisitions - 325 - 418 743
Other disposals and scrapping (9 - - (204} (212)
Expensed dry wells - (A7 - - (217
Reciassifications (8 (29 - 4 77
Effects of changes in “oreign exehange rates 10 4 9 b4 169
Cost at 31 December 2039 g5 500 0574 5580 16 695
Accumulated amortisation and impairment at 1 January 2019 - - (1692 (2 520 {4 212)
Amortisation for the vear - - - {458 (459)
impairment losses (see Note 12) - - - 2% (25)
Other disposals and scrapping - - 204 204
Reclassifications - - - 133 a3
Effects of changes in “oreign excnange ratas - - (14) (20 (35)
Accumulated amortisation and impairment at 31 December 2019 - - {1706) {2835) (4 540)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2019 93 500 7967 2757 12 154
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Capitahsed
O -and gas expioration
censes expenses Googwil Diher Total
Cost at 1 January 2018 - - 3058 4279 13 377
Acguisitions through businass combirations 880 . - - 880
Cther acquisitions - 390 10 506 906
Sales / disposais of subsidiaries end operations - - - {208) (206)
Effects of changes in foreign excnange rates 58 27 30 55 230
Cost at 31 December 2018 g3y 416 5199 4635 15 188
Accumulated amortisatior ang impairment at 1 January 2C18 - - (1827 (2 269} (3 895)
Amortisation for the year - - - (39N (391
Impairment losses (see Note 12) - - (80> (183 97)
Sales / disposals of subsidiaries and operations - - - 187 187
Cfects of changes in “oreign excnange rates - 15 3 {15)
Accumutated amortisation: and impairment at 31 December 2018 - {1692} {25209 (4 212)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 937 416 7 506 216 10 976

Oil- and gas licenses

Qil- and gas licenses of NOK 931 million at the end of 201915 attributable
to Aker Energy and 1s reduced by NCK & million during the year. Qil- and
gas licerses are assessed for mpairment annually.

Capitalised oil- and gas exploration expenses

Capitalised o.- and gas exploration expenses of NOK 500 rillion at the
end of 2019 13 attributable to Aker Energy. The increase in 2079 of NOK
84 mylion is related to capitahsed exploration experses, partly offset by
expensed dry wells and reclassifications.

Goodwill

Goodwill totailed NOK 7 967 mitlian at the end of 201¢. The changein
201G of NOK 4681 million is attributable to positive foreigh exchange
fluctuations and Increase due to the acquisition of AGR &nd Bronce in
Akastor, 1n addition to Aker BioMarine's investment in Lang Pharma
Nutrition Inc.

See table pelow for the allocation of goodwill per company. Goodwil:
related to Aker Solutions, Akastor and Kvaerner onginates from various
acquisitions and other transactions through the years. The goodwil, in
Aker BioMarine stems from Aker's acguisition of hatural and the
establishment of Aker BioMarine in December 2006 and is fully aliocated
to the krill nusiness.

Other intangible assets
The carrying amount of other intangibie assets of NOK 2 757 midlion at
the end of 20719 mainly consists of NOK 1632 million in capitalised

development expenses and customer relationships, trademark and
fishing licerses in Aker BicMarine of NOK 855 million, Customer
relgtionship as ircreasec by NOK 405 million in 2019 du= to the
acquisition of Lang Pharma Nutrition Inc . and fishing licerses totalling
NO G2 million are rectassified frorm property, plan: and eguipment.

Capitaised development expenses censisted of NOK 1324 million
representing capitalised development projects in Aker Solutions, in
Akastor totalling NOK 169 milion and in Lvaerner totalling NOK 132
million. The net change of NOK 93 million in 2019 is iargeiy attributable to
capitaised expenses of NOK 288 million in Aker Solutions and Akastor
and NCOK 73 millicn in Kvaerner. The increase is offset by depreciation
and impairment of NOK 241 mill.on.

Other intangible assets a~e anortised cver a perod between 5to 12
YEars.

Amortisation and impairments

This year's amoriisatior of NOK 459 millionn (NOK 391 milhan in 2078)
relates to continued operations. in 2018 total amortisation 1s divided
between MNOK 382 million n continued operations and NOK 8 millionin
discontinued operations. Impairment of intangible assets of NOK 25
million (NGK 97 million in 2018 1s mainly attributable to IT systems and a
stratequc digitalisation project in Kvaarner and is allocated to continued
operations In 2019,

See Note 12 Imozairments for more information regarding impairment
assessments,

Goodwill Other intangible assets
2018 2018 2018 2018

Aker Solutions 4707 4 642 1386 1428
Akastor 1519 1358 309 134
Kvaerner 929 929 132 102
Aker BioMarine a13 576 841 416
Aker Enargy - - 37 -
Other - - 52 36
Total 7967 7506 2757 2116

i
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Note 17 | Investments in associates and joint ventures

The Aker Group has interests In severd! asseciates ard ot vantures
IV, of which the most important anes are: Aker BP ASA (40 per cent,
associate), BOX Holding inc. {49.9 par cent. assoc:ate). Solstad Offshore
ASA (251 pe- cent. associate). FP Bolig Hoiding AS (37.6 per cent,
associate). DOF Deapwater AS (50 per cent, V), Kigwit-Kvaerner
Contractors (50 per cent, JV), K2JV ANS (51 per cent, JV), Align AS (388
per cent, associate), Prirciple "awer (25.4 per cent, associate), REC
Sacon ASA (22.95 per cent, associate). Tryag 10T Holdings | Corp (50
per cert, V), and AKCFS Offshore AS (50 per cent, IV,

Aker BP ASA is an integrated £&= company operating on the Norwegian
continenta* shalf,

BOX Holding Inc. owns six container vesseis chartered out on long-term
bareboat contracts.

Solstad Offshore ASA cwrs and operates platform supgly vessels,
anchor handling vessels and construct on service vessels.

AKOFS Offshore AS 1s a provider of vessel-hased subsea well
construction and intervention services to the ol and gas industry.

K2JV ANS is a partnership between Keilogg Brown & Root {(Norway) AS
and Kvaerner. The partnership 1s constructing the Johan Sverdrup utility
and iiving quarter (ULQ) topside for Equinor.

DOF Deepwater AS oparates in the marine secter The combany owns &
series of f.ve anchor-handing (AHTS) vessels.

Kiewit-Kvaerner Contractors is a parinership beweern Peter Kiewt
Infrastructure Co and Kvaerner. The partnership was established with the
purpose of dehivery af the cont-ac. awarded by ExxonMob.. ‘or the
iebran Project gravity based structure (GBS) offshore Newfoundland,
Carada.

Principle Power Inc a ficating wina power technology corpany.

REC Silicon ASA s a producer of s ican matenals to the solar and
electronics industries.

Align AS is a supplier of tachnical safety and total fire-fighting solutions
for the globai ol and gas market

Trygg IDT Holdings | Corp is a pharmaceutical development company
with FOA approved products for abuse-deterren: ooioids that has been
licensed to others and aunched in the U.S market.

FP Bolig Holding AS develops residential real estate projects a; Fornebu
cutside Gslo.

Tne assoclares and Joing ventures are accounted “or using the equity
method.

Baook value  Acquistions Share of Changes due to Qther  Book value at

at1 january and profts/ exchange differences  Dividends cnangesin - 31 December

2019 disposals losses and hedges receved equity 2019

Aker BP ASA M 19 878 - 429 228 {2653 Moy 17773
BOX Holdings Inc. b 1668 - 202 o8 (186) - 1565
Solstad Offshore ASA b - - - - - - -
AKOFS Offshore AS 2} 1086 - (35) @) - - 1050
K2 .V ANS 2) 24 - 130 - (153) - 1
DOF Deepwater AS 2) - - (1243 - - 124 -
Kiewit-Kvaerner Contractors 23 7 - - - - - 17
Philly Tankers AS 2y 388 (123) - 5 273 - -
Align AS 1 56 - (30) 5 - - 31
Principle Power Inc i - 18 (6) - - M7 130
REC Silicon ASA b - 85 - - - - 85
Tryag iDT Holdings | Corp 2y 20 - - - - - 20
FP Bolig Holding AS b a8 - (2 - - - 96
Other entities 13 (128) (2 4 {1 77 65
Total 23348 (146) 563 123 {3 263> 207 20833
1) Associates 21927 nz 595 121 (2 840) a9 19 724
2) Jeint ventures 142 (258) (32) 3 (4243 388 1109
Total 23348 (1463 563 123 (3263) 207 20 833

other income 1IN the operating profit. Shares of profits or losses from
financial investments are reported as part of financial items.

Shares of profits/iosses from associates and pint ventures are based on
the companies” net profit inclucing profit/loss from discontinued
operations. The purpese of the investment determines whereits results
are presentec in the income statement. When entit.es are formed to
share risk n executing prolects or are closely related to the operating
acrivit es, the shares of the profits and losses are reported as part of

Share of profits/iosses for 2019 is a iccated with NOK 234 millicn as other
income and NOK 229 million as share of profit/loss from associazes and
10int ventures as part of financial items.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND THE GROUP'S OWNERSHIP N MAJOR ASSOCIATES AND JOINTS VENTURES:

Aker ALA annual renorl 2008 ¥V

Solstad Offshore AKOFS
Aker BP ASA BOX Holdings Inc. ASA Offshore AS® K2JV ANS
2019 2018 2019 2018 2018 2018 2019 208 2019 2018
Country Norway Marshal islands Norway Norway Norway
Qwnership and voting nights 400% 400% 489% 498% 23)% 231% 500% 500% 50%  5.0%
Operating revenues 29467 30499 696 £68 5245 4830 1093 448 264 1527
Operating expenses (17 7821 (14 433) (8) 8) (5246) (8621 (858) (2693 acs)  a2m
Financial tems (2139} (1387) (284) (88) (a727y  (1892) (329) (145) - -
Neat profit {100%) 1242 3875 404 473 (287 (732 (94) (62) 256 256
Share of net profit result 497 1550 202 234 (665) (1324 a7 (&) 130 120
Elimination of unrealised sales gain and
other adustments - (3) - 37 665 - 12 1 - -
Depreciation/Impairmeant (67) - - - - 662 - - - -
Share of earnings 429 1547 202 197 - (662) (35) (20} 130 130
Non-current assets 101045 87647 7008 7084 27226 28608 5076 4741 - -
Current assets & 310 5980 K1l 463 2713 3041 638 447 29 332
Total assets 107355 93637 7319 7357 29939 31649 574 5188 39 332
Non-current liabilities (71505) (55606) {46200 (4721) (5050) (10013 (2207) (2098) - -
Current liabilities (15081} (12053) (355) {333y  (28472) (22267 (1373 (861 (37 (1086)
Minority interests - - - - (3 (28) - - - -
Net assets (100% 20788 25978 2344 2503 (3 586) (6583 2134 2229 2 226
Share of net assets 8315 10391 1170 1249 {828) {152) 1067 115 1 15
fhimination of unrealised gains and
{osses, deferred payment and
adjustments (143) (80) 385 418 - 276 43 (154 - on
Excess value 9601 9567 - - 828 (124} 126 125 - -
Balance end of period 17773 19878 1565 1668 - - 1050 1086 1 24
Dividends received 2653 1465 186 184 - - - - 153 107

Aker BP ASA

The excess value of NOK 9.6 hillion is allocated to the Johan Sverdrup

fleld with NOK 7.1 oillion and hOAKA-field (North of Alvhem,

Krafa/Askjg) with NOK Z.4 billlon. The depreciation of NOK 67 million in
201G is attributable tc the Johan Sverdrup field. Together with the
company, Aker is performing impairment assessments. Sensitivity

analysis of excess vaiue have been perforrred by using simulations of
various combinations of discount rates, ol orice and value growth, No
reasonably possible comrbination of these factors resu ts ina value in use
beirg lower than the value recognised in the balance sheet as of 31
December 2019,

Aker BP ASA, Soistad Offshore ASA and REC Silicon ASA are listed companies. Shown below are the share prices and market values of the Group's

share in the companles.
Number of shares Guoted price in  Book value in NOK Market vaiue in
in milions NOK million NOK mithon
Aker BP ASA 1440 288.00 17773 41 486
Solstad Offshore ASA 673 097 - 65
REC Silcon ASA 642 2.68 85 172
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Note 18 | Interest-bearing assets

2019 2018
Restricted deposits 783 528
Loans to employees 66 22
Loans (o related parbes 381 450
Non-cJrrent bonds - 37
Pre-delivery instalments - Finance lease racetvables 136 798
Qtner Interest-hearing recevables 416 536
Total 1782 2372
Recorded as follows
Interest-bearing non-current receivabias 1140 1921
Interest-beanng carrent receivables 642 451
Total 1782 2372

Restricted depasits ir 2079 mainty relates to a deposit relataed to loan agreements in Philty Shipyard of NOK 584 mullion and in Ocear Yield of NOK 199
milhon.

Loans to related parties consists of loans to the associate FP Boiig Holding AS of NOK 52 million, the joint veniure AKQOFS Offshore AS of NOK 181
million, and to Aker Pensjcnskasse of NOK 102 million.
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Note 19 | Leases

LEASES IN WHICH THE GROUP 1$ A LESSEE

The Groug has lease coniracts related to warerouses. rental of off ces and factory faciities end machines and vehices Contracts reiares to leasing of
buildings and locations typ.caliy has lease periods of 10-15 years witn options for rerewal at market value. Lease contracts regarding IT services.
vehicles and equipment have an average lease term of 3-5 years. Ir 2018 the lease contracts were classified as operat.onai leases according to 1AS 17
At the implementahor ¢f IFRS 1S at 1 January 2019, The Group has applied the exemption not to recognise right-of-use assets and iabilizies for lzase
with less than 12 months of lease term, or ieases oF low vaiue tems (for example 17 equ.pment)

Right-of-use assets and fease fiabilities recognised in the balance sheet
Right-of-use assets

Lang and  Macninery ard

buldings vehicles Total Lease liabllities
Carrying amount at @ January 20°9 520 43 5243 677
Additions 745 5 750 750
Remeasurements {55) - {65 (65)
Terminations {80% - 8 (2203
Derecogntion of ROU asset due to sublease (28) - (28] -
Reclassification of property, piant anc equipment 7 - 7 -
Depraciation (661) (1€} (6773 -
Impdirment (266} - {266) -
Interest expense - - - 293
Lease payments and nierests - - (1055
Effect of changes in ‘oreign exchange rates 43 - 43 108
Carrying amount at 31 Decernber 2019 4797 32 4 827 6 583
Amounts recognised in the income statement and the cash flow statement
. 2019
Lxpenses relating 1o short-term leases presented N other operating expenses and cost of goods sold (761
Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets presented in other cperating expenses and cost of goods sald (161)
Expenses relating to variable lease payments presented in other operating expenses 20
Gain on termination of lease agreements presented in other operating expenses 40
Interast on {ease liabi ities preserted in financial expenses {293)
Total cash cutflows for leases exclusive interest (762}
2018 - Operating leases under |AS 17
Minimum lease payments  Sublease income 2018
Buildings and vessels 999 - 999
Machinery and equipment 163 - 163
Other agreements 1 _ 1
Leasing agreements as part of other operating expenses 163 - 1183
Part of operating revenLe ‘ (244) (244)
Part of cost of goods and changes in inventory 263 B 263
Total leasing agreements 1426 (244} 1182

73
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LEASES IN WHICH THE GROUP IS A LESSOR

ARG T

2019 208
Finance lease 14 819 9383
Finance sublease 734 -
Total 15 553 9 382
Recorded as follows:
Non-current finance lease receivables 13513 3 383
Current finance lease receivables 2040 -
Totat 18 553 9383
Financial leases

F nance lease rece vable of NOK 14.8 billion represents Ocean Yield's ownershin in 48 vesseis. This includes NOK 15 oillion agaimnst the joint venture
AKOFS Offshore AS, “or the lease of Aker Wayfarer. in 208, these lease contracts were ciassified as financial leases according to IAS 17 See details for

the financial lease receivab es in the tasle below:

Aker Container QOther

Wayfarer vessels Tankers shipping Total
Number of vessels 1 4 28 14 48
Gross f.nance lease recevables
Less than one year 330 106 1278 290 2004
Between one and five years 1026 425 4 026 1167 6 642
More than five years 7 585 6 766 2104 10 156
Unguaranteed residual values 507 195 1677 122 2 501
Gross finance lease receivables 2564 1310 13 746 3682 21304
Less: unearned finance income {113) (346) {4 053) (973 (6 485)
Total finance Jease receivables 1451 965 9693 2710 14 819
Present value of minimum lease payments
Less than one year 307 104 1237 281 1930
Between one and five years 68! 362 3305 1301 5439
More than five years 289 388 4237 1354 6 268
Unguaranteed residual values 173 12 824 75 1182
Total finance lease receivables 1451 965 9693 2710 14 819
Pre-gelivery instaiments - - - 137 137
Totat finance lease receivables and related assets 1451 965 9693 2847 14 956

Financial sublease

The Group also has financial subleases related to nght-of-use assets previously Classified as operational subleases according to I1AS 17, After IFRS 16,
when the Group is an intermediate lessor, the subleases are ¢ assified with reference to the right-of-use assets ansing from the head lease. If the lease

term in the sublease contract for nght-of-use assets cover the main part of the lease term in the heac lease, the sublease may be ciassified as a

financial sublease. In these cases, the Group derecognises right-of-use assets and recognises a recelvable at the commencement of the sublease.

Mavements in financial subleases from the impiementation of IFRS16 ¢an be summarised as fol ows

2019
Balance at 1 January, 2019 789
Additions 28
Interast income 30
Lease payments including interests (138)
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates 23
Balance at 31 December 2019 734

Balance at 31 December 2018 include NOK 197 million against the associated company Aker BP.
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The foliowing table sets our a maturty aratysis of fimancial sublease receivab €, show ng the undiscounted lease payments to be received after the
repcrting date:

2019
L.ess than one year - 144
One to two years 142
Two to three years 139
Three to four years 121
Four to five years BRI
Mare than five years 305
Gross undiscounted finance sublease receivables 935
Less: unearned finance income (200
Total finance sublease receivables 734

Operational leases (Ocean Yield)

Leases in whick a significant portion of the 1 sks and ~ewards o ownership are retained by QOcean Yieid are ¢ assified as operating leases. Revenue from
operational leases totalled NOK 909 milhon n 2C19. Future miumum [ease payments under non-cancellable cperating lease agreements are
summarised as foliows.

2019 208
Less than one year 748 855
Between one and five years 2905 297
Mare than five years 1854 2563
Total operating lease 5506 €385

Operational sublease
The Group also has cperational subleases for right-of-use assets classified as operat onal subleases according to IFRS 6. Total revenue from
operational subleases totalled NOK 168 million 'n 2079,
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Note 20 | Other shares and non-current assets

Annuast accoants LA

Ty

2019 2018
Norror funds - 26
American Shipping Company ASA 380 385
NLS Global Tatent Ld. 644 530
Awilce Or lling Pic 48 76
Ocfiall Drilling Ltd. 79N 705
Sharas In grher companias 271 267
Total other shares and investments 2135 1389
Pension assets (Note 27) 2 ]
Other Interest-free non-current receivabies 100 132
Totai other aon-current assets 102 132
Total other shares and other non-current assets 2236 212
Note 21| Inventories

2019 2018
Raw materials 226 103
Work in progress 614 870
Finished goods 997 779
Total 1838 1752
Impairment of inventary recogrisec as expense during the period (194) aon
Reversai of mpairment recognised as an exgense reduction during the period 71 69
Carrying amount of inventory pledged as security for habilities was NOK 390 million as at 31 December 2019.
Note 22 | Trade and other short-term interest-free receivables

2019 2018
Trade receivaples 4 969 5408
Contract assets 7136 4 696
Other short-term interest-free receivables 3447 3042
Total 15 552 13146

QOther short-term receivables in 2019 includes prepaid expenses with NOK 2 228 million.

See alse Note 6 Financial nisk and exposure.
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Note 23 | Earnings per share, dividend per share, and paid-in equity

EARNINGS PER SHARE

2019 2018
Continued operations;
Net profit (loss) from continuec operations (1940) 930
Minority interasts (4320) 404
Profit from continued operations attributable to equity holders of the parent {1510) 526
Discontinued operations:
Net profit {loss) from discontinued operations (64) 438
Minority interests (41) 58
Profit from discontinued operations attributable to equity holders of the parent 23> 379
Total profit attributable to equity holders of the parent (1533} 206
Shares outstanding at 1 January 74 268 792 74 295513
Changes 1 own shares heid 9 407 (26771
Total shares outstanding at 31 December 74 278 199 74 268 792
Allocation:
Issued shares at 31 December 74 321862 74 321862
Own shares held {43 663) (53 070
Total shares outstanding at 31 December 74 278199 74 268 792
Weighted average number of shares at 31 December 74 271928 742682137

DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
No instruments with a potential dilution effect were outstand.ng at 31
Decempoer 2019 or 31 December 2018,

DIVIDEND
Cividends pa:d in 2019 was NOK 22 50 per share, NOK 187 million in

total. Dividends paid in 2018 was NOK 18.00 per share, NOK 1337 milli

Note 24 | Minority interests

on

11 total. No dividend will be proposed for the Annual General Meaating on
27 April 2020, but that the Board of Directors instead is authorised to
declare dividend based on the 2019 annual acgounts.

PAID-IN CAPITAL
See Note 9 to the Aker ASA separate financial statement for a
specification of share capital as at 31 December 2019,

The Aker Group includes several subsidiaries owned less than 100 per cent. See Note 9 Operating segmenss and signif cant subsidianes for key figures

for sorme of these companies

Aker Aker Qcean Aker Philly Cther

! Soiutions  Akastor  Lnergy Kvaerner Yield BioMarine Sheoyard companies Sum
Per cent minority interests as at 31 December 2019 6524 6330 5075 7129 33.28 2.00 472.44 - -
Balance at 31 December 2018 10523 1944 367 3458 3051 - 522 41 19908
Impact of changes in accounting poicies (232) (43 - - - - - (2363
Correction previous year (59) - - - - - - {59)
Balance at 1 January 2019 10233 1940 367 3458 3051 - 522 41 19613
Profit for the year 70 56 (582> 167 (104) 3 (89} h [CY4))
Other comprehensive ncome 8 (&)} 15 {12) 48) - 4 @ (64)
Dividend (3 - - 187y (433) - - (25) (676)
New mincrity, release of minonty (4) 20 - 3 {3) 28 - 1 41
Share issue by subsidiary - - 464 - 1435 - - 11 1971
Balance at 31 December 2019 10 276 1985 265 3425 3958 27 458 21 20414
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Minority interest in Aker Kvzerner Holding

The minosty interest in Aker Kvaerner Holding of NOK 5 917 million at 31
Decemoer 2018 .5 oroken down in the table above on the companies
where Aker Kvaerner Holging has ownersaig interests, with NOK 2 569
million for Aker Solutions, NOK 1228 million for Akastor and NOK 1119
million for Kvaerner.

Anpnizt guoounis S

Share issue by subsidiary

Qcear Vield received ROK 717 mitiion through a snare 1ssue in hovemier
2019, n additicn, Ocean Vield issied 1n August 2019 a perpetua hybnd
callabie bona of LSD 125 mililor. These two transactions have afte” the
decuctior of the mmonty share of transactions costs, increasec the
munority nterest by NOK 1495 mullion.

Share increases in Aker Energy AS during 2019 from The Resource Group
TRG AS and other minerity snarehoiders have increased mingrity
interests by NOK 464 million.

Note 25 | Other comprehensive income

Total
translasion
Translation Far value Hedging and other Retained Minority Total
ressrve  reserves  reserves reserves  ea nings Total _intgrests equity
2019
Defined benefit pian actuarial gains (losses) - - (55) (55) (94} 149)
Cquity investments at FVOC: - nat change ir fair value - 9 - 9 - 3 27 31
|terns that wilt not be reclassified to incame statement - 3 - 9 {55) (456) (€3] (Na)
Debt investments a: FVOC - net change in fair valLe - - - - - - - -
Charges in fair value of casr. fiow hedges - 40 40 - 40 73 113
Reclassified 1o profit or loss: debt investments at
FVvOCL translat.on and cash flow hedges 37 - ey (52) - {523 (93) (145)
Currency translation differences 77 - - 77 - 77 79 156
Changes in other comprehensive income from
associated and joint veniure compenies 247 - (84) 163 - 163 (5 m
Items that may be reclassified to income statement
subseguently 287 - (59) 228 - 228 8 235
Other comprahensive income 2019 287 9 (55 237 (55 182 (64) 1w
Total
translation
Transiation Fair value Hedging and other Retamned Mirority Total
FESEIVE  reserves  reserves reserves  earnings Total Interes:s equity
2018
Defined benefit plar actuarial gains (losses) - - - - (20 (30} 53 (82)
Equity investmen:s at FvOCi - net change in fair value - 82 - 82 - 82 (16) 66
iterns that will not be reclassified to income statement - 82 - 82 (30 52 (68) (16}
Debt investmenss at FVOC! - net change 11 %air value - 4 . 4 - 4 z 6
Charges in farr vaiue of cash flow hadges - - 59 59 - 59 (363 (95)
Reclassified to profit or loss: debt investments at
FVOCH, transiation and cash flow hedges (165 (123 {77 - a7 (30D (478)
Currency transiation differences 62 - - g2 - 362 153 515
Changes in othar comprehens've income from
associateq and joint venture companies 1151 (23) 1128 3 1131 2 1133
Items that may be reclassified to iIncome statement
subseguently 1348 4 (94} 1258 3 1261 (180) 1081
Qther comprehensive income 2018 13483 86 (54) 1340 (27 133 (248} 1065
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Note 26 | Interest-bearing liabilities

2019 2018
Secured bank loans 24 459 17 851
Unsecured bank :oans 343 988
Unsecurad bond issues 1006 noz
Convernibie loan 863 -
LLoan from associazes and other reiated parties 12 12
Qverdraft facilities 274 132
Ctner interest-bear:ng liabilities 142 473
Total interest-bearing liabilities 40187 30 427
Recorded as follows:
Current liabilties 6762 5682
Non-current liabilities 33 425 24 745
Total interest-bearing liabilities 40187 30427
CHANGES IN THE GROUP'S INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES IN 2019:

[ Nen-current Current Total
Interest-beanng labilities as a: 31 December 2018 24 745 5682 30 427
Bond In Aker Solutions 1000 - 1000
Drawn bank facility in Aker Solutions 600 - 600
Drawn bank facllity in Ocean Yied 6 053 - 6 053
Bond in Ocean Yied 750 - 750
Drawn bank facility in Akastor 1135 - 1135
Drawn bank facility in Aker ASA and hotding companies 1724 - 1724
Drawn Schuldschen loan in Aker ASA end holdirg companies 874 - G974
Bond in Aker ASA and holairg compaties 1500 - 1500
Drawn bank facility .n Aker BioMarine 1455 - 1455
Convertibie subcrdinated hond in Aker Energy 557 - 851
QOther new loans and loan fees M 462 763
Change in credit facilibes - 33 (33)
Total payments of interest-bearing loans 16 343 429 16 772
Repayment of bank facilities n Aker Soiutions - (1200} 1000
Repayment of bonds in Aker ASA and hold.ng companies (3500 {1372} {1722)
Repayment of bank facilities n Ocean Yield (142€) (1691 GNN
Repayment of bank facilities n Akastor (455) - (455)
Other repayments (367 (454 (821
Total repayments of interest-bearing loans (2597) {4 517) (7 114}
Acguisition and saie of subsidiaries 157 (287) Q30
Reclassification / first year instalments (5432 5432 -
Currency translation and other cnanges 209 23 232
interest-bearing liabilities as at 31 December 2019 33425 6 762 40187

Currency adjustrnents total NOK 0.2 bithon and are mainty attributable to the USD loans described above. Loans denominated in USD a: the end of the
year totalled USD 2.8 billion. A 40 per cent increase In the USD exchange rate compared to the rate of 8.78 on the balance sheet date would nave
caused an increase In debt expressed 1 NOK of NOK 101 billiorn.



CONTRACTUAL TERMS OF INTEREST-BEARING LtABILITIES AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019:

Nom.nai value Carrying
Currency Nominal interes: rate Matority incurrency  amount {(NOK)
Aker Solutions
Unsecured bond 2022 NOK I mths MNibor - 315% Juby 2027 1500 1503
Unsecured bond 2024 NOK 3 mths Nibor - 300% June 2024 1200 553
Unsecured bank loar - Term lgan NOK Nibor-110% March 2023 £00 582
Unsecured bank ioan - 3raz:lian Deveopment Bark BRL B.62% 2020 to 2024 190 415
QOther loans and loan fees 4
Total Aker Soiutions 3457
Akastor
Unsecured bank loan NOK Nior +325% December 2021 800 794
Unsecured bank loar, - Term loan NOK 4.00% Aprii 2027 180 161
Unsecured bank loar UsD Libor + 3.25% December 2021 56 194
Total Akastor | | 1448
Ocean Yield
Secured loans in USD LJSD Libor + 0.€6% - 240% 202G to 2029 1845 16 013
Secured Ioans in NOK NOK 369% 2025 489 485
Unsecured hond NOK Nibor~3.65% - 4.5% 2020 to 2024 2709 2689
Total Ocean Yield 19186
Aker BioMarine
Secured bank [oans UsD Libor + 2.50% - 3.95% 2022 to 2023 166 1461
Secured bank loans UsD 313% 2031 106 928
Otner mortgage loans NOK 2023 to 2026 99 a9
Qtner loans and overdraft faciiities 406
Totat Aker BioMarine 2894
Aker ASA and helding companies
Unsecured bond 1ssue NOK Nibor ~ 1.890% - 5 00% 2020 to 2024 5 851 5822
Schuldschein loan EUR 1674% / Euribor + 1.60%  March 2024 100 986
Term loan facilives USD Libor 4 margin 2022 550 4821
Total Aker ASA and hoiding companies 1162
Other companies
FP Erendom NOK Nibor + 1.65% December 2022 125 125
Pilly Shipyard UsD 2.63% March 2020 60 526
Aker Energy LsD 5.5% a8 861
Other companies - 18
Total other companies _ I8z
Total interest-bearing liabllities 40187

Aker Solutions

Akastor

Unsecured bonds: The bonds are unsecured on a negative pledge basis
and incluge no dividenc restrictions. The bonds 1ssued are listed on the
Oslo Stock Exchange.

Bank loans: The terms and conditions of the Brazilian Development Bank
loan include restrictions which are customary far this kand of facility.

Credit facility: Aker Solutions has a credit fac.lity of NOK 5 billlon with
expiry in Marchk 2023, As per the end of 2019, NOK 600 million was
drawn on the facility

Mortgage ioans: The terms and conditions include restrictions which are
customary for this kind of facility, .ncluding inter alia negative pledge
provis.ons and restrictions on acquisitions, disposals and mergers. There
are also certain change of contrel provisions included.

Kvaerner
Kvaerner has a revofving credit facifity of NOK 2 hillion with maturity in
September 2024, The facility was undrawn at 31 December 2019,
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Ocean Yield

Mortgage Ioan: The mortgage loans are with different bank syndicates
and are securad in 61 vessels with a book va.ue of NOK 227 billion. The
mortgage loans have an average debt maturity of 4 years with matunity
from September 2020 to August 2031 interests are manly paid
quarterly.

Unsecured bends: The senior unsecured bond issuas have a floating
irterest, whick is paid guarterly. The Company has entered Into cross
currency Interest rate swaps from NOK interest to USD Interest.

The facilities .nclude financial covenants as to equty ratio, interest
coverage ratio anc minimum |.guidicy. Ocean Vield was in compliance
with all covenants at year-end 2019,

Aker BioMarine
Secured loans: Instalments and interest are paid semi-annually.

The mortgages and overdraft facility, totalling NOK 2 882 million, are
secured in ships and other assets with book values of NOK 2 916 millicn.

The loan and overdraft facilities .nclude several financial covenants. Aker
BioMarme was in compliance with all covenants at yvear-end 2019.

Aker ASA and hoiding companies

Senior unsecured bonds: The maturity dates and interest rates are shown
in Note 14 to Aker ASA's separate financial statements. The principal falls
due on the maturizy date and interest is payable quarterly.

Schuldschein loan: The loan consists of a EUR 30 mitlion fixed interest
tranche with a fixed interest of 1.67 per cent, and a EUR 70 millicn
floating interest tranche with an interest of Euribor plus 160 per cent
margin The loan is unsecured.

Mortgage loan: The mortgage loans have quarterly interest payments.
The loans are secured with 42.8 million Aker BP ASA shares.
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The bongs and loans have an average debt maturity of 2.9 years with
maturity from May 2020 to November 2024,

There are several covenants associated with Akes ASA end holding
companies’ loans, inciuding debt ratio and total Internal loans and
guarantees in relation to Aker ASA and holding companies net asset
value, Aker ASA was in compliance with all covenants at the end of 2019.

FP Ejendom

Loans with a group of Norwegian banks with floating interest. nterest
and instalments are payable quarterly untit maturity. The loans mature
with NOK 10 million in 2020 and 2021 and NOK 105 million after 2022,

Philly Shipyard
The company’s loans are secured in full with restricted cash.

Aker Energy

Aker Energy enterec into an agreement on 4 July 2013 to1ssue USD 10C
million of subordinated convertible bonds te Africa Finance Corporation.
The bonds have a coupon of 5.5 per cent per year and will be converted
to equity in the avent of an Initial Zublic Offering (“IPO™) of Aker Energy.
The bonds have a maturity of five years, with an option to extend with
another three years. Aker Energy shall redeem the bonds in full if the
Plan for Development and Operations of the o field DWT/CTP has not
been approved by all relevant governmental authorities within 11 April
2020, and hence the loan has been ciassified as current hability as at 31
December 2019,

Collateral

Coliateral for interest-bearing debt of NOK 24.9 billion has been issued
related to secured loans, construction loans and overdraft facllities The
book value of the assets used as collateral is NOK 31 billion.
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Note 27 | Pension expenses and pension liabilities

The Aker Group's Norweg:ian companies mamly cover their pension
liabilities thraugh group pension plans managed by life insdrancs
companies. The Norwegian compar.es in the Group are subject 1o the
Nerwegian Act relating to mandatory occupationa. pensions. and the
Group meets the reguiremean:s of this legisiation.

The discodnt rates usec in 20°8 and 2018 are based an the Norwegian
high-quality corporate bond rate

The foliowing assumptions have beer made when calculaling habilres
and experses in Norway:

Profit/fioss 2019

i addition. some of the Norwegian companies are mermibers of an Balance 2019  and balance 2018
agreement-basea early retirement plan (AFF). The schemes provide a O
large proportion of tne Norwegian employaes the opportunity to retire Expected return 2.2% 28%
before the normal retirement age in horway of 67 years. Lmployees whe Discount rate 2.2% 2.8%
choose retirement wi l retain a lifelong benefit from the age of 62 years.

Wage growth 2.25% 2.75%
The Group's companias ouisize Norway have pension pians based on ) . . )

local practice and regulations. Pension adjustment 0.0%-4.0% C.0%-4.0%
The Group a&sc has uninsdred pension labilities for which provisions have Mortality table K2013 K203
been made
PENSION EXPENSE RECOGNISED IN PROFIT AND LOSS:

2019 2018

Expense related to benefts earned during the perod 107 0
Interest expense accrued an pension liabilities 38 35
Expected return on pension funds 2y an
Service costs 1 1
Pansion expense recognised from defined benefit plans 134 14
Contribution plans (empioyer's contribution) 692 658
Total pension expense recognised In profit and loss 826 777
Allocation In income s:atement’

Pension cost recognised as part of wages and other personal expenses 800 749

Interest expensas and expectad return recogrised as part of net firancial iterms 26 23
Total pension expense recognised in profit and loss B26 772
REMEASUREMENT LOSS (GAIN) INCLUDED IN OTHER COMRPEHENSIVE INCOME:

2019 2018
Change in ciscount rate and o:her financial assumptions 45 ()
Change in Iife expectancy - 6
Change in other assumptions 142 95
Cther comprehensive income - loss/(gain} before tax 188 97
Tax (39) s
Other comprehensive income - 10ss/(gain) after tax 149 82
CHANGES IN NET PRESENT VALUE OF BENEFIT-BASED PENSION LIABILITIES:

. 2019 2018
Net pension abiities at 1 January 1180 1189
Pension expense recogrised from defined benefit plans 134 14
Acguisitions and disposals - N
Pension payments {60) 68)
Payments receivea (135) (130}
Remeasurements inzludec in ozher comprehensive income 188 97
Effects of changes in exchange rates and other changes 2 16)
Net pension liabilities at 31 December 1308 1180
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NET DEFINED-BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS RECOGNISED IN THE BALANCE SHEET:

2019 2018
Pension liabilies et 31 Decemaer {2 969) (2872)
Falr value of pension funds at 31 Decemper 1660 1692
Net fiabilities for benefit-based pension liabilities at 31 December (1 308) (118C)
Pension funds 2 1
Pension Labilities (1309) (18h
Net tHabilities for benefit-based pension liabilities at 31 December (1308) a8s)
PLAN ASSETS PER CATEGORY:

2019 2018
Bonds 895 1139
Other 640 434
Total funds Norwegian plans 1535 1373
Total funds for plans outside Norway 125 19
Total funds 1660 1692

The bond investments are maniy N Norwegian municipalities.

Norwegian muricipal ties are assumed to have a rating equal to AA. but

there ara no official ratings for the majority of these Invesiments. The
reraining bond investmens are primarily in the Norwegian marxet
within bonds class fied as being “Invesiment Grade”™.

SENSITIVITY (NORWEGIAN PLANS):

1 the table below, the effect on pension expenses and pension liabilities
is depicted given a one percentage point increase o« decraase in the
discount rate. The effect of a one percentage point increase or reduction
in pension ad;ustment is shown as well,

1 %-point 1%-point
increase reduction
Discount rate (24 24
Future pension growth 25 (2]
Note 28 | Other interest-free long-term liabilities
2018 2018
US pension guarantee provis.or (see Note 12 to the Aker ASA fnancial statement? i 89
Dervatives (see also Note 31} 217 232
Deferred revenue and deferred considerations 352 281
(Other interest-free long-term debt 581 135
Total other interest-free long-term liabilities 1222 837
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Note 29 | Provisions
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Warranties Abandonment provision Other Total
Balance at 31 December 2018 828 223 1513 2564
Effect of img ementirg IFRS 6 - - (217} 277)
Balance at 1 January 2019 828 223 1236 2288
P-ovisions made durnng the year 148 08 283 540
Provisions usec during the year {1833 (225) G775 (585)
Provisions reversed aunng the year (433> - o {503)
Reclassifications 10 - 8 18
Currency exchange adjusiment 5] 3 0 19
Balance at 31 December 2019 3717 109 1289 1774
Non-current liabilities - - 101 101
Current labilities 377 109 1188 1673
Balance at 31 December 2019 377 109 1289 1774

Warranties  Abandonment provision Other Total
Balance at 1 January 2018 861 247 1066 2174
Acquisition and disposals of subsidiaries - - 75 75
Provisions mace during the year 217 88 837 1142
Provisions usec during the year (129) Me) (442) (687)
Provisions reversed during the year (1C9; - e (270)
Reclassifications (s 8 94 75
Currency exchange adjustrnent - 12 43 55
Balance at 31 December 2018 828 223 1513 2 564
Non-current liatylities 1 - 220 221
Current lighilities 827 223 1292 2343
Balance at 31 December 2018 828 223 1513 2 564

Warranties

The provision for warranties mainty relates to the possibility that the
group, based on contractual agreements, may have to perform
guarantee work re ated to products and services delivered to customers.
The provision is based on Aker's contractuai obligations and empirical
estimates of the frequency and cost of work that may need to be done.
The warranty period 15 normaliy twe to five years and any cash effects
will anse during thus period

NCK 182 miltion nas been provided for warranties in Aker Solutions, NOK
65 million in Akastor. NOK 114 million in Kvagrner and NOK 15 millien in
Pilly Snipyard. Reversed warranty orovis:ion in Aker Solutions amounted
to NOK 34 million in 2679, main:y due to Lpdated and refined estirmates
for warranty provisions.

Removal and decommissioning liabilities
The current hability of NOK 109 million relates to the FRS0 Dhirubhar- n
Ccean Yield. Due to delays, the cost of the decommissioning process has

increased, and an addit onal provisicn of USD 12.2 million has beer
recagnised in 2019 The decommissioning work was finalised i February
2020.

Qther provisfons

Otner provisions mainly comprise Aker Energy with NOK 758 million,
Akastor with NOK 104 million, Aker Solutions with NOK 33% milion,
Kvaerner with NOK 56 miilian and FP Eilendom with NOK 20 miflion. The
provis on In Aker Energy is marly related to contingent liability from the
acguisition of Hess Ghana. The provision will be settied when the Plan of
Development 15 approved by the Ghanaian authorities. Other provisiars
relate to warkforce reductiors and restructuring in adaition to onerous
customer contracts with expected [oss upon compietion, in addition to
restructuring provisions. In 2018, onercus lease for vacant preruses was
also included in other provisions. After the implementation of IFRS 16 an 't
January 2019, the right-of-use assets has beer adjusted by onerous
lease.



Arnual wecounls [ £ 20 o Arer ALA & renomt 2018 91

Note 30 | Trade and other payables

2019 2018
Trade accounts payable 3306 2732
Contract liabilicies 1447 1764
Accrugis of operat ng- and financial expenses 8 206 793
Other current interes:-free hadilities 2201 2107
Tatal 15160 14 529
Other current liabihties include VAT, payroll tax and tax withholding and reserves for unpaid wages and holiday payments,
Note 31| Financial instruments
See aisc Note 6 Finarcial risk and exposure for description of financial instruman:s.
CARRYING AMCUNTS AND ESTIMATES OF FAIR VALUE
2019 2018
Carrying Fair Carrying fFair
amount value amount value
Financial assets carried at fair value
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVQCH 1102 1102 2030 1030
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (including derivatives) 1126 1126 1168 1108
Interest rate swaps - hedge accounting at FvOC 5 5 - -
Foreign exchange contracts - hedge accounting ar FVOC 209 209 342 342
Total financial assets carried at fair value 2442 2442 2 480 2480
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Loans and receivables 22 547 22546 17 62 17 746
Cash and cash eguivaients (including long-term restricted deposits, see Note 18) 12 218 12 218 10 314 10 314
Total financial assets carried at amortised cost 34 764 34 764 27 476 28 061
Financial liabilities carried at fair value
Interest rate swaps - hedge accounting at FVOC, - - 9 9
Foreign exchange contracts - hedge accaounting at FvOC, 46 45 120 190
Derivative cantracts - not hedge accounting at fai value thraugh profit and loss 585 585 618 618
Other ligh-lities at fair vaiue through profit and loss % 324 324 74 74
Total financial liabilities carried at fair value 955 955 891 8N
Financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
Bonds 1 006 1399 1021 noa2
Qther interest-bearing deb: 29181 29245 19 406 19 468
Interest-free non-current financiai liabilizies 759 759 518 518
Interest-free current financial liabilities 1154 1154 10 724 1072

Total financial liabilities carried at amortised cost 52100 52 557 4] 669 41993

Chown cned doforr
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NC¥ 3.2 billior of financial dabilizies ¢ assified as fixed rate in the interest profile tatle (Note 6) are liabllities that pursuant o contract have floating
intares: rates tut have been swanped 1o “ixed rates using nterest rate swaps. In the fable above, tha changes in the fair value of thesa derivatives due
to interest rate cnanges are shown on the line “Interest rate swaos-hedge accounting at FVCCI™ and tne line “Dervative contracts - not hedge
accounting ar farr vaiue through profit ang loss”.

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
The table below analyses filnancial instruments by va uation method. See Note 5 Accounting principies for def nitions of the different levels in the fair
value hergrchy

2019

Level: Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets carried at fair value
Financial assets at farr vaiue tarough other comprehens ve income 380 8 7L
Financsal assets at farr vaiue through profit and loss (including derivatives) 56 20 1049
Interest rate swaps - hedge accounting at FVCT: - 5
Foreign exchange contracts - hedge accountirg at FVOC] - 209 -
Total 436 243 1763
Financial liabilities carried at fair value
Foreign exchange contracts - hedge accounting at FVOCI - 46 -
Dervative contracts - not hedge accounting at fair value through profit and loss - 585 -
Otner labilities at fair value through profit and loss - 39 285
Total - 670 285
Fair value interest-bearing financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
Bonds 8550 - 2849
Otner interest-bearing debt - 27489 1755
Totat 8550 27 4838 4 6504

CHANGES FOR RECURRING FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS FOR FINANCIAL ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS LEVEL 3 AS AT 31 DECEMBER:

2019 2018
Carrying amount as at 1 January 1534 1095
Transfer to level 3 4 9
Total gains or losses for the peried recognised in the income statement 207 Y
Total gains or losses recogrised in other comprehensive income 17 4%
Purchases 3 765
Divestment and other (2) (363)
Carrying amount as at 31 December 1763 1534

The amount of gains or losses for the penod ncluded in profit and loss and other comprenensive
ncome that is attribatable to gains or losses related ta assets and liabilities at level 3 stilt held at
the end of the reporting period 224 i
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Note 32 | Contingencies, guarantee liabilities and legal claims

GUARANTEES

Ir the course of ordinary operatiors, compietion guarantees are issued.
and advance payments are receved from customers. Guarantess are
typically ssued to the customer oy a flnancial instituticn.

Akastor ASA has issued financial guarantees in favolr of financial
irstitut.ons relared o financing of the five vessels in DOF Deepwater AS.
The guarantee was NOK 495 million per 31 Decamber 2018 (NOK 507
milhon per 31 Decemper 2008). of which NOK 177 million has been
provided for under other non-current liabitities as part of the recognition
of Akastor's accumuiated share of the company’s 1osses.

Akastar AS has issued a financial parent company Indemnity guarantee
of NOK 43 milion and & fimancial guarantee of NOK 136 miltion in favour
of finance nstitutions for fulfilmen: of lease obligations related to Avium
Subsea AS. @ whoiy owned subsidiary of AKOFS Offshore. In addit on,
Akastor is guarantesing the performance of AKOFS Naorway Operations
AS (operating AKCFS Seafarer) under the 5-vear charter agreement with
Eoumnor The total contract value of this charter agreement 1s NOK 3.3
billion. In addition, Akastor ASA has 1ssued a guarantee for payment of
preferred dividend from AKQOFS Offshare to its other investees over six
vears for a total amount of NOK 319 miliion.

LEGAL DISPUTES

Through their activities. the group companies are involved in varnous
disputes all over the world. Provisions a-e made to cover expected losses
resulting from such d sputes If a negative outcomne 15 likely and a reliable
estimate can be prepared. However, the final decision in such cases wilt
always be associated with uncertainty, and a liability may thus exceed
the provision mace in the accounts.

Kvaerner - Nordsee Ost Project

11 2012, arpitrat on relased to the hordsee Ost project was filed. The last
wind jackets for the project were deliveres in October 2073, The
arb.tretion process for the project wi.l take e due to high complexity,
and it s currently not possibie to estimate when the arbitrat on wil oe
fTnalised. There is substant al uncertainty with respect to the final
financial outcome of the Nordsee Cst projact.

TAX CLAIMS

Group comparnies a-e regularly involved in matters under consideration
by local tax authorities in various countries The groug treats matters,
which have not beer finally resclved, in accordance with the intormation
available a: the time the annual accounts are issued

Abker Solutions - Tax claim Brazif

The tax authorities in the state of Parana in Brazil has claimed tha Aker
Soiutions company in Brazil for approximate y BRL 265 million (NOK 580
million} inclucing penalties and interests, stating that the conditions for
the exoort exemption from ICMS are not fulfilied. ICMS 15 a value added
tax on sa.es and services related to the mavement of goods.
Management has the opinion that a successful cutcame in the
admnistrative appeal system or in 3 judicial procass is kely basec on
current faw and practice. The claim is regarded as a contingent liability
since the possible outcome will be confirmed by the occurrence of an
uncertain future event {a potential court decision). No provision has been
made for this conrzingent liability since a cash outflow 15 not corsidered
probable nor is 1t possibie to establish a rel.able estimate,

Note 33 | Transactions and agreements with related parties

Aker ASA’s main shareholder is TRG Holding AS, controlled by Kjell Inge
Rexke through The Resource Groug TRG AS (TRG AS). The Aker Group
treats all companies controlied by Kjell nge Raxke as related parties.

TRANSACTIONS WITH KJELL INGE RBKKE AND FAMILY

Through TRG AS, K.ell Irge Rakke cwrs varcus companies with
investments in industrial properties, as well as 40 per cent of the shares
o the commercia real estate company Fornebu Gateway AS. Compan:es
within the group are tenants at several of these properties. In 2019,
companies within the group paid NOK S0 mellion in rent to the reat estate
companies owred by TRG and NOK 186 million in rent to Fornebu
Gateway AS (NOK 89 million to the real estate companies owned by TRG
and NCK 170 mullicn in rent to Fornebu Gateway AS in 2018). Except for
contractual annual CPl-adijustments, the rent has been unchanged
subsequent to TRG taking over the ownearship of the properties a few
YE8Irs ago.

Since 2075, Aker ASA has guaranteed for certain pension liabihizies in TRG
AS (previously Aker Maritime Finance AS) that the company 1Gok over
from Aker ASA In 2015 (see Note 12 to Aker ASA'S separate fingnciat
statement).

TRG AS has in 2019 cantributed NOK 454 mihon in equity to Aker
Energy AS, and has as of year-end 2019 contrinuted a total of NOK 825
millior in equity to Aker Energy since the estabhishment of the company.
TRG's subsidiary ~RG Energy AS and related entities. that explores
ancther ol field in Ghana, were in 2019 invoiced NOK 74 million from
Aker Energy AS for manhours related to that oil fizld.

When aker employees perform services for Kjeil nge Rakke or other
related parties, Aker's expenses are b.lled in full. In 2019, TRG AS and
Kiell irge Rekke pa'c NOK 2.6 million plus value added tax for services
and rental of pramises (NOK 2.2 million in 2018). TRG AS anc Kiell nge
Re<ke have provided services to Aker for NOK 1.4 milen in 2019 (NOK
1.6 million in 2018).

Except for the above-mentiored ransactions, and remuneration far nis
work as chairrran of the boarc of Aker ASA and board represenzative in
other companies within the group (see Note 34), Aker has no matenal
outstanding accounts or other transactions with Kiell inge Rokke.

Kristian Rakke, son of Kiell Inge Raxke, 1s employed as Chief Investment
Officer In Aker ASA. See Note 34 for inforrmation about his remuneration
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TRANSACTIONS WITH EMPLOYEES

Ir April 2019, Aker soc 1381071 shares i Aker BioMarine AS to KMMN
Irvest Il AS, a company who ly owred by Axer BioManne's CED Matrs
Johansen. Tre saie represented two per cent of the shares in Aker
BioMarine AS, and the consideration of NGK 48 million represented
estimatec fair value of the shares a: the time of the transaction. in
connection with the sale, KMMN nvest |} AS was granted an interast-
bearing seller ¢redit of NOK 45 mill.on with the shares soid as secunty. At
year-end 2019, the total ouzstancing amoun: for the seiler Credit was
NOK 47 reillion nc uding acerued interest.

TRANSACTIONS WITH ASSOCIATES AND JOINT YENTURES QUTSIDE
ORDINARY CQURSE OF BUSINESS

Several of the companies within the group have fransactions with related
parties to the group as part of thew ordinary course of business. This
part.cuiarly applies to Aker BR, who received products and services from
several companies within the group, including Aker Solutions, Akastor,
Kvaerner, Ocear Yieid and Cognite. Below are descriptions of other
transactions with assoCiates and joint vartures outside ordinary course
oF business.

DOF Deepwater AS

Akers subsidiary Akastor have issued a sharehelder's loan to the joint
venture DOF Deepwater AS (a company owned 50 per ¢ent by Akastor
and 50 per cent by DOF ASAS. During 2019, the shareholder's loar. was
increased by NOK 60 milhan. As of 31 December 2018, the balance of the
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shareholder's loar was NOL 7 mion, while te carry.ng amount nas
peen reduced to zero due to recognit on oF Akastor's accumualated shere
of the company's losses. Akastor ASA has issued financial guarantees in
favour of financial institutions related to financing of the five vessels n
DOF Deepwater AS (seg Note 325

AKOFS Offshore AS

As of 31 Decermnber 2019, Akastor had interest-bearing recevab es
against AKOFS Offshore AS anc sLibs diaries amourting to NOK 131
milhor in tetal. =urther. Akastor has made available a NOK 100 milion
revolving facility o0 AKCFS Seafarer AS from commencement of the
company’s contract with Equinor.

Akastor has 1ssued a financial parent company iIndemnizy guarantee of
NOK 43 millicn ard a financial guarantee of NOK 136 million in favour of
finance institutions for fulfilment of lease ohligations related to Avium:
Subsea AS. a whaolly ownec subsidiary of AKOFS Cffshore.

G2A Air AS

G&A Al AS was untii T November 2019 owned 50 per cent by Aker ASA,
upon when Aker sold all .ts shares in the corpany. G&A Air AS owns an
airplane that is leased and operated by Sundt Air Management who
based on marxet terms {for the use) diractly invoicas the Jsers of the
airplane.

Aker BP ASA
Aker BP has i 2019 irvoiced NOK 19 million to Aker Energy AS for
services related to the development of Aker Energy’s ¢l field in Ghana.

TRANSACTIONS AND CUTSTANDING BALANCES INVOLVING RELATED PARTIES IN 2019 AND 2018

2019 2018
Income statenent.
Operating revenues 3535 4087
Operating expenses () (383
Depreciation and impairment ROU assets (203) -
Net financial items 1y 4
Balance sheet:
Right of use assets 1187
Finance lease rece vable 1648 157
Interest-bearing rocevable 381 450
Trade receivable and other interest-free current assets 362 669
Total assets 3578 2690
Trade fiabilities and o:her interest-free current liabilities (15} (8
Interest bearing debt 2> (2)
Lease liabilities {1418) -
Net exposure 2133 2 660

The aperating revenues above for 2019 mainly relate to the delivery of equipment and services from Aker Solutions to Aker BP and sale of man-hours

from Kvaerner to joint venture projects.



Annual sooounis | A o Aker ASA annual reporl 2018 05

Note 34 | Salary and other remuneration to the Board of Directors,
nomination committee, CEO and other senior executives

REMUNERATION TO AND SHARES OWNED B8Y THE BOARL OF DIRECTORS
Snaras owned as of

31 Decemoer 2013 2019 208
Kiell Inge Raxke (Chairman of the Board) 50673577 620 000 600 000
Finn Berg Jacobsen {Deputy Chairman} 5159 425 000 415 0Q0
Kristin Krohn Beveld [Director) - 375000 365 000
Karen Simor: (Directer) - 375 000 365 000
Anne Marie Cannon (Director untll 26 April 2019) - 125 GO0 365 000
Atle Trangy (Empioyee representat ve) - 187 500 182 500
Arnfinn Stensa (Employee representative) - 187 500 182 500
Tommy Angeltveit (Employee representative)® - 187 500 182 560
Arnram Hadida (Emp oyae representative until 26 Aprl 201932 - 62 500 187 500
Totat 2 545 000 2 840 QGO

CalEnercers oF e ARG

REMUNERATION TO THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

2019 2018
Finn Berg Jacobsen {Chairman of the audit committee) 190 000 185 QOO
Arle Tranay 135 000 120 000
Kristin Krohn Devaid 135 000 130 D00
Total 460 000 445 000
REMUNERATION TO THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE
: o 2019 2018
Klell iInga Rekke (Chairmar of the nomination committee) 45 000 45 000
Cerhard Helberg 45 000 45 000
Leif-Arne Langay 45 000 45 000
Total 135 000 135 000

AKER'S ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

Aker ASA'S nUMerous operatianal companies are organiseq nto two
portfolios; cne industrial and one financial. At the erd of 2019, Aker's
executive team consisted of President and CEO @yvind Erigsen, CFO
Svein Oskar Stoknes and Chief Investrnent Officer Krislian Rekke.

All remunerattons are vested during the year. Where amounts have not
been paid by the end of the year. provisions have been made in
accordance with best estimates.

In 2019, The Resource Group TRG AS (TRG) earned NOK 665 000 in
board remuneraticn {(remuneration to the nomination committee
included) from Aker ASA (NOK 645 000 in 2018}, through Chairran of
the Beard K:ell Inge Rokke. TRG slso earned board remuneration from
other Aker-owned companies totaling NOK 1594 000 thraugh Kell Inge
Rakke in 2019 (NOK1 756 000 in 2018). See also Note 33 Transactions
and agreements with related parties.

The board members earned nc payments from Aker ASA in 2018 or 2018
except as described gbove, Some board members alse hold cirectorships
In other companies within the Aker Group.
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GUIDELINES FOR REMUNERATION OF THE CEQ AND SENIOR
COMPANY EXECUTIVES

Below are the advisory and binding guicelines ‘or remuneration of the
CEQ ard senior company executives.

The shutdown of societies and businesses as a resuit of the ongoing
COVID-19 crisis has had significant negative effects on the world
economy and most industries and businesses have been negatively
affected. Demand for oil and gas has dropped significantly and there is
an imminent danger of recession. For the parent company Aker, with
few employees and relatively low operating costs in relation to the
values managed under active ownership, salaries are the largest
expense item. As & resuit of the increased uncertainty, it has been
decided that there will be no salary adjustments for the employees at
Aker ASA in 2020, nor has any 2020 bonus program been launched. In
addition, Aker’s President and CEQ @yvind Eriksen has requested that
his salary be reduced to half for the remainder of the year.

Advisory guidelines

The total remuneration package for executives consists of a fixed salary,
standard employee pension and insurance coverage and a variable saiary
elerment The main purpose of the systam is to stimulate a strong and
enduring profit-o-iented culture that ensures share price growth.

The intention of the variable salary eiement i1s to promote the
achievement of good financial results and leadership m accordance with
the company's values and business ethics. The variable salary elernent
has three main components. ~he first component is a payment based on
the dividenc on the company’s shares, and the second compenent 15 a
payment based on personai goal achievermnert. Work on special projects
may entitle an employee to an additional bonus. The third component of
the var able salary 15 descrined under "Binding guide.ines” below.

Senior executives part cipate in 3 collective pension and insurance
scheme open to al: employees. The collective pension and insurance
scheme apoies for salar.es up to 126, For further infarmation regarding
the pension scheme, see Note 11 to Aker ASA’s separate financial
statements. The members of the executive team are offered standard
employmeant contracts and standarc employment conditions with
respect to notice periods and severance pay. Their employment
contracts can be terminatec on three months' notice. If the company
terminates a contract, the executive is entitled to three months’ pay after
the end of the notice period.

Binding guidelines

One of the three components of the variable salary is a granting of bonus
shares calcutated on the basis of the increase in vaile-adjusted equity.
The other components of the variabie salary are described under
“Adwvisory guidelines” abave. In additicn, the employees have an option
to buy Aker ASA shares at 3 discount (see Note 2 1o the separate
financial statemen® for Aker ASA). The company does not offer stock
option programmas for its employess,

REMUNERATION OF SENIOR EXECUTIVES

Gyvind Erikser’s appoiniment as President and CEO can be terminated
by either party on three months' notice. If his contract s terminated by
the company. Mr. Eriksen is entitled to three menths notice and three
manths’ salary from the date of termination, The remuneration plan for
Mr. Eriksen includes a fixed saiary, standard employee pension and
insurance coverage and a varianie salary element, The variable salary
element may total up to two-thirds of the fixed salary. In 2019, Mr.

Fnnm GUCG s LS e

Eriksen earned a satary of NOK 8 478 B17 (NOK 17 260 590 1n 20i8), ang
variag e pay of NOK 11457 256 mainiy paid in Decermber 2019 (NCK 11 316
G481n 2018} The va.ue of add.bional ramurerat.on was NOK 26 634 i
2019 (NOK 31722 1n 20°R), while the rat pension expensc for M- Ernksen
was NOK 180 B85 11 2019 (NCK 176 220 11 2018). As at 31 December 2013,
Mr. Eriksen owns 219 077 sharas in Aker ASA through his wholy-ownec
company Eray AS. Fray AS alsc owns 325 000 snares in Gcear Yield
ASA, 208 220 shares in Cognite AS and 100 000 Class-B shares (0.2 per
cent) in TRG Holaing AS as a7 31 December 2012

Svein Oskar Stoknes acceded the posibon of CFO in Aker on 1 Augus:
2019, “he appcintment can be terminated by either party on three
mantks' notice. (fhis contract 1s terminated by the corrpany. Mr. Stoknes
is entitled to three months' salary from the date of termination. Any
salary ar remuneration received during the perniod of severance will be
deductea from the company’s severance payment The rermuneration
plan for Mr. Stoknes includes a fixed salary, standard employee pension
and insurance coverage end a variable salary element. Mr. Stoknes's
variable salary alsg includes a bonus-share award scheme including an
option to buy Aker ASA shares at a discount (see Aker ASA Note 2 for a
description of the scheme) Mr Stoknes's contractual variable salary may
total up to 140 pe- cent of his fixed salary. Mr. Stoknes earned a fixed
salary of NOK 1446 530 1in 2019, as well as variable pay of

NOK 2 062 807 For 20°9, this inciudes the vested valug of bonus snares
awarded in 2020. Of the vaniable pay, NOK 581 530 wiil only be paid in
2020 if Aker ASA pays dividends totaiing NOK Z3.50 per share during
the year. The value of additienal remune-ation was NOK & 132 1n 2018,
while the net pension expense for Mr, Stoknes was NOK 74 610in 2019, n
2013, Mr, Stoknes purchased 1 786 shares at a discount as part of the
employee share purchase program. As at 3 December 2019, Mr. Stoknes
owns 2 786 shares In Aker ASA. In addition, Mr. Stoknes owns 26 444
shares in Aker Solutions ASA, and " 297 shares in Akastor ASA asat 31
Decernber 2019,

Frank Q. Reite resigned frorr his positior as CFO on 31 July 2018, The
remuneration plan for Mr. Reite included a fixed salary, standard
amigloyee pension and insurance coverage and a vanaole salary element
Mr. Reite’s variabie salary also :includec a8 bonus-share award scheme
including an opticn to buy Aker ASA shares at a discount (see Aker ASA
Note 2 for a description of the scheme). Mr. Reite’'s contractual variable
salary could total up to 140 per cent of his fixed satary. Mr. Reite earned a
fixed salary of NOK 2 794 268 in 2019 (NOK 4 583 902 in 2018), as well as
variable pay of NOK 3 316 769 (NCOK 4 374 198 in 2018). For 2019, this
includes the vested vaiue of bonus shares awarded :n 2020. Of the
variaole pay, NOK 1 044 019 will oniy be paid in 2020 If Aker ASA pays
dividends totaling NOK 23 50 per share dunng the year, For 2018, no
bonus shares were allocated. The value of additional remuneration was
NCOHK 62 853 11 2019 (NOK 21 352 in 2018), while the net pensian expense
for Mr. Raite was NOK 104 385 i1 2019 (NOK 172 754 in 2018).

Kristian Rexke's appointment as Chief Investment Office” can he
terminated by either party on three months' notice. If his contract is
terminated by the company, Mr. Rekke is entitied to three menths salary
from the date of termination. Any salary or remuneration received during
the period of severance w il be deducted from the company’s severance
payment. The remuneration plan for Mr. Raxke includes a fixed salary,
standard employee pensian and insurance coverage and a variable salary
element. Mr Rekke's variable salary also includes a bonus-share award
scheme including an ootion 16 buy Aker ASA shares at a discount (see
Aker ASA Note 2 for a description of the scheme). Mr, Rakke's
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contractual variaoie saiary may total up to 340 Der cent of his fixed
salary, M. Rokke earned a fixed saiary of NOK 3 808 689 in 2019 (NOK
3275 835in 2018), as well as varian e pay of NOK 4 688 795 (NOK
2750 C1 in 22183 For 2019, this includes the vested value of bonus
sharas awarded 11 2020 Of the variable pay, NOK 1438 3320 will anly be
paid in 2020 if Aker ASA pays dividends totaiing NO«L 23 50 per share
during the year For 20°8. ne borus shares were aliocated. The value of
addtional remuneration was NOK 19 646 in 2019 (NOK 18 93511 2018),
while the net pension expense for Mr. Rgxke was NOK 175 476 11 2019
(NOL170 953 11 2018). As at 31 December 2018, Mr. Rexke owns

200 000 shares in Akastor ASA through hus wholly-ownec company
Riverrun Capita Maragement AS, Mr. Rakke awns o shares in Aker ASA
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directly. but has anindirect ownesshig through a 275 par cant cwnership
interest .n TRG AS.

Senior exacutives receive no reruneration for directorships or
membership of nomination committees of other Aker companies. In
2018, Akar ASA recognised a total of NOK 3107 238 in respect of @ywing
Eriksen’s directorships of otner Aker companies. Aker ASA recogrised
NOK 1333 700 in respect of Kristian Rexke’s directorships of othe Aker
companies in 2019, and NOK 881537 for Frank O. Reite’s airectorshigs of
other Aker companies n 2079,

The President and CCO and o:her senior executives receve no ather
remuneration than descrited above. Accordingly theirempgloyment
conditions include no lcans, guarantees or $:6ck oplion rights,

Note 35 | Events after the balance sheet date

MARKET UNCERTAINTY

OPELC and Russia did not reach an agreement on ol production cuts
expected after the cutbreak of COVID-1S. This virus ed to lower
economic activity, especially in Chira, in che first weeks of 2020, and
lower cemand for oil Instead of a cut in production, the break in the
negotiations ended with increased ol oreduction and a pnce war
between OFEC and Russia. This led to & dramatic fall in o1l orices,
foliowed by signif:cant price dechnegs in the worid's stock markets. Oil-
exposed companies are hit especiaily hard, including Aker and portfalio
companies such as Aker BP, Aker Solutiors, Akastor, Kvaerner and
Ccean Yield.

Al the same time, the world has experienced a serious and rapid spread
of COVID-19. The World Health Qrganizatior (WHO) has declared the
situation and the virus a pandemic Ths tragic virus cutbreak affects a
signif.cant nurmber of peopie, and it also affects businesses and
economies worldwide, A recession scenario 1s plausibie, but the long-
term global and national impacts on industries, economic activity, o
prices and financial markets are harg to pradict given the current
situation. The challenging times and uncertain market conditions will
impact the coming quarters, and this 1s part of Aker's ongong risk
assessment In the future.

From an accounting perspective, these are factors that may affect
accounting estimates related to the recoverabie arounts of assets, and

the risx of write-downs will ‘'rcrease If the negative developrment
continues, It is too early to give any estimate of the impact this will have
on the consolidated financial statements, but the situation will be closely
monitored going forward. The Aker Group has initiated measures 1o
redace the negative effects for the group and is continuousiy considering
further measures. See also discussion in the Board of Directors report.

POSTPONEMENT IN AKER ENERGY

Given the historic ol price collapse in the first quarter of 2020 as a result
of the Corona virus and the price war between audi Arabia and Russia,
the company, with suppert from Axer, dec.ded in late-March 2020 to
postpone the Pecan project mdefinitely. The company has had an
ambition to be in production 37 months after project sanctioning. Under
today’s trave! and transport restrictions, and with a very uncertan
sicuation for the supp ier industry, the company no longer considers this
schedule as possible. The focus moving forward will be on the potantial
for improvement including for the technical soluiion. ltis also natura. to
consider transaction opportunities n the fu-ther development of Aker
Energy.

Aker Energy maintains a constructive dialogue with the authorities in
Ghana, with a shared understanding of the challenges being faced.
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To the Annual Shareholder's Meeting of Aker ASA

independent auditor's report

Report on the Audit of the Financiai Statements

Dpuucn

We have audited the financial statements of Aker ASA, which compnse

« The financial statements of the parent company Aket ASA (the Company), which compnse the
balance sheet as at 31 December 2019, the income statement and cash flow statement for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies, and

« The consohdated financal statements of Aker ASA and its subsidianes (the Group), which
compnse the balance sheet as at 31 December 2019, the income statement, total
comprehensive ncome, consobdated statement of changes in equity and cash fiow statement
for the year then ended, and notes to the financiat statements, including a summary of
sgnificant accounting pokcies

In our opimon
« The financial slatements are prepared i accordance with the law and requlations

+ The accompanying financial statements give a true and far view of the financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2019, and its financal performance and s cash flows for the
year then ended In accordance with the Norwegian Accounting Act and accounting standards
and practices generally accepted in Norway

« The accompanying consohdated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financral
position of the Group as at 31 December 2019, and its financial performance and its cash
fiows for the year then ended n accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
as adopted by the EU

Bass for Dpinton

We conducted our audit in accordance with laws, regulations, and auditing standards and practices
generally accepted in Norway, mcluding Intemational Standards on Audiing (1ISAs) Our
responsibiliies under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibiities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are mdependent of the Company and the
Group as required by laws and regulations, and we have fulfiied our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We bebeve that the audit evidence we have obtaned is sufficient
and appropnate 1o provide a bases for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matiers that, in our professional jJudgment, were of most significance m
our auds of the financal statements of the current penod  These matters were addressed in the
context of our audrt of the financial statements as a whole, and n forming our opinoon thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opsion on these matiers :
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1 Annesament of he carsping Wil 3f FRST Diurubbge 1

Reference 1s made to Note 2 Bass for preparation and estmates and assumptions. Note 5 Accounting
pnncipies. Note 12 Impawments. Note 15 Property. plant and equipment. and the Board of Directors'

report

i The key audit miatier

How it malter Was addressed i cur audit

* Property. plant and equipment include the
., FPSQO Dhirubhai-1 wath carryng value of NOK
1283 milkon as of 31 December 2019

The impaiment assessment of the FPSO
Dhirubhai-11s considered 1o be a nsk area
mainty due to the economic environment in the
! oif & gas business segment.

As the long-term charter for the FPSO
Dhirubhai-1 expired in September 2018, and
i no new contract has been entered by 31
December 2019, there 1s an increased
uncertainty for how fong the urid will be idle,
the future day rates and the duration of a new
contract in the future. These factors increase
the impairment risk

The wdentification of indscators of impairment
and the preparation of the estimate of the
recoverable amount of an asset nvolves
significant uncertainties and subjective
Judgrnents, which requires special auds
consideration

An impairment of NOK 590 millvon related to
the FPSO Dhisubhai-1 has been recogntsed in
| 2019,

We apphed professional skepucism and critically
assessed management's Judgment for impairment
ndicators, including counterparty assessment
Audit procedures in this area, performed by the
group team and component auditor in Ocean
Yield ASA included

+ evaluating management’s assessment of
imparment ndicators,

« assessing the mathematical and
methodological integrty of management's
mmpament models and the reasonableness
of discount rates apphed with reference to
market data,

« assessing and challenging management's
estimates of future cash flows in hght of
previous estimates, histoncal performance
and external sources for future day rates
where available;

« evaluating and challengimg management on
the appropnateness of the key assumptions.
such as for example residual value, in the
cash flow forecasts, and

« evaluating the appropnateness of the
disclosures in the financial statements related
1o the carnying value of property. plant and
equipment

From the audn evxdence obtained. we consder
management's assessment of the carrying value
of the FPS0O Dhirubhan-1 to be 1n accordance with
the requirements under the relevant accounting

standards

1 s el Bt B0 S OIS e ot Contracis

Reference is made to Note 2 Basts for preparation and estimates and assumphons, Note 5 Accounting

pnnciples. and Note 10 Operating revenue

! The hev audit matte:

Hony the miafter was addressed in o quai

Accounting for long term construchon contracts
is considered to be a nsk area as it involves
management estinates and judgments which

; are often complex and involve assumpbions

i regarding future events for which there may be
" fittle or no extemnal comoborative evidence
available.

The key judgements and estmates appled by
_management include their assessment of the

For inancially significant contracts subyect to
sigruficant estimation uncertamnty and ! of with a
reasonable possibiirty of being in a significant
loss-making posiion, we applied professional
skepticism and cntically assessed the accountng
estimates and judgments against the
requirements of IFRS 15 Qur audit procedures.
performed by the group team and component
auditors it other Isted subsidianes. mncluded
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" stage of project completion as well as

| assessing the esimated future contract

corroborating contractually based revenue
and cost amounts included in project

forecasts with reference to signed contracts

, and external confimatons.

; As such, these contract accounting estimates. | «  assessing vanable considerations estimates

I and especially the cost estimates. also require included in forecasted revenue m accordance

: significant attention during the audt and are with IFRS 15,

i subject to a tugh degree of auditor judgment « obtamned and read the terms and condrions of

I significant contracts and companng these to

j management’s assessment of the contract

: forecasts,

e evaluating management's process for
assessing the stage of completon and the
method applred in accordance with IFRS 15,

= reading and discussing project reports and
other assessments with management and
companng current forecasts to tustoncal
outcomes where relevant,

« challenging management on the estimate of
cost to complete and the nsk assessment

i retated to forecast cost.

» assessing the reasonableness of vanable
costs to complete with reference to contract
terms, actual and forecast cost and schedule
performance and extemal corespondence,
and

« evaluating the disclosures in the financiob
statements against the relevant requirements
of IFRS 15.

' revenue and related costs

From the audrt ewdence obtained. we consder
construction contract cost estimates to be
conststent with the requirements under the
relevant accounting standards

Other information

Management 1s responsible for the other information The other information compnses information in
the annual report. except the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon, with the exception on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below

In connechon with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility 1s to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information 1s matenally inconsrsient with the
financial statements or cur knowledge obtamned in the audnt or otherwise appears to be matenally
misstated.

. based on the work we have performed. we conclude that there 1s a matenal misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact We have notheng to report in this regard.

Responsibidmes of the Baard of Directors and the Managing Director for the Financial Statements

The Board of Directors and the Managing Drrector (Management) are responsible for the preparation
in accordance with law and regulations. mcluding far presentation of the financial statements of the
Company in accordance with the Norwegian Accounting Act and accounting standards and practices
generally accepted in Norway. and for the preparahon and far presentation of the consolidated
financial statements of the Group 1t accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the EU, and for such intemal control as management determines 15 necessary 1o enable
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the preparation of financial statements that are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud
Of emor.

In prepanng the financial statements, management 1s responsible for assessing the Company's and
the Group's ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as appicable. matters refated to going
concern The financial statements of the Company use the going concern basts of accounting insofar
as it 15 not likety that the enterpnse will cease operations  The consohdated finanaial statements of the
Group use the going concem basis of accounting unless management ether intends to iquidate the
Group of to cease operations, or has no realisic alternative but to do 50

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from matenal misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or efror. and to ssue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion Reasonable assurance 1s 2 high level of assurance. but 1s not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with laws. regulations. and auditing standards and practices
generally accepted in Norway, ncluding ISAs will always detect a matenal misstatement when it

exists Misstatements can anse from fraud or error and are considered material 4. indnvadually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements

As part of an audit in accordance with laws, reguilations, and audting standards and practices
generaily accepted in Norway, including ISAs. we exercise professicnal judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit We also

+ dentfy and assess the nsks of matenal messtatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. We design and perform audit procedures responsive to those nsks, and
obtain audit evidence thatis sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for our opinion The
nsk of not detecting a matenal misstatement resuling from fraud 1s hwgher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion. forgery, intenttonal OMISsIONSs,
misrepresentations, or the overnde of intemal controt

« obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audn
procedures that are appropnate in the crcumstances. but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectveness of the Company's or the Group's mtemal control

+ evaluate the approprateness of accounting pehces used and the reasonableness of
accounting estmates and related disclosures made by management

+ conclude on the appropnateness of management's use of the going concem basis of
accountng and. based on the audnt evidence obtained, whether a matenal uncertainty exists
refated to events or condiions that may cast significant doubt on the Company and the
Group's ability 10 continue as a going concemn. if we conclude that a matenal uncertanty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or. if such dscioswes are inadequate . to modify our opinion Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company and the Group to cease to
continue as a going concem.

» evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the financial statements. including
the disclosures, and whether the financiai statements represent the underlying transactons
and events in a manner that achieves far presentation

«  oblan sufficient appropnate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opiion on the consolidated finanaal
statements We are responsible for the direction. supervision and performance of the group
audit We remain solety responsible for our audit opinion

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding. among other matters, the planned scope and
tming of the audit and significant audit findings. Including any significant deficiencies inintemal controt
that we identify dunng our audit
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We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requrements regarding independence. and to commumicate with them all relatonships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. and where apphcable, related
safeguards

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audt of the financial statements of the current penod and are therefore the
key audit matters We descnbe these matters in our auddor's report uness law of requlation precludes
public drsclosure about the matter of when. In extremely rare arcumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated 1n our report because the adverse consequences of doing $o
would reascnably be expected 1o outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication

Report on Other Legal and Reguiatory Requirements

Uipnwon on the Board of Drectars report

Based on our audit of the finanoial statements as descnbed above . it 1s our opimon that the
information presented in the Board of Dwectors report and (n the statements in the ESG report
conceming the financial statements. the going concem assumplion and the proposed allocation of the
result is consistent with the financial statements and comphies with the law and regulations

Crpanion on Reqistration and Documentation

Based on our audrt of the financial statements as descnbed above, and control procedures we have
considered necessary n accordance with the Intemational Standard on Assurance Engagements
{ISAE) 3000. Assyrance Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of Histoncal Financial
Information, t is pur opimon that management has fulfilied its duty to produce a proper and clearty set
out registration and documentation of the Company s accounting information in accordance with the
law and bookkeeping standards and practices generally accepted in Norway

Oslo. 31 March 2020
KPMG AS

Arve Gevoll
State Authonsed Public Accountant

Note This transiation from Norwegran has been prepared for information purposes only
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To the board of Aker ASA

Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on the Audit of the combined financial statements of Aker ASA and holding companies

Opinicn

We have audited the combined financial statements of Aker ASA and holding companies, which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2019, the income statement for the year then ended, a
summary of key assumptions used as hasis for preparation and other notes.

n our opinion, the accompanying combined financial statements are prepared in accordance with the
basis for preparation of the financial reporting defined in the introduction to the combined financial
statements and give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Aker ASA and holding
comparies as at 31 December 2019, and the financial performance for the year then ended.

Without modifying our opinion, we draw atiention io the basis for preparation of the financial reporting,
defined in the introduction to the combined financial statements, which describes the basis of
accounting. As a result, the combined financial statements may not be suitabie for any other purpose.

Basts for Cpinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with laws, regulations, and auditing standards and praciices
generally accepted in Norway, included International Standards on Auditing (1ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further desoribed in the Auditor’s Responsibiifties for the
Audit of the Combined Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of Aker ASA
and holding companies as required by laws and reguiations, and we have fulfiied our other ethical
responsibiibes in ascordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate 10 provide a basis for our opinion.

Other information

Aker ASA has prepared financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019, comprising parent
francial statements prepared in accordance with Norwegian Accounting Act and accounting
standands and practices genevafly accepted in Norway arnd consohdated financial statements in
accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU. We have issued a
separate auditor's report on the statulory financial statements to the shareholders of Aker ASA dated
31 March 2020.

Responsibifities of The Board of Directors for the Combined Financial Siatements

The Board of Directors {management) are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
combined financial statements in actordance with the basis for preparabion of the financial reporting
defined in the introduction of the combined financial statements, and for such intemnal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the combined financial statements
that are free from material missiatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Auditor s Responsibiliies for the Audit of the Combimed Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the combined financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor, andd 1o issue an
audior’s report that inciudes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but s
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with laws, regulations, and auditing standards
and practices generally accepted in Norway, induding 1SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 4, individually
of in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the aconomic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these combmed financial statements.

As parl of an audit in accordance with laws, regulations, and auditing standards and practices
generally accepted in Norway, included Intermational Standards on Auditing (ISAs), we exarcise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

»  klentify and assess the risks of matenal misstatement of the combined financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. We design and perform audit procedures responsive 1o those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The sisk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resufting from eror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
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We communicale with the Board of Directors reganding, amang other matters, the planned scope and

Eming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in intemal control
that we identify during our audit,

Osie, 31 March 2020
KPMG AS

Arve Gevoll
State Authonsed Public Accourtant

Note: This translation from Norwegian has been prepared for information purposes onfy.




